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Key Achievements in 2018

• Our customers have responded positively to Globe’s 
repositioning — the majority signing multi-year contracts  
in H1 2018

• Successful sales campaigns targeting multi-year subscriptions  
to our software products

• *UDYLW\�	�0DJQHWLFV�VHUYLFH�OLQH�GHOLYHUHG�VWURQJ�SURȴWDELOLW\��
underlining our market leading position in this domain

• Reorganisation of our Geoscience services has put us on the 
URDG�WR�UHVHWWLQJ�SURȴWDELOLW\

Operational Highlights

• Gravity & Magnetics data and services — continued demand for 
*UDYLW\�	�0DJQHWLFV�GDWD�DQG�VFLHQWLȴF�H[SHUWLVH

• *OREH�ȃ�*OREH������UHOHDVHG�RQ�VFKHGXOH�DQG�ZLWKLQ�EXGJHW��
providing new analytic tools and content to its customers

• 6RIWZDUH�ȃ�'DWD�$VVLVWDQW�DQG�([SORUDWLRQ�$QDO\VW�VRIWZDUH�
released on ArcGIS Pro

• GIS services — super-major support contract win and further 
GLYHUVLȴFDWLRQ�LQWR�QHZ�PDUNHWV

Our customers work primarily in the petroleum 
LQGXVWU\��EXW�DOVR�RWKHU�QDWXUDO�UHVRXUFH�VHFWRUV�� 
2XU�GDWD�ULFK�SURGXFWV��JHRJUDSKLFDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
systems (GIS) solutions and trusted advisory services 
help our customers to achieve their business goals 
RI�FRVW�FRQWURO��RSHUDWLRQDO�H[FHOOHQFH��UHJXODWRU\�
compliance and environmental responsibility.

Financial Highlights

Revenue

£8.0m
2018 £8.0m

£7.2m

Earnings per Share

1.35p
1.35p

0.15p

Adjusted EBITDA

£1.3m
£1.3m

£1.0m

Net cash plus net current 
receivables 

£2.5m
£2.5m

£1.9m

8QDXGLWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�FRPSDUDWRU�IRU�WKH����PRQWKV�WR����'HFHPEHU������ 
(see page 03 for more details).

*2017

2018

*2017

2018

*2017

2018

*2017
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We supply the expertise, support and 
knowledge that companies and governments 
need to better discover, develop and manage 
Natural Resources.
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Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review

Dr Jonathan Copus 

Chief Executive

“The Board and Senior 
Management are focused  
on ensuring that Getech’s 
assets and capital work  
hard for all shareholders.”

By working closely with our customers and by 
PDLQWDLQLQJ�ȵH[LELOLW\�LQ�RXU�VDOHV�FRQYHUVDWLRQV�� 
year-on-year we delivered new customers, 11% 
growth in revenue, 32% growth in EBITDA*, and  
an increase in our baseline of forward sales. 

Dr Stuart Paton 

Chairman

“Since 2016 we have 
strengthened our business 
operationally, commercially 
DQG�ȴQDQFLDOO\��:H�KDYH�
expanded investment in our 
people and products but also 
ORZHUHG�OLNH�IRU�OLNH�ȴ[HG�FRVWV�
by 31%. This leaves Getech’s 
FDVK�SURȴWDELOLW\�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�
leveraged to growth.”
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Overview
Getech provides geoscience and geospatial 
products and services to companies and 
governments who use them to de-risk 
exploration programmes and improve 
their management of natural resources.

The Group’s activities focus on a suite of 
data, software and information products; 
the value of which we enhance through 
services that leverage these products and 
our geoscience-geospatial skills.

Our product-led strategy targets recurring 
revenue growth. Our investment 
programme is shaped by a culture of 
customer collaboration and a commitment 
to continuous product and service 
enhancement. This focus on products 
DQG�WKH�FXVWRPHU�UHȵHFWV�D�UHSRVLWLRQLQJ�
of Getech that began in 2016 with 
the appointment of a new CEO and 
management team.

Since 2016 we have strengthened our 
business operationally, commercially and 
ȴQDQFLDOO\��:H�KDYH�H[SDQGHG�LQYHVWPHQW�
in our people and products but also 
ORZHUHG�OLNH�IRU�OLNH�ȴ[HG�FRVWV�E\������
7KLV�OHDYHV�*HWHFKȇV�FDVK�SURȴWDELOLW\�
VLJQLȴFDQWO\�OHYHUDJHG�WR�JURZWK��ȴ[HG�
costs accounting for c85% of the Group’s 
total annual costs. We have also worked 
to expand Getech’s activities beyond oil & 
JDV�H[SORUDWLRQ��NH\�WR�GLYHUVLȴFDWLRQ�KDYH�
been our geospatial software products 
and services.

In 2018, crude prices strengthened year-
on-year, but price volatility left customer 
exploration and new business budgets 
constrained. We managed these budget 
constraints by working closely with our 
FXVWRPHUV�DQG�E\�PDLQWDLQLQJ�ȵH[LELOLW\�
in our sales conversations, which kept 
them relevant to our customers’ changing 
needs. Year-on-year this translated to new 
customers, 11% growth in revenue, 32% 
JURZWK�LQ�3URȴW���DQG�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�RXU�
baseline of forward sales. 

Underpinning this performance is our 
central ethos - to continuously enhance 
the practical operational value of our 
products and services.

We have entered 2019 with a busy 
schedule of sales campaigns and we 
consider Getech to be well positioned 
WR�GHOLYHU�GLYHUVLȴHG�RUJDQLF�JURZWK��
With industry costs at a cyclical low, 
our customers’ attitude to capital 
spending is balanced between spot 
oil prices, which have rallied since the 
start of 2019, and longer-dated crude 
prices, which continue to trade above 
$60 per barrel. As such, and against a 
backcloth of falling reserve replacement, 
we consider the conditions and need 
for upstream investment to have 
strengthened. Balancing this, and as 
indicated in our Trading Update of 27 
March, the lengthening of the sales cycle 
that emerged in Q4 2018 has persisted 
into 2019; the Directors believe that 
customers remain cautious over the 
early release of their exploration and 
new business budgets. Getech’s 2019 
sales campaigns and programme of 
investment are positioned to unlock 
these conversations.

The Board and Senior Management 
are focused on ensuring that Getech’s 
assets and capital work hard for all 
shareholders. We believe volatile 
macroeconomic conditions have delayed 
WKH�VDOH�RI�RXU�/HHGV�RɝFH�DQG�ZH�KDYH�
assumed that this will not happen before 
the next balance sheet date, however 
we remain committed to its disposal. We 
intend to build Getech through a mix of 
organic and acquisitional growth, and as 
the markets into which we sell stabilise, 
we also see potential to reinstate 
dividend payments.

On behalf of the Board and Executive we 
ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKDQN�*HWHFKȇV�VWD�IRU�WKHLU�
hard work, creativity and professionalism 
throughout 2018.

Dr Stuart Paton 
Chairman

Dr Jonathon Copus
Chief Executive

Highlights

Revenue Growth

11%
3URȴW�*URZWK

32%
Barrel Trade

$60+ (Per Barrel)

Reporting Basis
In this Annual Report we summarise and 
GLVFXVV�*HWHFKȇV�DXGLWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV� 
for the 12-month accounting period ended 
31 December 2018. Having moved our 
ȴQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG�WR����'HFHPEHU��IURP� 
31 July) Getech’s prior audited accounts are 
for the 17-month period to 31 December 
2017 (referred to as AP-2017). To aid 
DQDO\VLV��ZH�LQFOXGH�XQDXGLWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�
comparators for the 12 months ended 31 
December 2017 (referred to as FY-2017).  

7KH�)<������ȴQDQFLDO�FRPSDUDWRUV�KDYH�
EHHQ�GHULYHG�E\�GHGXFWLQJ�WKH�ȴYH�PRQWK�
period to 31 December 2016 unaudited 
management accounts from the audited 
17-month period to 31 December 2017.

*Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation, adjusted 
for exceptional items as detailed in the 
ȴQDQFLDO�UHYLHZ��VHH�SDJH�����
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Operations Review

Chris Jepps

&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2ɝFHU

“We continue to be 
recognised as experts in the 
use of Esri technology within 
the petroleum and natural 
resources sectors.”

By leveraging skills from across the Group, Getech’s 
geoscience, geospatial and software expertise have 
been combined to deliver new information, analytics 
tools and training options for Globe users.
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Overview
Our Gravity & Magnetics Solutions team 
performed solidly in 2018, underscoring 
our market leading position in this domain. 
Data sales remained robust and our team’s 
unique and leading expertise in potential 
ȴHOGV�GDWD�SURFHVVLQJ��DQDO\VLV�DQG�
interpretation was recognised by a busy 
programme of Gravity & Magnetics service 
contracts throughout the year. 

2XU�ȵDJVKLS�*OREH�SURGXFW��GHYHORSHG�E\�
our Geoscience Information Products team, 
goes from strength-to-strength. In 2017 
Globe was moved to an annual release 
F\FOH��7KLV�ZDV�WR�SURYLGH�PRUH�ȵH[LELOLW\�
in shaping the product’s development to 
match our customers’ evolving needs. In 
-XO\������WKH�ȴUVW�RI�WKHVH�DQQXDO�UHOHDVHV��
“Globe 2018”, was delivered to customers 
 — on time and within budget. Globe 2018 
features the most diverse and innovative 
inventory of new capabilities to date. By 
leveraging skills from across the Group, 
Getech’s geoscience, geospatial and 
software expertise have been combined 
to deliver new information, analytics tools 
and training options for Globe users. 
Globe User Group Meetings, held in 
London and Houston, produced a new 
level of customer engagement and helped 
stimulate discussion on product uses, 
features and opportunities for future 
product enhancements. Our work to  
re-position Globe was rewarded in 2018 
by many of Globe’s super-major customers 
signing up to multi-year licence agreements. 

The focus for our GIS Software division in 
2018 was to migrate our software products 
to ArcGIS Pro, Esri’s latest desktop GIS 
application and ArcMap replacement. In the 
autumn of 2018 both our Data Assistant 
and Exploration Analyst extensions were 
released on ArcGIS Pro, providing a 
VLJQLȴFDQW�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�FXVWRPHUV�ZLVKLQJ�
to upgrade their own environments.  

In Q3 2018 we began work on migrating 
our Unconventionals Analyst software 
product to ArcGIS Pro, targeting a release 
in Q2 2019. As with Globe, our sales team’s 
focus on delivering recurring revenue 
enabled us to secure a number of multi-
year software contracts during the year.

Our GIS Services team continues to be 
recognised as experts in the use of Esri 
technology within the petroleum and 
natural resources sectors. In 2018 we won 
another long-term GIS support contract 
ZLWK�D�VXSHU�PDMRU�DQG�GLYHUVLȴHG�IXUWKHU�
by securing geospatial implementation 
projects with natural resources customers 
outside of petroleum. 

Our Geoscience Services team was 
UHORFDWHG�WR�RXU�QHZ�/RQGRQ�RɝFH�LQ� 
4��������KDYLQJ�FORVHG�RXU�+HQOH\�RɝFH��
While the market for geoscience services 
has remained challenging following the 
period of low and volatile oil prices, we 
believe this re-organisation has put us 
EDFN�RQ�WKH�URDG�WR�SURȴWDELOLW\��ΖW�KDV�
also enabled us to re-shape this team with 
closer working relationships with the rest 
of the Group — providing opportunities 
to integrate Getech’s products, Gravity 
& Magnetics services and geospatial 
expertise into an evolving cross-disciplinary 
JHRVFLHQFH�VHUYLFHV�RHULQJ��2XU�ZRUN�ZLWK�
governments also continued in 2018, and 
we continue to work in partnership with the 
Government of Sierra Leone on its Fourth 
Licensing Round and with the Lebanon 
Petroleum Administration.

Chris Jepps 
&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2ɝFHU



Our Products
Our customers use our data, information and software 
products to de-risk their exploration projects and more easily 
locate, produce and manage natural resources. We enhance 
our products through a combination of domain expertise, 
customer collaboration and innovation. Our products are key 
to our future growth, delivering recurring revenue and opening 
margin upside. 
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At a Glance

Getech provides geoscience and geospatial products 
and services to companies and governments, which 
they use to de-risk exploration programmes and 
improve their management of natural resources.

Our Mission
Help our customers to achieve their business goals of cost 
control, operational excellence, regulatory compliance and 
environmental responsibility.

Our Services
We position our services to showcase our technical skills and 
the practical value of our products. We look to combine our 
geoscience and geospatial expertise to provide solutions to 
complex customer problems, which add value to their strategic 
and day-to-day decision making. Through this formula, services 
are an important access point into new sectors; the work of our 
geospatial team in particular having expanded to projects in the 
nuclear, water and energy infrastructure sectors.

Read more about our products on page 08

Globe Geospatial 
Software

Geophysical 
Data

Read more about our services on page 08

Government  
Advisory Services

Geoscience 
Services

Geospatial 
Services
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Earth’s evolution unlocked for better exploration
Globe is a geospatial information product that our customers use to 
strengthen their understanding of the Earth’s evolution to help predict 
the location of its natural resources. Globe does this by providing 
paleogeographic, structural geology and paleoclimate data through  
geologic time: factors that combine to control the formation and  
location of oil & gas. 

The Globe user base consists of super-majors and large independent  
oil & gas companies. By using Globe, they are better positioned to  
understand petroleum systems and predict geological risk and uncertainty.

Globe goes from strength-to-strength
Globe is in its ninth year of development and in June 2018 the user-base  
was consolidated by many of its super-major customers signing up to  
multi-year licence agreements. 

In 2017 Globe was moved to an annual release cycle. This was to provide 
PRUH�ȵH[LELOLW\�LQ�VKDSLQJ�WKH�SURGXFWȇV�GHYHORSPHQW�WR�PDWFK�RXU�
FXVWRPHUVȇ�HYROYLQJ�QHHGV��ΖQ�-XO\������WKH�ȴUVW�RI�WKHVH�DQQXDO�UHOHDVHV��
Globe 2018, was completed on time and within budget.

This release comprises the most diverse and innovative inventory of new 
Globe content and usability features to date. This leveraged Getech’s 
geoscience, geospatial and software expertise to deliver new content, new 
analytics tools and a broad programme of training options for customers.

Work on the next release, Globe 2019, commenced in August 2018 and 
contains further valuable enhancements to Globe’s capabilities.

Case Study: Globe
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Our data rich products, GIS solutions and  
trusted advisory services help our customers 
to achieve their business goals of cost control, 
operational excellence, regulatory compliance  
and environmental responsibility.

GlobeGeophysical Data

Government 
Advisory Services

Geoscience 
Services 

Our Gravity & Magnetics data and analysis 
are an essential component of integrated 
geoscience interpretation projects, 
providing crucial insights into areas of 
interest in order to help our customers 
minimise exploration risk. 

We hold one of the world’s largest libraries 
of data, the global coverage of which is 
multiple times larger than our closest peer. 

We continue to refresh and enhance our 
data holdings; as well as expand them to 
include seismic, well and other technical 
geoscience data.

Our Gravity & Magnetics experts are 
recognised world leaders in potential  
ȴHOG�GDWD�4&�DQG�SURFHVVLQJ��FROOHFWLYHO\�
having over 150 years of combined 
experience, and deliver bespoke 
processing services to customers  
in the mining and petroleum sectors. 

Globe is a geospatial information product 
that helps its customers strengthen their 
understanding of the Earth’s evolution and 
to help predict the location of its natural 
resources. Globe does this by providing 
paleogeographic, structural geology 
and paleoclimate data through geologic 
time; factors that combine to control the 
formation and location of oil & gas. These 
data are presented across 58 consecutive 
stratigraphic stages that cover the earth’s 
history from 300 million years ago to the 
present.

The Globe user base consists of super-
majors and large independent oil & gas 
companies. By using Globe, they are better 
positioned to understand petroleum systems 
and predict geological risk and uncertainty.

We build additional value in and around 
Globe through our Regional Report 
information products. 

We assist Governments and National 
Oil Companies with Licencing Rounds, 
Data Management, Capacity Building and 
Advisory services.

In 2018, we worked for the Governments 
of Sierra Leone, Lebanon and Ras al 
Khaimah. In Sierra Leone we have worked 
in partnership with the Petroleum 
Directorate since 2016 and we continue to 
assist them in running the ongoing Fourth 
Licensing Round.

Our Government Advisory work enables 
us to access a rich portfolio of technical 
data, which we are then able to license on 
behalf of the Government.

Our team delivers a combination of 
specialist upstream oil & gas expertise, 
D�EUHDGWK�RI�LQGXVWU\�VSHFLȴF�NQRZOHGJH�
and an in-depth understanding of modern 
H[SORUDWLRQ�ZRUNȵRZV�

The reduced oil price and oil company 
customer budget cuts have combined to 
intensify competition. Our core technical 
expertise however, and ability to leverage 
our Group products whilst delivering 
complex integrated geoscience and 
geospatial consultancy projects, remain  
NH\�GLHUHQWLDWRUV�

Following careful cost control and 
enhanced project management through 
2018 we are working to return this service 
OLQH�WR�SURȴWDELOLW\�

Geospatial   
Solutions

We support organisations across the world 
with a unique blend of petroleum industry, 
geoscience, geospatial, data management 
and IT expertise. Our petroleum-focused 
solutions provide enriched visualisation, 
geospatial analytics and powerful data 
integration for businesses that need to 
locate and extract new resources, improve 
ȴHOG�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�HQVXUH�FRPSOLDQFH�

The transferable nature of our geospatial 
VNLOOV�KDV�DOVR�SURYHG�YHU\�HHFWLYH�LQ�
opening doors to new sectors; the team 
having completed recent projects in 
sectors that include nuclear monitoring, 
water management and energy 
infrastructure. 

STRATEGIC REPORT

Products and Services

Geospatial 
Software

Our petroleum-focused software solutions 
provide enriched visualisation, powerful 
analytics and data integration tools for 
companies that need to locate and extract 
new hydrocarbon resources, improve 
ȴHOG�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�HQVXUH�UHJXODWRU\�
compliance.

Our Data Assistant software makes data 
integration simpler and easier across 
a range of subsurface interpretation 
applications, our Exploration Analyst 
software allows users to perform complex 
SOD\�EDVHG�H[SORUDWLRQ�ZRUNȵRZV��DQG�
through our Unconventionals Analyst 
software we have broadened our userbase 
into the production environment; it 
enabling users to reduce development 
costs and simplify reserves evaluation.

maynard paton


maynard paton
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Well planning made easy
Unconventionals Analyst is an extension to Esri’s ArcGIS 
platform for use in “unconventional” resource projects such  
as shale gas, shale oil, coal bed methane (CBM) or coal seam 
gas (CSG). 

It enables land, drilling and subsurface teams to holistically plan 
ȴHOG�GHYHORSPHQWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�VWUHDPOLQH�RSHUDWLRQV��DQG�WR�
evaluate reserve areas and forecast volumes during production. 

The software also enables operators to create a holistic model 
of well pads and multilaterals across an area of land that it 
wishes to develop for petroleum extraction. Using proprietary 
geospatial algorithms Unconventionals Analyst quickly 
LGHQWLȴHV�WKH�PRVW�HɝFLHQW�PL[WXUH�RI�ODWHUDO�OHQJWKV�DQG�
SDGV�WR�RSWLPDOO\�GHYHORS�WKH�ȴHOG���PLQLPLVLQJ�FRVWO\�VXUIDFH�
footprint and environmental impacts, while maximising lateral 
lengths for increased production. 

Using the software, its customers can dramatically cut 
complex, time-consuming and resource intensive operational 
ZRUNȵRZV��DQG�PDNH�VLJQLȴFDQW�FRVW�VDYLQJV�GXULQJ�
operational planning.

Case Study: Unconventionals Analyst
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s 
systems of internal control and for reviewing their 
HHFWLYHQHVV��7KH�*URXS�PDLQWDLQV�V\VWHPV�WKDW�DUH�
designed to provide reasonable but not absolute 
assurance against material loss and to manage  
rather than eliminate risk.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The key features of the Group’s systems of internal control are 
as follows:

• $�PDQDJHPHQW�VWUXFWXUH�ZLWK�FOHDUO\�LGHQWLȴHG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV

• The production of timely and comprehensive management 
information

• Detailed budgeting and forecasting

• An analysis of risks and opportunities is reviewed by the Board  
at each of its meetings

• Day-to-day hands-on involvement of the Executive Directors

7KH�NH\�ȴQDQFLDO�LQGLFDWRUV�XVHG�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�PRQLWRU�WKH�
SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�*URXS�DUH�RSHUDWLQJ�FDVK�ȵRZV��UHYHQXHV� 
and EBITDA.

Risk Status Key

Risk increased

Risk unchanged

Risk decreased

Risk reduced

Risk Scale
/LTXLGLW\�DQG�FDVK�ȵRZ�ULVN

Oil investment cycle

Financial risk

People

Systems and infrastructure

The withdrawal of the   
UK from the EU

Likelihood

Im
pa

ct

Low High

Lo
w

H
ig

h

1

2

3

4

5

6

1 2

3
4

5

6
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Risk Description Mitigation Impact Likelihood Change in 
risk

Liquidity and 
FDVK�ȵRZ�ULVN

The risk that the Group may 
be unable to meet short-
WHUP�ȴQDQFLDO�GHPDQGV�DV� 
a result of a volatile working 
capital cycle.

&DVK�ȵRZ�IRUHFDVWV�DQG�IXWXUH�LQFRPH�
levels are carefully monitored on a 
regular basis to pre-empt liquidity 
issues before they occur. Careful 
budgeting and close control over 
expenditure have also contributed  
to a decreased risk.

4 2

Oil investment 
cycle

The risk that Getech’s 
customers permanently 
reduce their spending on 
hydrocarbon exploration.

'LYHUVLȴFDWLRQ�RI�*HWHFKȇV�SURGXFW�DQG�
VHUYLFH�RHULQJV�WR�DUHDV�RXWVLGH�RI�
hydrocarbon exploration. Activity in these 
areas already includes hydrocarbon 
3URGXFWLRQ�DV�ZHOO�DV�EURDGHU�ȴHOGV�RI�
Natural Resource Management that are 
not hydrocarbon based.

4 3

Financial risk
7KH�NH\�HOHPHQWV�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�
risk for Getech are market 
borrowing interest rate risk, 
customer credit risk and 
currency risk. Price risk is  
not considered material.

These risks are mitigated by regular 
monitoring of market rates, by 
assessment of the creditworthiness 
of the customer base and by the 
policy of matching, where sales and 
purchases are in currencies other than 
pound sterling. Uncertainty in currency 
markets has increased risk.

2 4

People
5HWHQWLRQ�RI�VSHFLDOLVW�VWD� 
is crucial to the success of 
the business.

The Group aims to ensure that it 
provides stimulating work in an 
attractive environment; together with  
its employment policies, these features 
are designed to attract and retain the 
KLJK�TXDOLW\�VWD�WKDW�IRUP�WKH�EDVLV� 
for the Group’s success.

2 3

Systems and 
infrastructure

The Group is reliant on  
its IT infrastructure in  
order to trade. A failure  
in these systems could  
KDYH�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�LPSDFW� 
on its business.

Controls are in place to maintain the 
LQWHJULW\�DQG�HɝFLHQF\�RI�WKH�*URXSȇV�
systems, which are regularly backed 
up, updated and tested. Getech 
continually invests in its network 
and storage hardware to ensure the 
IT infrastructure keeps pace with 
developments in the Group’s product 
DQG�VHUYLFH�RHULQJV�

4 1

The withdrawal 
of the UK from 
the EU

The risk that the UK’s 
withdrawal from the EU will 
DHFW�WKH�*URXSȇV�DELOLW\�WR�
trade with EU customers.

If trading restrictions are to be 
applied to UK companies by the 
EU directly, then the Group has the 
ȵH[LELOLW\�WR�WUDGH�WKURXJK�LWV�86�HQWLW\��
Furthermore, the majority of our EU 
customer base have trading entities 
in the US and beyond that would be 
unrestricted.

2 4

The principal risks facing the business are outlined below (impact and likelihood ranked from 1 to 5):

1

2

3

4

5

6

maynard paton
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maynard paton


maynard paton


maynard paton
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maynard paton
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With 2018 Brent averaging $71/bbl, 42% 
higher than its prior three-year average, 
and long-dated crude prices consistently 
in excess of $60/bbl, our sales discussions 
for most of the year had a more forward-
looking tone. In H1 2018 we extended 
our pipeline of multi-year product 
subscriptions, which expanded the Group’s 
foundation of recurring revenue. In Q4 
2018 however, a sharp fall in crude prices 
highlighted the fragility of global growth, 
Brent tumbling from a high of $86/bbl 
to a low of $50/bbl. This fall lengthened 
and complicated the sales cycle but by 
repositioning our customer conversations 
*HWHFK�HQGHG������ZLWK�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�VDOH�
of data and products, which also added  
a new Globe customer.

In the year to 31 December 2018, from 
D�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�OHDQHU�DQG�PRUH�IRFXVHG�
operational base, Getech delivered 11% 
year-on-year revenue growth against 
FY-2017, which drove a 32% expansion 
in adjusted EBITDA. The Group ended 
2018 with net cash plus net current 

receivables of £2,503,000 (31 December 
������e������������+DYLQJ�UHȴQDQFHG�RXU�
borrowings in H2 2018, net of long-term 
GHEW�WKLV�ȴJXUH�WRWDOOHG�e���������� 
(31 December 2017: £2,277,000).

Operating Results 
Revenue
Revenue for FY-2018 totalled £8,019,000, 
an increase of 11% from the previous 12 
months (AP-2017: £10,946,000, FY-2017: 
e������������:LWKLQ�WKLV�ȴJXUH��3URGXFWV�
revenue grew by 24%, compounding 
growth of 19% in FY-2017, and in FY-2018 
Products accounted for 80% of Group 
revenue. In contrast, the Services market 
remained challenging and despite our 
Geospatial and Gravity & Magnetics Service 
WHDPV�ERWK�GHOLYHULQJ�UHYHQXH�DQG�SURȴW�
growth, a contraction in Geoscience Service 
income led to a 22% fall in service division 
revenue. We restructured our Geoscience 
Service activities in Q4 2018 and we are 
seeing signs of improvement.

Getech’s current customers operate principally in the oil & gas 
exploration sector. Their budgets and programmes of activity 
are shaped by both spot and forward crude prices but also the 
general cost structure of the industry and the opportunity sets  
in and around their asset portfolios.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review

Andrew Darbyshire

&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ɝFHU

“Getech is committed to making 
our capital work hard for the 
EHQHȴW�RI�DOO�VKDUHKROGHUV��
We do this through organic 
investment and in 2018 we 
focused on rationalising our 
RɝFH�ORFDWLRQV�ȋ

Highlights

Revenue

£8,019,000
EBITDA (Adjusted)

£1,268,000
Earnings per Share

1.35p
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7R�DLG�LQ�WKH�DQDO\VLV�RI�RXU�XQGHUO\LQJ�ȴQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��WKH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VHWV�RXW�NH\�ȴJXUHV�IURP�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�and 
WKH�HTXLYDOHQW�ȴJXUH�DGMXVWHG�IRU�H[FHSWLRQDO�LWHPV�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

(1) Change in accounting treatment and prior year adjustments 
The introduction of IFRS 15 has led to a general reappraisal of the accounting treatment for inventory costs. For Getech this has impacted the way we account  
IRU�FRVWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�RI�5HSRUWV��7KH������DFFRXQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHVWDWHG�WR�UHȵHFW�WKLV�FKDQJH�LQ�WUHDWPHQW�

ΖQYHQWRU\�DVVHWV�KHOG�SUHYLRXVO\�RQ�WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW�KDYH�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�UHFODVVLȴHG�DV�ΖQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV��7KLV�KDV�PLQLPDO�HHFW�RQ�WKH�ΖQFRPH�6WDWHPHQW��
0RUH�VLJQLȴFDQWO\��WKH�FRVW�RI�EXLOGLQJ�5HSRUWV��SUHYLRXVO\�FODVVLȴHG�DV�DQ�RSHUDWLRQDO�FRVW�LQ�WKH�&DVK�)ORZ�VWDWHPHQW��DUH�QRZ�UHFODVVLȴHG�DV�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�FRVW�

5HȵHFWLYH�RI�WKH�ORZHU�OHYHO�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�5HSRUWV�LQ������YHUVXV�������WKLV�UHFODVVLȴFDWLRQ�KDV�UHVXOWHG�LQ�D�PLQRU�LQFUHDVH�LQ�)<������FDVK�LQȵRZ�IURP�
RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�EHIRUH�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�DGMXVWPHQWV�RI�e�������EXW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�FDVK�LQȵRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�EHIRUH�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�DGMXVWPHQWV� 
LQ�$3������KDV�LQFUHDVHG�E\�e��������YHUVXV�WKH�SUHYLRXVO\�UHSRUWHG�ȴJXUH��)<�������D�e��������LQFUHDVH��

(2) Restructuring Costs
ΖQ�4��������WKH�*URXS�FRPELQHG�LWV�DFWLYLWLHV�LQ�/RQGRQ�DQG�+HQOH\�LQWR�RQH�QHZ�/RQGRQ�RɝFH��DQG�UHVWUXFWXUHG�WKH�*HRVFLHQFH�6HUYLFHV�WHDP��SUHYLRXVO\�
EDVHG�LQ�+HQOH\��WR�DGGUHVV�LWV�GHFOLQLQJ�UHYHQXHV�DQG�SURȴWDELOLW\��7KLV�UHVXOWHG�LQ�RQH�R�FRVWV�RI�e��������GXULQJ�)<������DQG�IROORZHG�D�ODUJHU�*URXS�ZLGH�
restructuring programme, which was completed in late 2016/early 2017 (AP-2017: £487,000, FY-2017: £113,000).

(3) Write-down of intangible assets
In the 2017 comparative periods, following management’s review of intangible assets, it was considered prudent to impair the carrying value of several reports and studies; 
the cost of which were carried on the balance sheet. No asset impairments have been taken in 2018 (AP-2017 and FY-2017: £461,000). In the comparative periods, the 
impairment has been charged to cost of sales on the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and has been adjusted for in the comparative periods above.

12 months
to 31 Dec 2018)

(FY-2018

17 months
to 31 Dec 2018

(FY-2017)

12 months
to 31 Dec 2018

(FY-2017)

Reported
(audited)

£’000

Adjusted
(unaudited)

£’000

Reported
(audited)

£’000

Adjusted
(unaudited)

£’000

Reported
(unaudited)

£’000

Adjusted 
(unaudited)

£’000
Table 1 (1)

Revenue 8,019 8,019 10,946 10,946 7,215 7,215

EBITDA (2) (3) 1,071 1,268 645 1,593 384 958

2SHUDWLQJ�SURȴW�(2) (3) 250 447 (661) 287 (429) 145

3URȴW�DIWHU�WD[�(2) (3) 508 705 (40) 908 58 632

EPS 1.35p 1.88p (0.11)p 2.42p 0.15p 1.68p

&DVK�LQȵRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��EHIRUH�
W/C adjustments) (2)

1,073 1,270 1,416 1,903 1,108 1,221

Development costs (861) (861) (1,154) (1,154) (804) (804)

Report Building costs 13 13 (429) (429) (427) (427)

Acquisition costs — — (500) (500) (400) (400)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash (2) (1,040) (843) (392) 95 80 193

Cash and cash equivalents 1,400 2,393 2,393

Net cash 468 1,759 1,759

Net cash plus net current  
receivables

2,503 1,922 1,922
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Gross Margin by Reporting Segment

Operating Results cont.
Gross Margin
Getech’s Group gross margin in FY-2018 
equalled 47% (AP-2017: 47%, FY-2017: 
51% before exceptional intangible asset 
impairments of £461,000). Underlying 
this is the continued strong performance 
RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�GLYLVLRQ��SDUWLDOO\�RVHW�
by the continued challenges of the 
services market - the gross margin (before 
impairments) on product sales equalling 
62% for the year (AP-2017: 65%, FY-2017: 
70%), the margin on Services moving to 
a loss (FY-2018: negative 14% AP-2017: 
positive 7%, FY-2017: positive 3%). Getech 
continues to target a return to a 25% margin 
for the Services division in the mid-term.

Product margin fell between FY-2017 and 
FY-2018 due to a rise in third-party costs, 
ZKLFK�UHȵHFWV�D�\HDU�RQ�\HDU�VKLIW�LQ�WKH�
sales mix. This reduced the product margin 
despite growth in revenues and a reduction 
LQ�ȴ[HG�FRVWV��7KLV�GRHV�QRW�SRLQW�WR�DQ\�
VSHFLȴF�ORQJ�WHUP�FRVW�WUHQG�

Administrative costs
'XULQJ�)<������ZH�PDLQWDLQHG�ȴVFDO�
discipline when managing our administrative 
costs, which for the year totalled £3,341,000; 
5% lower than FY-2017 (AP-2017: 
£4,858,000, FY-2017: £3,514,000). 

Currency
Getech’s cost base is predominantly in 
SRXQG�VWHUOLQJ��EXW�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�SURSRUWLRQ�
of its revenue is denominated in US Dollars. 
During the year sterling weakness was 
favourable to the Group, but the timing of 
some larger US Dollar transactions resulted 
in the Group recording a loss on foreign 
exchange of £39,000 (AP-2017: £77,000 
gain, FY-2017: £18,000 gain). Further details 
regarding Getech’s foreign currency risk 
and mitigation are set out in Note 19 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

EBITDA
Having delivered revenue growth from 
an operational base that has been 
strengthened by a multi-year programme 
of capital discipline, Getech expanded its 
EBITDA to £1,071,000 (AP-2017: £645,000; 
FY-2017: £384,000). This however includes 
restructuring costs of £197,000 (AP-2017: 
£487,000, FY-2017: £113,000) and in 2017, 
an impairment of intangibles of £461,000.
7DNLQJ�DFFRXQW�RI�WKHVH�RQH�R�
adjustments, the Group made an adjusted 
EBITDA of £1,268,000. Year-on-year this  
is 32% growth (AP-2017: £1,593,000;  
FY-2017: £958,000).

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation charges 
totalled £821,000 in 2018 and were 
allocated to administrative costs in the 
income statement (AP-2017: £1,306,000, 
FY-2017: £813,000). Whilst amortisation 
charges on Globe and software 
development costs have increased, a 
VLJQLȴFDQW�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�RXU�'DWD�+ROGLQJV�
were fully amortised, accounting for the 
overall decrease in amortisation charge. 
A full breakdown of depreciation and 
amortisation is included in Notes 13 and  
���WR�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

2SHUDWLQJ�SURȴW
7KH�*URXS�UHSRUWHG�DQ�RSHUDWLQJ�SURȴW�RI�
£250,000 for the year (AP-2017: £661,000 
loss, FY-2017: £429,000 loss). Adjusted for 
restructuring costs and intangible asset 
impairments (discussed above), Getech 
GHOLYHUHG�DQ�DGMXVWHG�RSHUDWLQJ�SURȴW� 
RI�e���������$3�������e��������SURȴW�� 
)<�������e��������SURȴW��

Income tax
To help our customers understand and 
resolve their exploration and operational 
challenges requires us undertaking 
pioneering research and development. 

Against the cost of this work we obtained 
corporation tax relief, and subsequently 
realised a current tax credit for FY-2018 
of £137,000 (AP-2017: £533,000). The 
year-on-year reduction in the tax credit 
is a function of the Group’s increased 
SURȴWDELOLW\�LQ�������$IWHU�WD[DWLRQ��*HWHFK�
UHSRUWHG�D�SURȴW�RI�e���������$3�������
e�������ORVV��)<�������e�������SURȴW���

Cost base analysis
In Q4 2018 Getech merged its London  
DQG�+HQOH\�RɝFHV�DQG�UHGXFHG�KHDGFRXQW�
in the Geoscience Services team. This, 
combined with capital discipline, meant 
WKDW�WKH�*URXS�DJDLQ�UHGXFHG�LWV�ȴ[HG�FRVW�
base. A change in the mix of sales however 
resulted in higher costs to third parties, 
which has obscured the savings made. 
Closure of Henley and the restructuring  
of Geoscience Services had an associated 
cost of £197,000 but these steps are 
H[SHFWHG�WR�GHOLYHU�DQQXDOLVHG�ȴ[HG�FRVW�
savings of £500,000. (See Table 3).

2SHUDWLQJ�FDVK�ȵRZ�
Before working capital adjustments 
Getech generated £1,073,000 in cash from 
operations (AP-2017: £1,416,000, FY-2017: 
£1,108,000). This includes restructuring 
costs of £197,000 (AP-2017: £487,000, FY-
2017: £113,000). Adjusted for restructuring 
costs, cash from operations would have 
been £1,270,000 (AP-2017: £1,903,000,  
FY-2017: £1,221,000).
Note however, that as highlighted in 
1RWH���WR�7DEOH����WKH�UHFODVVLȴFDWLRQ�RI�
expenditure on Reports from operational 
costs to investment costs has led to a 
VLJQLȴFDQW�XSZDUG�UHVWDWHPHQW�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�
FDVK�LQȵRZ�LQ�$3������DQG�)<�������1HW�
of the Group’s expenditure on producing 
5HSRUWV��DGMXVWHG�FDVK�ȵRZV�JHQHUDWHG�
from operations totalled £1,257,000 (AP-
2017: £1,474,000, FY-2017: £794,000).

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review cont.

12 months to 31 Dec 
2018 (audited)

17 months to 31 Dec 
2018 (audited)

12 months to 31 Dec
 2018 (unaudited)

Table 2 Products Services Products Services Products Services

Revenue 6,434 1,585 7,570 3,372 5,155 2,060

Cost of sales (2,421) (1,810) (2,649) (3,152) (1,564) (1,992)

*URVV�SURȴW��EHIRUH�LPSDLUPHQWV� 4,013 (225) 4,921 220 3,591 68

Gross margin (before impairments) 62% (14)% 65% 7% 70% 3%

Impairment of intangible assets — — (461) — (461) —

*URVV�SURȴW� 4,013 (225) 4,460 220 3,130 68

Gross margin 62% (14)% 59% 7% 61% 3%

In AP-2017 there was Revenue attributed to other segments totalling £4,000 with no costs associated.
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Changes in working capital
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�WKHUH�ZDV�VLJQLȴFDQW�
movement in working capital (FY-2018: 
£1,919,000 negative movement, AP-2017: 
£160,000 positive movement, FY-2017: 
£472,000 positive movement). A large 
proportion of this movement was due to 
the timing of a high value sale of data and 
products towards the end of 2018, which 
is included in the receivables balance at 
the year-end.

Cash taxation
Getech received cash tax credits 
totalling £514,000 during 2018 (AP-2017: 
£467,000, FY-2017: £437,000) as a result 
of Getech’s continued investment into 
research and development. Getech 
expects cash tax credits to be lower 
in 2019 due to the Group’s increased 
SURȴWDELOLW\�LQ�������*HWHFKȇV�FXUUHQW�WD[�
asset provision at 31 December 2018 is 
£104,000 (31 December 2017: £490,000).

Investment and Capital Expenditure 
In line with the Group’s strategy to 
LQYHVW�DQG�HQKDQFH�LWV�SURGXFW�RHULQJ��
development expenditure on Globe and 
Software increased to £861,000 (AP-2017: 
£1,154,000, FY-2017: £804,000). Getech 
expects to continue with this level of 
investment in its products throughout 2019.
A repositioning of the work of the 
Geoscience Information Products team 
meant that in 2018 expenditure on 

Report building fell to £13,000 (AP-2017: 
£429,000, FY-2017: £427,000).

Financing
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�*HWHFK�UHȴQDQFHG�LWV�
long-term loan that was reaching maturity. 
This involved repaying the outstanding 
amounts on the expiring loan, which 
totalled £634,000 and drawing down a new 
loan facility of £950,000. At the year-end, 
Getech had made repayments of the new 
loan totalling £19,000. In 2019, £113,000 
of the loan capital falls due. The new loan 
facility is repayable over 5 years and accrues 
interest at 2.75% above base rate. The loan 
LV�VHFXUHG�DJDLQVW�WKH�/HHGV�RɝFH��ZKLFK�
has a net book value of £2,388,000.

Liquidity and Going Concern 
At the end of 2018, Getech held £1,400,000 
in cash and cash equivalents (AP-2017/
FY-2017: £2,393,000). A fall in cash 
balances toward the year-end was due to 
the timing of sales and at 31 December 
2018 Getech held a material net current 
receivables balance (current receivables, 
less current payables) totalling £2,035,000 
(31 December 2017: £163,000).

At year-end, net cash plus net current 
receivables (cash, less borrowings, plus net 
current receivables) totalled £2,503,000 (31 
December 2017: £1,922,000). Excluding 
long-term debt, the total rose to £3,322,000 
(31 December 2017: £2,277,000).
Getech’s business activities and 

Cost Base Reconciliation
7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�UHFRQFLOHV�RXU�FRVW�EDVH�WR�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost base is measured as: cost of sales, administrative costs and development costs capitalised, less depreciation and amortisation, and adjusted 
for movement in work in progress, non-cash foreign exchange adjustments and fair value adjustments.

Table 3 % Variance

12 months
to 31 Dec 2018

(audited)
£’000

17 months
to 31 Dec 2018

(audited)
£’000

12 months
to 31 Dec 2018

(unaudited)
£’000

Cost of sales 4,231 6,262 4,017

Development costs capitalised 861 1,154 804

Capitalised cost of building Reports  13 429 427

Impairment of intangibles — (700) (661)

Administrative costs 3,341 4,858 3,514

Restructuring costs 197 487 113

Depreciation and amortisation charges (821) (1,306) (813)

Exchange adjustments 16 7 (18)

Movement on provisions (34) (118) (117)

Cost base 7% 7,804 11,073 7,266

Deduct restructuring costs (197) (487) (113)

&RVW�EDVH��H[FOXGLQJ�RQH�R�
restructuring costs 6% 7,607 10,586 7,153

WKH�IDFWRUV�OLNHO\�WR�DHFW�LWV�IXWXUH�
development, performance and position 
are set out in the Chairman’s and Chief 
([HFXWLYHȇV�5HYLHZ��7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�
RI�WKH�*URXS��LWV�FDVK�ȵRZV�DQG�LWV�
liquidity position are described in the 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ΖQ�DGGLWLRQ��1RWHV�
19 and 20 include details of Getech’s key 
ȴQDQFLDO�ULVNV�DQG�WKH�*URXSȇV�SROLFLHV�DQG�
procedures for capital management.
In making the going concern assessment, 
the Board of Directors has considered 
*URXS�EXGJHWV�DQG�GHWDLOHG�FDVK�ȵRZ�
forecasts to 31 December 2020. Following 
this review, the Directors consider that 
the Company and the Group are going 
FRQFHUQV�DQG�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 
are prepared on that basis.

Andrew Darbyshire
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ɝFHU�

3 May 2019

The Strategic Report on pages 1 to 
15 was approved by the Board on 3 
May 2019.

Dr Stuart Paton 
Chairman
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Corporate Governance
GOVERNANCE

Getech is committed to high standards 
of corporate governance. As such, the 
Board has chosen to adopt the principles 
of the Quoted Companies Alliance (‘QCA’) 
Corporate Governance Code for Small and 
Mid-Size Quoted Companies 2018 (‘the 
Code’). Details of how Getech complies with 
the Code, and the reasons for any non-
compliance, are set out on pages 22 to 26 
of this report.

Prior to formal adoption of the Code, the 
Group has operated in compliance with 
recommendations of the QCA, in so far 
as the size of the Group and its Board 
SHUPLWWHG��)RU�WKDW�UHDVRQ��QR�VLJQLȴFDQW�
changes in governance-related matters 
have been needed. No key governance 
matters have arisen since the publication  
of the last Annual Report.

The Board considers that the structure of 
WKH�%RDUG�SURYLGHV�D�FRVW�HHFWLYH�DQG�
practical method of directing and managing 
the Group. As the Group’s activities 
develop in size, nature and scope, the size 
of the Board and the implementation of 
additional corporate governance policies 
and structures will be reviewed.

The Board
The Board currently comprises of four  
Non-Executive Directors and three 
Executive Directors. The roles of the 
Chairman, who is non-executive and 
elected by the Board, and the Chief 
Executive, are separated. All Directors  
are subject to retirement by rotation and 
re-election is a matter for the shareholders. 
The Non-Executive Directors ensure a 
balance to the Board by constructively 
challenging the Executive Directors.

A Directors’ Responsibilities statement  
LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 
is set out in this Annual Report on pages  
20 and 21.

The Board is responsible for approving 
RYHUDOO�VWUDWHJLF��ȴQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLRQDO�
PDWWHUV�DQG�IRU�WKH�LGHQWLȴFDWLRQ�RI�ULVNV�
faced by the Group. Board approval is 
required for certain matters, the most 
VLJQLȴFDQW�RI�ZKLFK�DUH��

• Final approval of the Annual Report  
and Accounts

• The budget and major capital 
expenditure

• The dividend policy
• Acquisitions and alliances policies

The Board delegates certain matters 
regarding audit, remuneration and 
nomination to its principal committees, 
each of which has written terms  
of reference.

Attendance by each Director at full 
meetings of the Board and Board 
committees of which they were a formal 
member during the year is summarised  
on page 17.

7KH�HHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�LV�UHYLHZHG�
on an annual basis, and progress against 
the review recommendations is monitored 
on a regular basis. 

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is responsible 
for ensuring that Board procedures are 
followed, that the Company complies with 
Company Law and the AIM rules, and that 
the Board receives the information it needs 
WR�IXOȴO�LWV�GXWLHV�HHFWLYHO\�

All Directors have access to the Company 
Secretary and their appointment (or 
termination of appointment) is a matter  
for decision by the full Board.

“The Board is responsible  
for approving overall strategic, 
ȴQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLRQDO�
matters and for the 
LGHQWLȴFDWLRQ�RI�ULVNV� 
faced by the Group.”

Dr Stuart Paton  

Chairman

maynard paton


maynard paton
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Board of Directors’ Attendance

Director Board
Audit

Committee
Remuneration

Committee
Nomination
Committee

Dr Stuart Paton 7/7 3/3 2/2 1/1

Peter Stephens 6/7 3/3 — 1/1

Dr Alison Fielding 7/7 3/3 2/2 1/1

Chris Flavell 7/7 — 2/2 1/1

Dr Jonathan Copus 7/7 — — —

Huw Edwards 0/1 — — —

Andrew Darbyshire 6/6 — — —

Chris Jepps 6/6 — — —

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three 
non-executive members of the Board and 
meets at least twice a year. The principal 
duties and responsibilities of the Audit 
&RPPLWWHH�LQFOXGH�

• 0RQLWRU�WKH�*URXSȇV�LQWHUQDO�ȴQDQFLDO�
controls and assess their adequacy

• Review key estimates, judgements  
and assumptions applied by 
management in preparing published 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV

• Assess annually the auditor’s 
independence and objectivity

• Make recommendations in relation  
to the appointment, re-appointment 
and removal of the Company’s  
external auditor

• Review and consider for approval, 
VLJQLȴFDQW�QHZ�FRQWUDFWV

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists 
of three non-executive members of the 
Board and meets at least once a year.  
The principal duties and responsibilities  
RI�WKH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�LQFOXGH�

• Setting the remuneration policy for all 
Executive Directors and the Chairman

• Recommending and monitoring the 
level and structure of remuneration  
for senior management

• Approving the design of, and 
determining targets for, performance-
related pay schemes operated by the 
Company and approve the total annual 
payments made under such schemes

• Reviewing the design of all share 
incentive plans for approval by the 
Board and shareholders

None of the Committee members  
KDYH�DQ\�SHUVRQDO�ȴQDQFLDO�LQWHUHVW� 
�RWKHU�WKDQ�DV�VKDUHKROGHUV���FRQȵLFWV�RI�
interest arising from cross-directorships 
or day-to-day involvement in the running 
of the business. No Director plays a part 
LQ�DQ\�ȴQDO�GHFLVLRQ�DERXW�KLV�RU�KHU� 
own remuneration.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists  
of three non-executive members of the 
Board and meet at least once a year.  
The principal duties and responsibilities  
RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�LQFOXGH�

• Regularly reviewing the structure,  
size and composition of the Board

• Giving consideration to succession 
planning for Directors and other  
senior Executives

• Identifying and nominating for the 
approval of the Board, candidates  
WR�ȴOO�%RDUG�YDFDQFLHV�DV�DQG�ZKHQ�
they arise

• Deciding membership of the Audit  
and Remuneration Committees

Dr Stuart Paton 
Chairman

Chairman
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors

0-1 years 
2-3 years
4+ Years

Director 
Tenure %

28.58%

42.84%

28.58%
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Getech moved into 2018 with a better balance of skills, 
stronger leadership in our product and service teams, 
and an Executive Committee that is empowered to drive 
Getech’s next phase of growth.

Committee Membership 

 Audit Committee 
 Nomination Committee 
 Remuneration Committee 

 1  2  3

Dr Jonathan Copus 
&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2ɝFHU

Appointed 
August 2016

Key strengths and experience
Jonathan joined Getech as CEO in 
August 2016. Jonathan has extensive 
LQGXVWU\��FRUSRUDWH�ȴQDQFH�DQG�FDSLWDO�
markets experience, having worked as 
an Exploration Geologist at Shell, as a 
number one rated E&P Equity Analyst at 
a number of City institutions (including 
Investec and Deutsche Bank) and most 
recently as CFO at Salamander Energy plc, 
which was acquired by Ophir plc in 2015. 
Jonathan has a PhD from the University 
of Cambridge and a First-Class BSc in 
Geology from the University of Durham.

Andrew Darbyshire
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ɝFHU

Appointed 
February 2018

Key strengths and experience
Andrew started his accounting and 
ȴQDQFH�FDUHHU�DW�*DUEXWW�	�(OOLRWW�DQG�
went on to work in audit for Grant 
Thornton. Andrew joined Getech in 2014, 
WR�HVWDEOLVK�WKHLU�QHZ�ȴQDQFH�WHDP��+H�
was formally appointed to the Board in 
February 2018. Andrew has a master’s 
degree in Mathematics from the University 
of York and is a member of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and 
Wales, he is also the treasurer for  
a charity, Live Music Now North East.

4

 5  6  7

Dr Stuart Paton
Non-Executive Chairman 

Appointed 
April 2011

Key strengths and experience 
Stuart holds a number of advisory roles, 
including with Berwicks Consulting Ltd and 
GLG. He has previously been the Technical 
and Commercial Director and CEO of 
Dana Petroleum, delivering a number of 
acquisitions for them. Before joining Dana, 
he held a number of roles at Shell. Stuart 
has a BA in Earth Sciences and a PhD in 
Geology from Cambridge University.

Directors

 1  2  3

maynard paton
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Chris Jepps
&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2ɝFHU

Appointed 
February 2018

Key strengths and experience
Chris has extensive petroleum industry, 
GIS and entrepreneurial experience, having 
worked within integrated exploration 
teams at Shell, as a professional services 
consultant at Landmark Graphics and most 
recently as Technical Director at Exprodat; 
where Chris established the Company’s 
technical strategy and led its software 
design and development. Following 
Exprodat’s acquisition by Getech Group plc 
in 2016, Chris initially joined as Products 
Director, becoming Getech Group plc 
COO in February 2018. Chris has a BSc in 
Geology from Imperial College, London, 
and is a current member of Esri’s Partner 
Advisory Council.

Dr Alison Fielding
Non-Executive Director

Appointed 
October 2010

Key strengths and experience
Alison is an experienced entrepreneur, 
creating, building and investing in 
high-growth companies. Her career has 
VSDQQHG�VFLHQWLȴF�UHVHDUFK�DW�=HQHFD�
plc, strategy consultancy at McKinsey 
& Company and business building at 
IP Group plc. She is a board member 
of Maven Income and Growth VCT plc, 
Nanoco Group plc, the Royal Voluntary 
Service and the Carnegie Trust for the 
Universities of Scotland. Alison holds an 
MBA from Manchester Business School,  
a PhD in Organic Chemistry and a First-
Class degree in Chemistry from the 
University of Glasgow.

Peter Stephens
Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 
September 2005

Key strengths and experience
Peter is currently Chairman of ASX quoted 
Etherstack, Boisdale Canary Wharf and 
True Luxury Travel having been an original 
investor in Scott Dunn in 1988, sold in 
2014. He was Chairman of Getech from 
LWV�ȵRWDWLRQ�RQ�$Ζ0�LQ������XS�XQWLO������
and remains a Director. Previously, Peter 
was an early investor in Tristel plc, and was 
D�'LUHFWRU�GXULQJ�WKH�FRPSDQ\ȇV�ȵRWDWLRQ�
on AIM in 2005 up until 2013. He was 
the Head of European Equities Sales at 
Salomon Brothers 1986-2000 and Crédit 
Lyonnais 2000-2004. He was Chairman 
of Cavendish Ware, Wealth Manager 
from 2008 until 2018 and remains a 
VLJQLȴFDQW�VKDUHKROGHU��3HWHU�KDV�DQ�0$�LQ�
Jurisprudence from Oxford University and 
KH�TXDOLȴHG�DV�D�EDUULVWHU�LQ�������+H�QRZ�
runs his own Venture Capital business.

Chris Flavell
Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 
November 2015

Key strengths and experience
Chris holds a BSc in Geology and an MSc 
in Applied Geophysics from the University 
of Birmingham. He started his career in 
1980 with BP in London and has since 
worked for a variety of small to large 
Independent Oil Companies in various 
technical and managerial roles, as well 
as consulting for eight years. Chris’ last 
oil company role was General Manager 
of Exploration for Tullow Oil when the 
company grew rapidly following the 
discovery of major new oil provinces in 
Ghana, Uganda and Kenya. Chris is the 
0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU�RI�=LQF�&RQVXOWDQWV�

Advisors 

5HJLVWHUHG�2ɝFH�IRU�WKH� 
Parent Company
Kitson House
Elmete Hall
Elmete Lane
Leeds
LS8 2LJ

Nominated Advisor  
and Broker
WH Ireland Limited
Third Floor
Royal House
28 Sovereign Street
Leeds
LS1 4BJ

Auditor
Grant Thornton UK LLP
No. 1 Whitehall Riverside
Whitehall Road
Leeds
LS1 4BN

Solicitors
Bond Dickinson
1 Whitehall Riverside
Leeds
LS1 4BN

Principal Bankers
National Westminster Bank Plc
PO Box 183
8 Park Row
Leeds
LS1 1QT

Registrars
Link Asset Services
Northern House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
+XGGHUVȴHOG
HD8 0GA

4  5

 6  7
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG� 
31 December 2018.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Group is 
to provide geoscience and geospatial 
products and services that companies 
and governments use to de-risk their 
exploration programmes and improve  
their management of natural resources.

Future developments
The future developments of the Group are 
included in the Strategic Report.

Directors
The Directors of the Parent Company who 
VHUYHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�

Dr Jonathan Copus
Andrew Darbyshire  
(appointed 28 February 2018)
Huw Edwards (resigned 28 February 2018)
Dr Alison Fielding
Chris Flavell
Chris Jepps (appointed 28 February 2018)
Dr Stuart Paton
Peter Stephens

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 
32. The Directors do not recommend a 
GLYLGHQG��������QR�GLYLGHQG��

Directors’ Indemnity
The Group maintains Directors’ and 
2ɝFHUVȇ�OLDELOLW\�LQVXUDQFH��ZKLFK�JLYHV�
cover against legal action that may be 
taken against them. Qualifying third-party 
LQGHPQLW\�SURYLVLRQV��DV�GHȴQHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ�
234 of the Companies Act 2006) are in 
IRUFH�IRU�WKH�EHQHȴW�RI�'LUHFWRUV�

Risks
The principal risks of the Group including 
DURXQG�ȴQDQFLDO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�DUH�
included in the Strategic Report (see  
page 10).

Substantial Shareholders
7KH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�ZDV�QRWLȴHG�RQ� 
20 February 2019 of the following interests 
in excess of 3% of its issued Ordinary Share 
capital. Please see the table on page 21.

Corporate Governance
See separate Corporate Governance 
Report.

Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing 
WKH�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�DQG�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�
statements in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to 
SUHSDUH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�HDFK�
ȴQDQFLDO�\HDU��8QGHU�WKDW�ODZ��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�
have elected to prepare consolidated 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union 
and to prepare the Parent Company’s 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XQGHU�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
Under company law, the Directors must 
QRW�DSSURYH�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XQOHVV�
WKH\�DUH�VDWLVȴHG�WKDW�WKH\�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�
YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�DDLUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
DQG�*URXS�DQG�RI�WKH�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�RI�WKH�
Company and Group for that year.  

“The principal activity of the 
Group is to provide geoscience 
and geospatial products and 
services that companies and 
governments use to de-risk 
their exploration programmes 
and enhance management of 
natural resources.”

Andrew Darbyshire

&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2ɝFHU
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ΖQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�
• Select suitable accounting policies and 

then apply them consistently
• Make judgements and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent
• State whether applicable IFRS have 

been followed in the consolidated 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�ZKHWKHU�
UK Accounting Standards have been 
followed in the Parent Company’s 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�
material departures disclosed and 
H[SODLQHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV

• 3UHSDUH�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 
on a going concern basis, unless  
it is inappropriate to presume that  
the Company or Group will continue  
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping 
adequate accounting records that 
DUH�VXɝFLHQW�WR�VKRZ�DQG�H[SODLQ�WKH�
Company’s transactions and disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�
the Group and enable them to ensure 
WKDW�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRPSO\�ZLWK�
the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and the Group, and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities.

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�FRQȴUP�WKDW�

• So far as each Director is aware,  
there is no relevant audit information 
of which the Group’s external auditor 
is unaware

• The Directors have taken all steps 
that they ought to have taken to make 
themselves aware of any relevant  
audit information and to establish  
that the external auditor is aware  
of that information

The Directors are responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the corporate 
DQG�ȴQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGHG�RQ�WKH�
Group’s website. Legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and 
GLVVHPLQDWLRQ�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�PD\�
GLHU�IURP�OHJLVODWLRQ�LQ�RWKHU�MXULVGLFWLRQV�

Going Concern
The Directors have performed regular 
UHYLHZV�RI�WUDGLQJ�DQG�FDVK�ȵRZ�IRUHFDVWV�
and have considered the sensitivity  
of these forecasts with regards to 
GLHUHQW�DVVXPSWLRQV�DERXW�IXWXUH�
income and costs. With the existing  
cash levels and continued prospects  
IRU�SURȴWDEOH�WUDGLQJ��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�
IXOO\�VDWLVȴHG�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�LV�D�JRLQJ�
concern and will be able to continue 
trading for the foreseeable future.

Auditor
Grant Thornton UK LLP has expressed  
LWV�ZLOOLQJQHVV�WR�FRQWLQXH�LQ�RɝFH� 
as external auditor. A resolution to  
re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP will 
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Andrew Darbyshire
Company Secretary

3 May 2019

Substantial Shareholders
Number of

Ordinary Shares
% of issued

share capital

IP Group plc 4,132,054 11.0

Alto Invest 3,776,088 10.2

BGF Group 3,805,350 10.1

JD Fairhead 3,072,474 8.2

Peter Stephens 1,876,500 5.0

Chris Green 1,797,080 4.8

Hargreaves Lansdown 1,357,230 3.6

Hargreave Hale 1,322,131 3.5

maynard paton
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QCA Code Principles

Getech is committed to achieve and maintain high standards of 
governance. As such, the Board has chosen to adopt the Quoted 
Companies Alliance Corporate Governance Code for Small and Mid-Size 
Quoted Companies 2018 (‘the QCA Code’). Detailed below is how the 
Board applies the 10 principles of Corporate Governance, which form 
part of the QCA code.

Principle Application Compliance

Establish a  
strategy and 
business model 
which promote 
long-term value  
for shareholders

The Board must be able to express a shared 
view of the Company’s purpose, business model 
and strategy. It should go beyond the simple 
description of products and corporate structures 
and set out how the Company intends to deliver 
shareholder value in the medium to long-term.

It should demonstrate that the delivery of long-
term growth is underpinned by a clear set of 
values aimed at protecting the Company from 
unnecessary risk and securing its long-term future.

The Company’s vision is to invest in and develop its 
operating business to deliver long-term, sustainable 
growth in shareholder value.

It seeks to share this vision and details of the 
implementation of its strategy through internal dialogue 
with employees as well as external communications  
by way of public announcements and dissemination  
of information through the Company website  
(www.getech.com) and the Annual Report.

The Group’s strategy places our data, software and 
information products at the heart of our business. We 
target repeat revenue growth and we are reshaping 
our services to more clearly leverage our products and 
geoscience-geospatial skills. This strategic formula has 
already helped us to cross-sell our products and services, 
enter new sectors, and access rich seams of new data with 
VLJQLȴFDQW�UHYHQXH�SRWHQWLDO�

Seek to 
understand and 
meet shareholder 
needs and 
expectations

Directors must develop a good understanding of 
the needs and expectations of all elements of the 
Company’s shareholder base.

The Board must manage shareholders’ 
expectations and should seek to understand the 
motivations behind shareholder voting decisions.

The Board is committed to maintaining an open dialogue 
with shareholders. Communication with shareholders is 
co-ordinated by the Chairman, and the Chief Executive 
2ɝFHU�DQG�*URXS�)LQDQFH�'LUHFWRU�

Throughout the year, the Board maintains a regular 
dialogue with institutional investors, providing them 
with such information on the Company’s progress as is 
permitted within the guidelines of the AIM rules, Market 
Abuse Regulation (MAR) and requirements of the relevant 
legislation.

Twice yearly, at the time of announcing the Group’s interim 
and full-year results, the Company does a round of visits to 
its major shareholders to update them on developments 
and to receive feedback and suggestions from them. The 
Board believes that the Annual Report and Accounts, 
and the Interim Report published at the half-year, play 
an important part in presenting all shareholders with an 
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects. All 
reports and press releases are published in the Investor 
section of the Group’s website.

The Board is aware of the need to protect the interests  
of minority shareholders and balancing these interests with 
those of any more substantial shareholders. The Annual 
General Meeting (‘AGM’) is the principal opportunity for 
private shareholders to meet and discuss the Group’s 
business with the Directors. There is an open question 
and answer session during which shareholders may ask 
questions both about the resolutions being proposed  
and the business in general. The Directors are also 
available after the meeting for an informal discussion  
with shareholders.

http://www.getech.com
maynard paton
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Principle Application Compliance

Take into account 
wider stakeholder 
and social 
responsibilities  
and their 
implications for 
long-term success

Long-term success relies upon good relations 
ZLWK�D�UDQJH�RI�GLHUHQW�VWDNHKROGHU�JURXSV�
both internal (workforce) and external (suppliers, 
customers, regulators and others). The Board 
needs to identify the Company’s stakeholders 
and understand their needs, interests and 
expectations.

Where matters that relate to the Company’s 
impact on society, the communities within 
which it operates, or the environment have the 
SRWHQWLDO�WR�DHFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�DELOLW\�WR�GHOLYHU�
shareholder value over the medium to long-
term, then those matters must be integrated 
into the Company’s strategy and business model. 
Feedback is an essential part of all control 
mechanisms. Systems need to be in place to 
solicit, consider and act on feedback from all 
stakeholder groups.

The Board recognises that the Group’s long-term 
VXFFHVV�LV�UHOLDQW�RQ�WKH�HRUWV�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV��
FRQWUDFWRUV��FXVWRPHUV�DQG�VXSSOLHUV��$V�SDUW�RI�WKH�VWD�
appraisal process, employees are invited into an open 
dialogue and agreement on goals targets, aspirations 
and personal development opportunities.

We engage annually with our Globe and potential Globe 
customers at the Getech Globe user-group meeting, 
which provides valuable insight into our customers’ 
needs. In addition, we request feedback on our products 
and services from our customers.

Feedback is an essential part of all control mechanisms. 
Systems need to be in place to solicit, consider and 
act on feedback from all stakeholder groups. All new 
suppliers and contractors must complete our KYC 
process and all contractors must agree to the terms 
of our anti-bribery policies. Key relationships with 
customers, suppliers, contractors and regulators are 
closely managed by the Executive Directors and the 
Executive Committee.

The Board are appraised of any issues arising. The Board 
also understands that it has a responsibility to consider, 
where practicable, the social, environmental and 
economic impact of its corporate strategy.

As part of our social responsibility and to safeguard our 
employees and contractors, we follow the UK foreign 
RɝFH�DGYLFH�RQ�WUDYHOOLQJ�DQG�ZRUNLQJ�DEURDG�LQ�KLJK�
risk countries and territories. As a Group we aim to 
minimise our carbon footprint; initiatives include the 
LQWURGXFWLRQ�RI�ORZ�HQHUJ\�/('�OLJKWLQJ�LQ�RXU�RɝFHV��
waste recycling and the use of video-conferencing in 
place of international travel where practical.
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QCA Code Principles cont.

Principle Application Compliance

(PEHG�HHFWLYH�
risk management, 
considering both 
opportunities 
and threats, 
throughout the 
organisation

The Board needs to ensure that the Company’s 
ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�IUDPHZRUN�LGHQWLȴHV�DQG�
addresses all relevant risks in order to execute 
and deliver strategy; companies need to consider 
their extended business, including the Company’s 
supply chain, from key suppliers to end-customer.

Setting strategy includes determining the extent  
RI�H[SRVXUH�WR�WKH�LGHQWLȴHG�ULVNV�WKDW�WKH�
Company is able to bear and willing to take  
(risk tolerance and risk appetite).

The Board has an established Audit Committee, a 
summary of which is set out above. Included in the remit 
RI�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�LV�DSSURYDO�RI�VLJQLȴFDQW�QHZ�
contracts, whereby the committee takes into consideration 
the balance of risk and return, opportunity and threat.

The Company receives regular feedback from its external 
auditors on the state of its internal controls. The Board 
maintains a register of risks and publishes an annual 
VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�VLJQLȴFDQW�ULVNV�DQG�XQFHUWDLQWLHV� 
in the Annual Report.

Maintain the 
Board as a 
well-functioning, 
balanced team led 
by the chair

The Board members have a collective responsibility 
and legal obligation to promote the interests of 
the Company and are collectively responsible for 
GHȴQLQJ�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH�DUUDQJHPHQWV��
Ultimate responsibility for the quality of, and 
approach to, corporate governance lies with the 
chair of the Board. The Board (and any committees) 
should be provided with high quality information in 
a timely manner to facilitate proper assessment of 
the matters requiring a decision or insight.

The Board should have an appropriate balance 
between executive and Non-Executive Directors 
and should have at least two independent Non-
Executive Directors. Independence is a Board 
judgement. The Board should be supported by 
committees (eg audit, remuneration, nomination) 
that have the necessary skills and knowledge 
to discharge their duties and responsibilities 
HHFWLYHO\��'LUHFWRUV�PXVW�FRPPLW�WKH�WLPH�
QHFHVVDU\�WR�IXOȴO�WKHLU�UROHV�

The Board is comprised of a Chairman, three Executive 
Directors, and three additional Non-Executive Directors. 
7KH�UROHV�RI�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2ɝFHU�DUH�
clearly separated.

The Chief Executive is responsible for the operational 
management of the business of the Group and for the 
implementation of strategy and policies as agreed by the 
Board. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership 
DQG�HHFWLYH�ZRUNLQJ�RI�WKH�%RDUG��IRU�VHWWLQJ�WKH�%RDUG�
agenda, and ensuring that Directors receive accurate, 
timely and clear information.

The Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board 
to be independent of management and free to exercise 
independence of judgement. A description of the roles  
of the Directors is included on pages 18 and 19.

Ensure that 
between them the 
Directors have 
the necessary 
up-to-date 
experience, skills 
and capabilities

The Board must have an appropriate balance  
RI�VHFWRU��ȴQDQFLDO�DQG�SXEOLF�PDUNHWV�VNLOOV� 
and experience, as well as an appropriate  
balance of personal qualities and capabilities.  
The Board should understand and challenge its 
own diversity, including gender balance, as part  
of its composition.

The Board should not be dominated by one  
person or a group of people. Strong personal 
bonds can be important but can also divide a 
board. As companies evolve, the mix of skills  
and experience required on the Board will change, 
and Board composition will need to evolve to 
UHȵHFW�WKLV�FKDQJH�

Directors who have been appointed to the Company have 
been chosen because of the skills and experience they 
RHU��)XOO�ELRJUDSKLFDO�GHWDLOV�RI�DOO�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�
on pages 18 and 19.

As noted above, the Company has put in place an Audit 
Committee as well as Remuneration and Nomination 
Committees. The responsibilities of each of these 
committees have been summarised on pages 16 and 17.
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Principle Application Compliance

Evaluate Board 
performance 
based on clear  
and relevant 
objectives, seeking 
continuous 
improvement

The Board should regularly review the 
HHFWLYHQHVV�RI�LWV�SHUIRUPDQFH�DV�D�XQLW��DV�
well as that of its committees and the individual 
Directors. The Board performance review may 
be carried out internally or, ideally, externally 
facilitated from time to time.

The review should identify development or 
mentoring needs of individual Directors or the 
wider senior management team. It is healthy 
for membership of the Board to be periodically 
refreshed. Succession planning is a vital task for 
Boards. No member of the Board should become 
indispensable.

The Company undertakes regular monitoring of 
personal and corporate performance using agreed Key 
3HUIRUPDQFH�ΖQGLFDWRUV�DQG�GHWDLOHG�ȴQDQFLDO�UHSRUWV�

Responsibility for assessing and monitoring the 
performance of the Executive Directors lies with the 
Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors.

The Board undertakes an annual Company health-
check, where the Board performs an appraisal of its 
HHFWLYHQHVV�DV�D�ZKROH�

:KHUH�DUHDV�IRU�LPSURYHPHQW�DUH�LGHQWLȴHG��VSHFLȴF�
actions are set, to be completed in a suitable timescale.

Progress of these actions are monitored on a regular 
basis. The Board considers the need for the periodic 
refreshing of its membership, this involves ensuring the 
skillsets provided by the Board members continues to 
be aligned with corporate strategy and risk.

Promote a 
corporate culture 
that is based on 
ethical values and 
behaviours

The Board should embody and promote a 
corporate culture that is based on sound ethical 
values and behaviours and use it as an asset and 
a source of competitive advantage.

The policy set by the Board should be visible in 
the actions and decisions of the chief executive 
and the rest of the management team. Corporate 
values should guide the objectives and strategy 
of the Company.

The culture should be visible in every aspect of 
the business, including recruitment, nominations, 
training and engagement. The performance 
and reward system should endorse the desired 
ethical behaviours across all levels of the 
Company. The corporate culture should be 
recognisable throughout the disclosures in the 
Annual Report, website and any other statements 
issued by the Company.

Getech has a strong ethical culture, which is promoted 
by the actions of the Board and executive team. The 
Group has an anti-bribery policy and has implemented 
adequate procedures described by the Bribery Act 2010.

The Group reports on its compliance to the Board on 
an annual basis. The Group has undertaken a review 
of its requirements under the General Data Protection 
Regulation, implementing appropriate policies, 
procedures and training to ensure it is compliant.
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QCA Code Principles cont.

Principle Application Compliance

Maintain 
governance 
structures and 
processes that 
DUH�ȴW�IRU�SXUSRVH�
and support good 
decision-making  
by the Board

The Company should maintain governance 
structures and processes in line with its corporate 
FXOWXUH�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�LWV�

• size and complexity; and
• capacity, appetite and tolerance for risk.

The governance structures should evolve over time 
in parallel with its objectives, strategy and business 
PRGHO�WR�UHȵHFW�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

Details of the Company’s corporate governance 
arrangements are provided above and include; the 
Board structure and Board member biographies, and 
summaries and terms of reference for the Board sub-
FRPPLWWHHV��$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH��UHPXQHUDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH��
and nomination committee.

The Board believes that an appropriate governance 
structure is in place based on the size, complexity and risk 
tolerance of the Group.

This is monitored by the Board as the Company evolves 
over time to ensure alignment with Group objectives, 
strategy, size and complexity, and changes to risk appetite.

See also Rule 26 disclosures on the Getech website  
(www.getech.com).

Communicate 
how the Company 
is governed and 
is performing 
by maintaining 
a dialogue with 
shareholders and 
other relevant 
stakeholders

A healthy dialogue should exist between the 
Board and all of its stakeholders, including 
shareholders, to enable all interested parties to 
come to informed decisions about the Company. 
In particular, appropriate communication and 
reporting structures should exist between the 
Board and all constituent parts of its shareholder 
EDVH��7KLV�ZLOO�DVVLVW�

• the communication of shareholders’ views to 
the Board; and

• the shareholders’ understanding of the unique 
circumstances and constraints faced by the 
Company.

It should be clear where these communication 
practices are described (Annual Report or website).

The Company encourages two-way communication with 
both its institutional and private investors and responds 
quickly to all queries received.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive talk regularly with 
the Group’s major shareholders and ensures that their 
views are communicated fully to the Board.

The Board recognises the AGM as an important 
opportunity to meet private shareholders. The Directors 
are available to listen to the views of shareholders 
informally immediately following the AGM.

The Board produces a series of updates throughout 
the year relating to Company performance, these are 
distributed by RNS and RNS reach.

Copies of all RNS announcements can also be found on 
the investor section of the website, here.

The resolutions passed following the most recent AGM  
can be found on the Getech website (www.getech.com).

http://www.getech.com
http://www.getech.com
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Opinion

2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�XQPRGLȴHG
:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�*HWHFK�*URXS�3OF��WKH�Ȇ3DUHQW�FRPSDQ\ȇ��DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV��WKH�Ȇ*URXSȇ��IRU�WKH�\HDU�
ended 31 December 2018, which comprise the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated statement of 
ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ȵRZV��WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\��WKH�3DUHQW�FRPSDQ\�
EDODQFH�VKHHW��WKH�3DUHQW�FRPSDQ\�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�HTXLW\�DQG�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�D�VXPPDU\�RI�
VLJQLȴFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�IUDPHZRUN�WKDW�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�JURXS�ȴQDQFLDO�
statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The 
ȴQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�IUDPHZRUN�WKDW�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�DSSOLFDEOH�
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosures Framework’ 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

ΖQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�
• WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�WKH�JURXSȇV�DQG�RI�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\ȇV�DDLUV�DV�DW� 

���'HFHPEHU������DQG�RI�WKH�JURXSȇV�SURȴW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�HQGHG�
• WKH�JURXS�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SURSHUO\�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Ζ)56V�DV�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�(XURSHDQ�8QLRQ�
• WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SURSHUO\�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�*HQHUDOO\�$FFHSWHG�

Accounting Practice; and
• WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������

%DVLV�IRU�RSLQLRQ
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities 
XQGHU�WKRVH�VWDQGDUGV�DUH�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRUȇV�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWVȇ�VHFWLRQ�RI�RXU�
report. We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to  
RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�8.��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�)5&ȇV�(WKLFDO�6WDQGDUG�DV�DSSOLHG�WR�OLVWHG�HQWLWLHV��DQG�ZH�KDYH�IXOȴOOHG�
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
VXɝFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

Conclusions relating to going concern
:H�KDYH�QRWKLQJ�WR�UHSRUW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PDWWHUV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�Ζ6$V��8.��UHTXLUH�XV�WR�UHSRUW�WR�\RX�ZKHUH�

• WKH�'LUHFWRUVȇ�XVH�RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�QRW�DSSURSULDWH��RU
• WKH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�QRW�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQ\�LGHQWLȴHG�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLȴFDQW�GRXEW�

about the Group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at  
OHDVW�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�ZKHQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�

2YHUYLHZ�RI�RXU�DXGLW�DSSURDFK
• 2YHUDOO�PDWHULDOLW\��e��������ZKLFK�UHSUHVHQWV������RI�WKH�JURXSȇV�WRWDO�UHYHQXHV�
• .H\�DXGLW�PDWWHUV�ZHUH�LGHQWLȴHG�DV�UHYHQXH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�JRRGZLOO�DQG�RWKHU�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV��DQG
• We have assessed the components within the group by considering each as a percentage of Group’s total assets, liabilities, 

UHYHQXHV�DQG�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[��DQG�SHUIRUPHG�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�IXOO�VFRSH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�DXGLWV�DQG�VSHFLȴF�VFRSH� 
audit procedures.
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Key audit matters
.H\�DXGLW�PDWWHUV�DUH�WKRVH�PDWWHUV�WKDW��LQ�RXU�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJHPHQW��ZHUH�RI�PRVW�VLJQLȴFDQFH�LQ�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�DQG�LQFOXGH�WKH�PRVW�VLJQLȴFDQW�DVVHVVHG�ULVNV�RI�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�RU�QRW�GXH�WR�IUDXG��WKDW�ZH�
LGHQWLȴHG��7KHVH�PDWWHUV�LQFOXGHG�WKRVH�WKDW�KDG�WKH�JUHDWHVW�HHFW�RQ��WKH�RYHUDOO�DXGLW�VWUDWHJ\��WKH�DOORFDWLRQ�RI�UHVRXUFHV�LQ�WKH�DXGLW��
DQG�GLUHFWLQJ�WKH�HRUWV�RI�WKH�HQJDJHPHQW�WHDP��7KHVH�PDWWHUV�ZHUH�DGGUHVVHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWH[W�RI�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter — Group How the matter was addressed in the audit — Group

Risk 1 — Revenue recognition
There is a risk that revenue from sales of products 
and services may be misstated due to the improper 
recognition of revenue.

This risk is heightened based on the level of revenue 
which is accrued or deferred based on underlying 
contracts. In respect of revenue recognised for ongoing 
projects such as the Globe project, there is a risk that 
revenue is recognised before the risk and rewards 
of ownership have transferred to the customer, and 
performance obligations have been met.

As there are contractual arrangements with customers, 
there is a risk that revenue is misstated as each 
contract’s outcome and stage of completion, and hence 
revenue recognition, requires professional judgement.

:H�WKHUHIRUH�LGHQWLȴHG�UHYHQXH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DV�D�
VLJQLȴFDQW�ULVN��ZKLFK�ZDV�RQH�RI�WKH�PRVW�VLJQLȴFDQW�
assessed risks of material misstatement.

2XU�DXGLW�ZRUN�LQFOXGHG��EXW�ZDV�QRW�UHVWULFWHG�WR�

• Walkthrough of the systems and controls in place around the recording 
RI�UHYHQXH��DQG�WHVWLQJ�RI�WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO�HHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�FRQWUROV�
where the documentation of these could be evidenced.

• Evaluation of the revenue recognition policies for appropriateness with 
IFRS 15, which was adopted in the year, and of the accounts disclosures 
relating to the adoption of the standard.

• Testing a sample of revenue transactions in respect of sale of products 
and provision of services and assessing them against supporting 
documentation to determine whether revenue has been appropriately 
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

• Testing of transactions around the year end to determine the 
DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�FRUUHFW�FXW�R�SURFHGXUHV��LQFOXGLQJ�DVVHVVPHQW 
of appropriate deferral of revenue.

• Comparison of current year revenue with that from the prior period, 
and obtaining and corroborating the explanations received for 
VLJQLȴFDQW�DQG�XQXVXDO�YDULDQFHV��

The group’s accounting policy on revenue recognition and the key sources 
of estimation uncertainty are shown in Notes 3.2 and 3.17 in the Summary 
RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�VHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� 
and related disclosures are included in Note 4 to the consolidated  
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Key observations
%DVHG�RQ�RXU�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG��ZH�KDYH�QRW�LGHQWLȴHG�DQ\�PDWHULDO�
misstatements with respect to revenue recognition.

5LVN���ȃ�&DUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�JRRGZLOO�DQG� 
other intangible assets
:LWKLQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�
DUH�VLJQLȴFDQW�EDODQFHV�IRU�JRRGZLOO�DQG�RWKHU�LQWDQJLEOH�
assets arising from both previous acquisition activity and 
internal development work.

7KHVH�EDODQFHV�UHSUHVHQW�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�
WRWDO�DVVHWV�ȴJXUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�
ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG��LI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�
not performing in line with forecast, the consolidated 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DW�ULVN�RI�EHLQJ�PDWHULDOO\�
misstated due to unrecorded impairment. Further, the 
forward forecasts for the group include a degree of 
estimation as to future projects to be delivered and the 
results to be derived therefrom.

:H�WKHUHIRUH�LGHQWLȴHG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�JRRGZLOO�
DQG�RWKHU�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�DV�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�ULVN��ZKLFK�
ZDV�RQH�RI�WKH�PRVW�VLJQLȴFDQW�DVVHVVHG�ULVNV�RI�
material misstatement.

2XU�DXGLW�ZRUN�LQFOXGHG��EXW�ZDV�QRW�UHVWULFWHG�WR�

• Walkthrough of the systems and controls in place around the internal 
assessment of carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets.

• Determination of whether the assigned life of each applicable intangible 
asset remains appropriate.

• Testing on a sample basis, of additions to intangible assets during the year 
to supporting documentation, including work records and timesheets.

• Development of an expectation of amortisation expense  
for the year and comparison against the expense recorded.

• Assessment and challenge of management prepared reviews  
of the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets. Our challenge 
focussed around the assumptions regarding future revenues and  
FDVK�ȵRZV�IURP�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLWV�UHODWLYH�WR�KLVWRULF�
performance, prospects of future commercial projects, and assessment 
of the growth rates and discount rates applied. 

Key observations
%DVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW�ZRUN�ZH�KDYH�QRW�LGHQWLȴHG�DQ\�PDWHULDO�
misstatements in the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets  
LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�
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2XU�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�PDWHULDOLW\
:H�GHȴQH�PDWHULDOLW\�DV�WKH�PDJQLWXGH�RI�PLVVWDWHPHQW�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�PDNHV�LW�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQV� 
RI�D�UHDVRQDEO\�NQRZOHGJHDEOH�SHUVRQ�ZRXOG�EH�FKDQJHG�RU�LQȵXHQFHG��:H�XVH�PDWHULDOLW\�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�QDWXUH��WLPLQJ�DQG�
extent of our audit work and in evaluating the results of that work. 
0DWHULDOLW\�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�DV�IROORZV�

Materiality 
measure

Group Parent

Financial statements  
as a whole

e�������ZKLFK�LV������RI�WRWDO�UHYHQXHV��7KLV�
benchmark is considered the most appropriate 
because it is the most consistent balance in the 
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RYHU�UHFHQW�\HDUV�DQG�LV� 
a key focus of the Group. 
Materiality for the current year is lower than the 
level that we determined for the period ended 
31 December 2017 due to the prior period being 
EDVHG�RQ�QRUPDOLVHG�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�RYHU�WKH�
prior 3 years. Given the inconsistency of this 
balance over recent years within the Group, 
the use of revenues for the current year was 
considered to be more appropriate.

e�������ZKLFK�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�3DUHQW�FRPSDQ\�
SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[��FDSSHG�DW�����RI�*URXS�
materiality. This benchmark was considered to  
be most appropriate because the Parent 
company is also the largest trading company, 
WKHUHIRUH�WKH�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�EDVLV�HQVXUHV�WKDW�
PDWHULDOLW\�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�PRVW�LPSRUWDQW�ȴJXUH�
WR�WKH�XVHUV�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
Materiality for the current year is lower than the 
level that we determined for the period ended 
31 December 2017 due to the reduction in the 
Group materiality level.

Performance materiality 
used to drive the extent 
of our testing

����RI�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�PDWHULDOLW\� ����RI�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�PDWHULDOLW\�

Communication of 
misstatements to the 
audit committee

e������DQG�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�EHORZ�WKDW� 
threshold that, in our view, warrant reporting  
on qualitative grounds.

e������DQG�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�EHORZ�WKDW� 
threshold that, in our view, warrant reporting  
on qualitative grounds.

The graph below illustrates how performance materiality interacts with our overall materiality and the tolerance for potential 
uncorrected misstatements.

 
Overall materiality — group Overall materiality — parent

Tolerance for potential 
uncorrected mistatements
Performance materiality

Tolerance for potential 
uncorrected mistatements
Performance materiality

25% 25%

75% 75%
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$Q�RYHUYLHZ�RI�WKH�VFRSH�RI�RXU�DXGLW
Our audit approach was a risk-based approach founded on a thorough understanding of the Group’s business, its environment and risk 
SURȴOH�DQG�LQ�SDUWLFXODU�LQFOXGHG�

• 'RFXPHQWLQJ�DQG�HYDOXDWLQJ�WKH�SURFHVVHV�DQG�FRQWUROV�FRYHULQJ�WKH�.H\�$XGLW�0DWWHUV�DQG�RWKHU�VLJQLȴFDQW�ULVNV�
• (YDOXDWLRQ�E\�WKH�JURXS�DXGLW�WHDP�RI�LGHQWLȴHG�FRPSRQHQWV�WR�DVVHVV�WKH�VLJQLȴFDQFH�RI�WKDW�FRPSRQHQW�DQG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�

planned audit response based on a measure of materiality considering each as a percentage of the Group’s total assets, liabilities, 
UHYHQXHV�DQG�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�

• )RU�WKRVH�FRPSRQHQWV�WKDW�ZHUH�HYDOXDWHG�DV�VLJQLȴFDQW�FRPSRQHQWV��D�IXOO�VFRSH�DXGLW�DSSURDFK�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKHLU�
relative materiality to the Group and our assessment of the audit risk;

• :H�SHUIRUPHG�D�IXOO�VFRSH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\��*HWHFK�*URXS�SOF�DQG�RI�WKH�*URXSȇV�RSHUDWLRQV�
WKURXJKRXW�WKH�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP��7KH�*URXSȇV�FRPSRQHQW�LQ�WKH�86�ZDV�VXEMHFW�WR�VSHFLȴF�VFRSH�SURFHGXUHV�RYHU�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�
and income statement, performed taking into account group materiality and group performance materiality, with a focus on Key audit 
PDWWHUV�DQG�RWKHU�VLJQLȴFDQW�ULVNV�DQG�WKH�VLJQLȴFDQFH�WR�WKH�*URXSȇV�EDODQFHV�

• The components subject to a full scope audit approach cover 83% of the consolidated revenues, 92% of consolidated assets and 77% 
RI�WRWDO�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[��ZLWK�WKH�FRPSRQHQW�VXEMHFW�WR�D�VSHFLȴF�VFRSH�DSSURDFK�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�����RI�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�UHYHQXHV�� 
���RI�FRQVROLGDWHG�DVVHWV�DQG�����RI�WRWDO�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�

• The accounting functions are performed centrally for all entities. All audit work has been undertaken by the Group audit team.

2WKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, 
RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�RXU�DXGLWRUȇV�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ��2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�GRHV�QRW�FRYHU�WKH�RWKHU�
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

ΖQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�WR�UHDG�WKH�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG��LQ�GRLQJ�VR��FRQVLGHU�
ZKHWKHU�WKH�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�PDWHULDOO\�LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RU�RXU�NQRZOHGJH�REWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�DXGLW�RU�RWKHUZLVH�
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�LV�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RU�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�� 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required  
to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

2XU�RSLQLRQ�RQ�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�SUHVFULEHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������LV�XQPRGLȴHG
ΖQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ZRUN�XQGHUWDNHQ�LQ�WKH�FRXUVH�RI�WKH�DXGLW�

• WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JLYHQ�LQ�WKH�VWUDWHJLF�UHSRUW�DQG�WKH�'LUHFWRUVȇ�UHSRUW�IRU�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�\HDU�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�
SUHSDUHG�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DQG

• the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course  
RI�WKH�DXGLW��ZH�KDYH�QRW�LGHQWLȴHG�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�VWUDWHJLF�UHSRUW�RU�WKH�'LUHFWRUVȇ�UHSRUW�

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you  
LI��LQ�RXU�RSLQLRQ�

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or

• WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�QRW�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�DQG�UHWXUQV��RU
• FHUWDLQ�GLVFORVXUHV�RI�'LUHFWRUVȇ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�VSHFLȴHG�E\�ODZ�DUH�QRW�PDGH��RU
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit 
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5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�'LUHFWRUV�IRU�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 20 and 21 the Directors are responsible for the 
SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�IRU�EHLQJ�VDWLVȴHG�WKDW�WKH\�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ��DQG�IRU�VXFK�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�DV�WKH�
'LUHFWRUV�GHWHUPLQH�LV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQDEOH�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�
due to fraud or error.

ΖQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�JURXSȇV�DQG�WKH�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\ȇV�DELOLW\�
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

$XGLWRUȇV�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
2XU�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�REWDLQ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�D�ZKROH�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
UHDVRQDEO\�EH�H[SHFWHG�WR�LQȵXHQFH�WKH�HFRQRPLF�GHFLVLRQV�RI�XVHUV�WDNHQ�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

$�IXUWKHU�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�&RXQFLOȇV�
ZHEVLWH�DW��ZZZ�IUF�RUJ�XN�DXGLWRUVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV��7KLV�GHVFULSWLRQ�IRUPV�SDUW�RI�RXU�DXGLWRUȇV�UHSRUW�

8VH�RI�RXU�UHSRUW
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

Victoria McLoughlin BA FCA
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds

3 May 2019

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2018

Note

12 months 
ended 31  
Dec 2018

£’000

17 months 
ended 31  
Dec 2017
(Restated)

eȇ���

12 months 
ended 31  
Dec 2017

(Unaudited)
eȇ���

Revenue 4 8,019 10,946 7,215
Cost of sales (4,231) (5,801) (3,556)
Exceptional inventory impairments — (461) (461)

*URVV�SURȴW� 4 3,788 4,684 3,198
Administrative expenses (3,341) (4,858) (3,514)

2SHUDWLQJ�SURȴW��ORVV��EHIRUH�H[FHSWLRQDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�H[SHQVHV 447 (174) (316)

([FHSWLRQDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�H[SHQVHV�
Restructure costs (197) (487) (113)

2SHUDWLQJ��ORVV��SURȴW 5 250 (661) (429)
Finance income 7 — 2 —
Finance costs 8 (25) (34) (30)

3URȴW��/RVV��EHIRUH�WD[� 225 (693) (459)
Income tax credit 9 283 653 517

3URȴW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\ 508 (40) 58
Other comprehensive income 
ΖWHPV�WKDW�PD\�EH�UHFODVVLȴHG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��
&XUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQ�GLHUHQFHV�RQ�WUDQVODWLRQ�RI�IRUHLJQ�RSHUDWLRQV� 36 (10) 7

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DWWULEXWDEOH� 
WR�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\� 544 (50) 65

Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share 11 1.35p (0.11)p 0.15p
Diluted earnings per share 11 1.33p (0.11)p 0.15p

All activities relate to continuing operations. 

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�1RWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018 &RPSDQ\�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�QXPEHU����������

Note
31 Dec 2018

£’000

31 Dec 2017
(Restated)

eȇ���

31 Jul 2016
(Restated)

eȇ���

Non-current assets 
Goodwill 12 3,428 3,428 3,428
Intangible assets 13 4,018 3,827 4,015
Property, plant and equipment 14 3,086 2,499 2,691
Deferred tax assets 9 305 207 283

10,837 9,961 10,417

Current assets 
Trade and other receivables 15 4,941 2,121 3,372
Current tax assets 104 490 434
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,400 2,393 2,788

6,445 5,004 6,594

Total assets 17,282 14,965 17,011

Current liabilities 
Borrowings 17 113 279 133
Trade and other payables 18 2,906 1,958 3,549
Current tax liabilities — — 13

3,019 2,237 3,695

Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings 17 819 355 767
Trade and other payables 18 565 — —
Deferred tax liabilities 9 137 194 387

1,521 549 1,154

Total liabilities 4,540 2,786 4,849

Net assets 12,742 12,179 12,162

(TXLW\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�
Share capital 21 94 94 94
Share premium account 3,053 3,053 3,053
Merger relief reserve 2,407 2,407 2,407
Share option reserve 183 164 173
Currency translation reserve 25 (11) (1)
Retained earnings 6,980 6,472 6,436

Total equity 12,742 12,179 12,162

7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����ZHUH�DSSURYHG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RQ���0D\�������

Dr Stuart Paton 
Non-executive Chairman

3 May 2019

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�1RWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2018

Note

12 months 
ended

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months 
ended

31 Dec 2017
(Restated)

eȇ���

12 months 
ended

31 Dec 2017
(unaudited)

eȇ���

&DVK�ȵRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�
3URȴW��ORVV��EHIRUH�WD[� 225 (693) (459)
Share-based payment charge 19 67 44
Depreciation and amortisation charges 13/14 820 1,306 813
Impairment of intangible assets — 700 661
/RVV�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�ȴ[HG�DVVHWV — 11 —
Finance income — (2) —
Finance costs 25 34 31
Exchange adjustments (16) (7) 18

&DVK�LQȵRZ�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�EHIRUH�ZRUNLQJ� 
capital movement 1,073 1,416 1,108
0RYHPHQW�LQ�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 15 (2,820) 1,251 919
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 18 901 (1,091) (447)

&DVK��XVHG�LQ��JHQHUDWHG�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV� (846) 1,576 1,580
Income taxes refunded 514 467 437

1HW�FDVK��XVHG�LQ��JHQHUDWHG�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� (332) 2,043 2,017

&DVK�ȵRZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (78) (54) (9)
Development costs capitalised 13 (861) (1,154) (804)
Capitalised cost of Reports 13 (13) (429) (427)
Acquisition costs, net of cash received — (500) (400)
Interest received — 2 —

Net cash used in investing activities (952) (2,135) (1,640)

&DVK�ȵRZV�IURP�ȴQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�
Receipt of new loan 950 — —
Repayment of long-term borrowings (652) (266) (266)
Repayment of lease liabilities (29) — —
Interest paid (25) (34) (31)

1HW�FDVK�JHQHUDWHG�IURP��XVHG�LQ��ȴQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� 244 (300) (297)

1HW��GHFUHDVH��LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� (1,040) (392) 80
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�SHULRG� 2,393 2,788 2,317
Exchange adjustments to cash and cash equivalents  
at beginning of period 47 (3) (4)

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�SHULRG� 16 1,400 2,393 2,393

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�1RWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2018

Share
capital
eȇ����

Share
premium 

account
eȇ����

Merger
relief

reserve
eȇ���

Share
option

reserve
eȇ����

Currency
translation

reserve
eȇ����

Retained
earnings 

eȇ����
Total 
eȇ����

At 31 July 2016 94 3,053 2,407 173 (1) 6,436 12,162

Transfer of reserves — — — (76) — 76 —
Share-based payment charge — — — 67 — — 67

Transactions with owners — — — (9) — 76 67

3URȴW�IRU�WKH�SHULRG — — — — — (40) (40)
Other comprehensive income
&XUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQ�GLHUHQFHV — — — — (10) — (10)
Total comprehensive income  
for the period — — — — (10) (40) (50)

At 31 December 2017 94 3,053 2,407 164 (11) 6,472 12,179

Transfer of reserves — — — — — — —
Share-based payment charge — — — 19 — — 19

Transactions with owners — — — 19 — — 19

3URȴW�IRU�WKH�\HDU — — — — — 508 508

Other comprehensive income
&XUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQ�GLHUHQFHV — — — — 36 — 36

Total comprehensive income  
for the year — — — — 36 508 544

At 31 December 2018 94 3,053 2,407 183 25 6,980 12,742

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�1RWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

��&RUSRUDWH�ΖQIRUPDWLRQ
Getech Group plc (the ‘Company’ and ultimate Parent of the Group) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in England 
DQG�:DOHV��7KH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�UHJLVWHUHG�RɝFH�DQG�SULQFLSDO�SODFH�RI�EXVLQHVV�LV�.LWVRQ�+RXVH��(OPHWH�+DOO��(OPHWH�/DQH��/HHGV��/6���/-�

The principal activity of the Group is to provide geoscience and geospatial products and services that companies and governments use  
to de-risk their exploration programmes and improve their management of natural resources.

��%DVLV�RI�3UHSDUDWLRQ
7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�ΖQWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��Ζ)56��DV�LVVXHG�
by the International Accounting Standards Body and adopted by the European Union (EU), interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), and the Companies Act 2006 which is applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�RQ�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�XQGHU�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�FRQYHQWLRQ�H[FHSW�IRU�FHUWDLQ�LWHPV�PHDVXUHG� 
DW�IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW�WKRXVDQG�SRXQGV��eȇ�����H[FHSW�DV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG�

Going Concern
7KH�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�LQVWLWXWHG�UHJXODU�UHYLHZV�RI�WUDGLQJ�DQG�FDVK�ȵRZ�IRUHFDVWV�DQG�KDYH�FRQVLGHUHG�WKH�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�WKHVH�IRUHFDVWV� 
ZLWK�UHJDUGV�WR�GLHUHQW�DVVXPSWLRQV�DERXW�IXWXUH�LQFRPH�DQG�FRVWV��:LWK�FRQWLQXHG�SURVSHFWV�IRU�SURȴWDEOH�WUDGLQJ��WKH�'LUHFWRUV� 
DUH�IXOO\�VDWLVȴHG�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�LV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�DQG�ZLOO�EH�DEOH�WR�FRQWLQXH�WUDGLQJ�IRU�WKH�IRUHVHHDEOH�IXWXUH�

2.1 New standards adopted as at 1 January 2018
Ζ)56����Ȇ5HYHQXH�IURP�&RQWUDFWV�ZLWK�&XVWRPHUVȇ
Ζ)56����Ȇ5HYHQXH�IURP�&RQWUDFWV�ZLWK�&XVWRPHUVȇ�DQG�WKH�UHODWHG�Ȇ&ODULȴFDWLRQV�WR�Ζ)56����5HYHQXH�IURP�&RQWUDFWV�ZLWK�&XVWRPHUVȇ�
(hereinafter referred to as ‘IFRS 15’) replace IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’, and several revenue-related Interpretations. 
7KH�QHZ�6WDQGDUG�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�UHWURVSHFWLYHO\�ZLWKRXW�UHVWDWHPHQW��ZLWK�WKH�FXPXODWLYH�HHFW�RI�LQLWLDO�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In accordance with the transition guidance, IFRS 15 has only 
been applied to contracts that are incomplete as at 1 January 2018. Our review of prior period contracts resulted in no adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
Many of the Group’s contracts comprise a variety of performance obligations including, but not limited to, hardware, software, elements  
of design and customisation, after-sales services, and installation. Under IFRS 15, the Group must evaluate the separability of the promised 
JRRGV�RU�VHUYLFHV�EDVHG�RQ�ZKHWKHU�WKH\�DUH�ȆGLVWLQFWȇ��$�SURPLVHG�JRRG�RU�VHUYLFH�LV�ȆGLVWLQFWȇ�LI�ERWK�

• WKH�FXVWRPHU�EHQHȴWV�IURP�WKH�LWHP�HLWKHU�RQ�LWV�RZQ�RU�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�RWKHU�UHDGLO\�DYDLODEOH�UHVRXUFHV��DQG
• LW�LV�ȆVHSDUDWHO\�LGHQWLȴDEOHȇ��LH�WKH�*URXS�GRHV�QRW�SURYLGH�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�VHUYLFH�LQWHJUDWLQJ��PRGLI\LQJ�RU�FXVWRPLVLQJ�LW��

:KLOVW�WKLV�UHSUHVHQWV�VLJQLȴFDQW�QHZ�JXLGDQFH��WKH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�QHZ�JXLGDQFH�GLG�QRW�KDYH�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�WLPLQJ� 
or amount of revenue recognised by the Group in any year.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
Ζ)56���UHSODFHV�Ζ$6����Ȇ)LQDQFLDO�ΖQVWUXPHQWV��5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�0HDVXUHPHQWȇ��ΖW�PDNHV�PDMRU�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�SUHYLRXV�JXLGDQFH�RQ�WKH�
FODVVLȴFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�LQWURGXFHV�DQ�ȆH[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVȇ�PRGHO�IRU�WKH�LPSDLUPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��
:KHQ�DGRSWLQJ�Ζ)56����WKH�*URXS�KDV�DSSOLHG�WUDQVLWLRQDO�UHOLHI�DQG�RSWHG�QRW�WR�UHVWDWH�SULRU�SHULRGV��'LHUHQFHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKH�
DGRSWLRQ�RI�Ζ)56���LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�FODVVLȴFDWLRQ��PHDVXUHPHQW��DQG�LPSDLUPHQW�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV�

7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�FKDQJHV�LQ�FODVVLȴFDWLRQ�RU�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�Ζ)56���

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and three related Interpretations. It completes the IASB’s long running project to overhaul lease 
DFFRXQWLQJ��/HDVHV�ZLOO�EH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�D�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�DQG�D�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\�� 
There are two important reliefs provided by IFRS 16 for assets of low value and short-term leases of less than 12 months.

Ζ)56����LV�HHFWLYH�IURP�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������7KH�*URXS�KDYH�GHFLGHG�WR�HDUO\�DGRSW�XVLQJ�WKH�6WDQGDUGȇV�
PRGLȴHG�UHWURVSHFWLYH�DSSURDFK��8QGHU�WKLV�DSSURDFK�WKH�FXPXODWLYH�HHFW�RI�LQLWLDOO\�DSSO\LQJ�Ζ)56����LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�DGMXVWPHQW� 
to equity at the date of initial application. Comparative information is not restated.

The Group did not hold any leases in the prior year with a term of over 12 months and as a result there is no adjustment to equity  
as at 1 January 2018.

$V�D�UHVXOW�RI�LPSOHPHQWLQJ�Ζ)56�����OHDVHV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�D�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�DQG� 
D�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\��7KHUH�DUH�QR�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�LPSDFWV�RQ�WKH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

maynard paton


maynard paton


maynard paton




37Getech Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
Strategic Report

G
overnance

Financial Statem
ents

��%DVLV�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ�FRQW�� 
2.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet applied
7KH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV��ZKLFK�DUH�\HW�WR�EHFRPH�PDQGDWRU\�DQG�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�UHOHYDQW�WR�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV��KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH������ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�Ʌ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7KH�*URXS�GRHV�QRW�DQWLFLSDWH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IURP�WKH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DERYH�IXWXUH�
standards.

��6XPPDU\�RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV
����%DVLV�RI�&RQVROLGDWLRQ
7KH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQVROLGDWH�WKRVH�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�DQG�RI�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�XQGHUWDNLQJV�GUDZQ�XS�WR� 
31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to  
JRYHUQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�SROLFLHV�RI�DQ�HQWLW\�WR�REWDLQ�EHQHȴWV�IURP�LWV�DFWLYLWLHV��

$OO�LQWUD�*URXS�WUDQVDFWLRQV��EDODQFHV��LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DUH�HOLPLQDWHG�RQ�FRQVROLGDWLRQ��$PRXQWV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted  
by the Group. 

3.2 Revenue
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 and its principles. Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received  
or receivable by the Group for products and services provided, excluding VAT and comparable overseas taxes. Typical invoice payment 
terms are 30 days for all categories of revenue.

5HYHQXH�IURP�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�IDOOV�LQWR�WKH�IRXU�FDWHJRULHV�EHORZ�

Consultancy services
The Group provides various consulting services to its customers. Revenue from these services is recognised on a time-and-materials 
basis plus a margin as the services are provided. Customers are invoiced monthly as work progresses.

7KH�*URXS�DOVR�SURYLGHV�RXWVRXUFLQJ�VHUYLFHV�IRU�D�ȴ[HG�IHH�IRU�DQ�DJUHHG�SHULRG��$V�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�ZRUN�UHTXLUHG�WR�SHUIRUP�WKHVH�
VHUYLFHV�GRHV�QRW�YDU\�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�IURP�PRQWK�WR�PRQWK��UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�D�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�

This revenue accounting policy is applicable for revenues from Government Advisory Services, Geoscience Services and Geospatial 
Solutions. 

Multiclient products
)RU�VDOHV�RI�GDWD�DQG�FRPSOHWHG�SURGXFWV��UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�
dispatch unless otherwise agreed.

This revenue accounting policy is applicable for revenues from Geophysical Data, Globe and Regional Reports.

Multiple element contracts
:KHUH�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�PXOWLSOH�HOHPHQW�SURGXFWV�ZLWK�VWDJHG�GHOLYHUDEOHV�LQYROYH�GHOLYHU\�RI�VHYHUDO�GLHUHQW�HOHPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�IXOO\�
delivered or performed by the year–end, revenue is recognised based on the proportion of the fair value of the elements delivered to 
the fair value of the respective overall contracts. Where the outcome of contracts that are long-term in nature and contracts for ongoing 
deliverables cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Standard or Interpretation
(8�HHFWLYH�GDWH

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2019

$PHQGPHQWV�WR�Ζ)56����3UHSD\PHQW�)HDWXUHV�ZLWK�1HJDWLYH�&RPSHQVDWLRQ 1 January 2019

$PHQGPHQWV�WR�Ζ)56����&ODVVLȴFDWLRQ�DQG�0HDVXUHPHQW�RI�6KDUH�EDVHG�3D\PHQW�7UDQVDFWLRQV 1 January 2019
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��6XPPDU\�RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�FRQW��
3.2 Revenue cont.
Multiple element contracts cont.
5HYHQXH�IURP�PXOWLSOH�HOHPHQW�FRQWUDFWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DIWHU�VHSDUDWLQJ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQFRPH�DV�IROORZV�

• &RPSOHWHG�SURMHFW�HOHPHQWV�DQG�VSHFLȴF�UHSRUWV�WKDW�DUH�LPPHGLDWHO\�GHOLYHUDEOH�ȃ�UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�
REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�GLVSDWFK�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�DJUHHG

• Service elements of the contract — revenue is recognised in line with the accounting treatment for consultancy services
• Project elements that are to be delivered from development work that is yet to be completed — revenue is recognised when the 

SHUIRUPDQFH�REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�GLVSDWFK�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�DJUHHG

6RIWZDUH�OLFHQFHV
&XVWRPHUV�VXEVFULEH�WR�*HWHFKȇV�VRIWZDUH�OLFHQFHV��XVXDOO\�RYHU�D����PRQWK�WHUP��7KH�FXVWRPHU�KDV�WKH�ULJKWV�WR�DOO�RI�WKH�EHQHȴWV�
provided by the product over the term of the licence, as such, revenue is recognised over the term of the licence. The balance of the 
revenue invoiced is deferred.

This revenue accounting policy is applicable for revenues from Geospatial Solutions Software.

3.3 Foreign Currency Translation
7KH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�SRXQG�VWHUOLQJ��ZKLFK�LV�DOVR�WKH�IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\��

Where supplies are obtained, or sales are made on terms denominated in foreign currency, such transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated  
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains or losses arising  
RQ�WKH�VHWWOHPHQW�RU�WUDQVODWLRQ�RI�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas subsidiary undertaking are translated into the presentation currency using exchange 
UDWHV�SUHYDLOLQJ�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG��7UDQVODWLRQ�GLHUHQFHV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�IRUHLJQ�VXEVLGLDU\�
are accounted for in the Group’s currency translation reserve within equity. Income and expenses of this undertaking are translated  
DW�WKH�DYHUDJH�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�WKDW�DSSUR[LPDWHV�WR�WKH�DFWXDO�UDWHV�RQ�WUDQVDFWLRQ�GDWHV��([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV�DULVLQJ�� 
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and the Group’s currency translation reserve. 

����(PSOR\HH�%HQHȴWV
Pension schemes 
7KH�*URXS�RSHUDWHV�GHȴQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SHQVLRQ�VFKHPHV��7KH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�VFKHPHV�DUH�KHOG�VHSDUDWHO\�IURP�WKH�*URXS�LQ�DQ�
independently administered fund. The pension charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. 

Share options 
:KHUH�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�DUH�JUDQWHG��D�FKDUJH�LV�PDGH�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�DQG�D�UHVHUYH�LV�FUHDWHG�WR�UHFRUG�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�DZDUGV�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Ζ)56���Ȇ6KDUH�EDVHG�3D\PHQWȇ��$�FKDUJH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�JUDQWHG�EDVHG�RQ�
the fair value (the economic value) of the grant, measured at the grant date. The charge is spread over the vesting period. The valuation 
methodology takes into account assumptions and estimates of share price volatility, the future risk-free interest rate and exercise 
behaviour, and is based on the Black Scholes method. When share options are exercised, there is a transfer from the share option  
reserve to retained earnings. 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of share options that are expected to vest, taking into 
DFFRXQW�WKRVH�WKDW�KDYH�ODSVHG�RU�EHHQ�FDQFHOOHG��ΖW�UHFRJQLVHV�WKH�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�UHYLVLRQ�WR�RULJLQDO�HVWLPDWHV��LI�DQ\��LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��ZLWK�
D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�VKDUH�RSWLRQ�UHVHUYH��ΖI�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�DUH�PRGLȴHG�EHIRUH�WKH\�YHVW��WKH�
FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�VKDUH�RSWLRQV��PHDVXUHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�EHIRUH�DQG�DIWHU�WKH�PRGLȴFDWLRQ��LV�FKDUJHG�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�RYHU�WKH�
remaining vesting period. 

3.5 Research
5HVHDUFK�H[SHQGLWXUH�LV�FKDUJHG�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�LW�LV�LQFXUUHG��

����5LJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV�DQG�OHDVH�OLDELOLWLHV
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying the right 
WR�FRQWURO�WKH�XVH�RI�DQ�LGHQWLȴHG�DVVHW�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI�WLPH��7KH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�GDWH�LV�WKH�GDWH�RQ�ZKLFK�D�OHVVRU�PDNHV�DQ�XQGHUO\LQJ�
asset available for use.

7KH�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�FRVW��ZKLFK�FRPSULVHV�

• The amount of initial measurement of the lease liability;
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives;
• any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
• an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying assets or restoring the site on which  

the assets are located.
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����5LJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV�DQG�OHDVH�OLDELOLWLHV�FRQW�
After the commencement date of the right-to-use assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the life of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments  
are discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate (3.5%), or the rate implicit in the lease contract.

$IWHU�WKH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�GDWH��WKH�*URXS�PHDVXUHV�WKH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\�E\�

• ΖQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�WR�UHȵHFW�LQWHUHVW�RQ�WKH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\��DQG
• UHGXFLQJ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�WR�UHȵHFW�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�PDGH�

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at acquisition cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated residual value of all property, plant and equipment by equal 
LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU�WKHLU�HVWLPDWHG�XVHIXO�HFRQRPLF�OLYHV�DW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UDWHV�

Freehold property – 2% per annum on cost
Plant and equipment – 33.3% and 25% per annum on cost

Material residual value and useful life estimates are updated as required, but at least annually. Freehold land is carried at acquisition 
FRVW��$V�QR�ȴQLWH�XVHIXO�OLIH�IRU�ODQG�FDQ�EH�GHWHUPLQHG��UHODWHG�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�DUH�QRW�GHSUHFLDWHG��

3.8 Intangible Assets
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process meets the recognition criteria for development 
expenditure as set out in IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’. The expenditure capitalised includes all directly attributable costs, from the date 
that the intangible asset meets the recognition criteria, necessary to create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management. 

'HYHORSPHQW�H[SHQGLWXUH�LV�LGHQWLȴHG�DV�EHLQJ�FDSLWDO�LQ�QDWXUH�LI�WKH�FRVWV�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\��WKH�SURGXFW�LV�WHFKQLFDOO\�DQG�
FRPPHUFLDOO\�IHDVLEOH��IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHȴWV�DUH�SUREDEOH��DQG�WKH�*URXS�LQWHQGV�WR�DQG�KDV�VXɝFLHQW�UHVRXUFHV�WR�FRPSOHWH�
GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�WR�XVH�RU�VHOO�WKH�DVVHW��2WKHU�GHYHORSPHQW�H[SHQGLWXUH�QRW�PHHWLQJ�WKHVH�FULWHULD�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV� 
as incurred. Once the asset is ready for use, the capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation 
(see below) and impairment losses. Intangible assets not yet ready for use are tested for impairment annually.

Other intangible assets include acquired data holdings that qualify for recognition as intangible assets in a business combination.  
$V�WKHVH�DVVHWV�KDYH�ȴQLWH�XVHIXO�HFRQRPLF�OLYHV��WKH\�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�XVLQJ�WKH�FRVW�PRGHO�ZKHUHE\�FDSLWDOLVHG�FRVWV�DUH�DPRUWLVHG�
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, intangible assets are subject to annual impairment 
reviews or a review whenever there is an indication of impairment.

7KH�IROORZLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DUH�DSSOLHG�

Customer relationships – 15 years
6RIWZDUH�GHYHORSPHQW� Ȃ�ȴYH�\HDUV
'HYHORSPHQW�FRVWV� Ȃ�ȴYH�WR�WHQ�\HDUV
Reports – ten years
Data holdings – ten years
*RRGZLOO�RQ�FRQVROLGDWLRQ� Ȃ�LQGHȴQLWH��DQQXDO�LPSDLUPHQW�UHYLHZ

Amortisation is included within ‘Administrative costs’, except for amortisation of Reports, which is included in Cost of Sales.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating 
XQLWV�RU�JURXSV�RI�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLWV�WKDW�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EHQHȴW�IURP�WKH�EXVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQ�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�JRRGZLOO�DURVH�� 
7KH�XQLWV�RU�JURXSV�RI�XQLWV�DUH�LGHQWLȴHG�DW�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�DW�ZKLFK�JRRGZLOO�LV�PRQLWRUHG�IRU�LQWHUQDO�PDQDJHPHQW�SXUSRVHV��EHLQJ�
the operating segments.

maynard paton


maynard paton
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3.9 Financial Assets
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�*URXS�EHFRPHV�D�SDUW\�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�GHUHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�ULJKWV�WR�WKH�FDVK�ȵRZV�IURP�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHW�H[SLUH��RU�ZKHQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHW�
and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred.

&ODVVLȴFDWLRQ�DQG�LQLWLDO�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
([FHSW�IRU�WKRVH�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�WKDW�GR�QRW�FRQWDLQ�D�VLJQLȴFDQW�ȴQDQFLQJ�FRPSRQHQW�DQG�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�SULFH� 
LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Ζ)56�����DOO�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�DGMXVWHG�IRU�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV��ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�GHVLJQDWHG�DQG�HHFWLYH�DV�KHGJLQJ�LQVWUXPHQWV��DUH�FODVVLȴHG�LQWR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FDWHJRULHV�

• amortised cost
• IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��)973/�
• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

ΖQ�WKH�SHULRGV�SUHVHQWHG�WKH�*URXS�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FDWHJRULVHG�DV�)92&Ζ�RU�)973/�

6XEVHTXHQW�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV���)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�LI�WKH�DVVHWV�PHHW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV��DQG�DUH�QRW�GHVLJQDWHG�DV�)973/��

• WKH\�DUH�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�D�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�ZKRVH�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�KROG�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�FROOHFW�LWV�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ȵRZV
• WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�JLYH�ULVH�WR�FDVK�ȵRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�RQ�WKH�SULQFLSDO�

amount outstanding

$IWHU�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKHVH�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��'LVFRXQWLQJ�LV�RPLWWHG�ZKHUH�WKH� 
HHFW�RI�GLVFRXQWLQJ�LV�LPPDWHULDO��7KH�*URXSȇV�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV��WUDGH�DQG�PRVW�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV�IDOO�LQWR�WKLV�FDWHJRU\� 
RI�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 

ΖPSDLUPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses — the ‘expected credit loss 
(ECL) model’. This replaces IAS 39’s ‘incurred loss model’.

5HFRJQLWLRQ�RI�FUHGLW�ORVVHV�LV�QR�ORQJHU�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�WKH�*URXS�ȴUVW�LGHQWLI\LQJ�D�FUHGLW�ORVV�HYHQW��ΖQVWHDG�WKH�*URXS�FRQVLGHUV� 
a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, 
UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�VXSSRUWDEOH�IRUHFDVWV�WKDW�DHFW�WKH�H[SHFWHG�FROOHFWDELOLW\�RI�WKH�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�
ΖQ�DSSO\LQJ�WKLV�IRUZDUG�ORRNLQJ�DSSURDFK��D�GLVWLQFWLRQ�LV�PDGH�EHWZHHQ�

• ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�KDYH�QRW�GHWHULRUDWHG�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�LQ�FUHGLW�TXDOLW\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RU�WKDW�KDYH�ORZ�FUHGLW�ULVN� 
(‘Stage 1’) and

• ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�KDYH�GHWHULRUDWHG�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�LQ�FUHGLW�TXDOLW\�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�ZKRVH�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�QRW�ORZ� 
(‘Stage 2’).

Ȇ6WDJH��ȇ�ZRXOG�FRYHU�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�KDYH�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�RI�LPSDLUPHQW�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�

Ȇ���PRQWK�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHVȇ�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�WKH�ȴUVW�FDWHJRU\�ZKLOH�ȆOLIHWLPH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHVȇ�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�WKH�VHFRQG�
category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the 
ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�

3UHYLRXV�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHW�LPSDLUPHQW�XQGHU�Ζ$6���
In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was based on the incurred loss model. Receivables were considered for impairment 
ZKHQ�WKH\�ZHUH�SDVW�GXH�RU�ZKHQ�RWKHU�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�WKDW�D�VSHFLȴF�FRXQWHUSDUW\�ZLOO�GHIDXOW�



41Getech Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
Strategic Report

G
overnance

Financial Statem
ents

��6XPPDU\�RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�FRQW�
3.10 Income Taxes
&XUUHQW�WD[�LV�WKH�WD[�FXUUHQWO\�SD\DEOH�RU�UHFHLYDEOH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�WD[DEOH�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�

'HIHUUHG�LQFRPH�WD[HV�DUH�FDOFXODWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�OLDELOLW\�PHWKRG�RQ�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV��'HIHUUHG�WD[�LV�JHQHUDOO\�SURYLGHG� 
RQ�WKH�GLHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�WKHLU�WD[�EDVHV��+RZHYHU��GHIHUUHG�WD[�LV�QRW�SURYLGHG�
on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business 
FRPELQDWLRQ�RU�DHFWV�WD[�RU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURȴW��'HIHUUHG�WD[�RQ�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�VKDUHV�LQ�VXEVLGLDULHV�LV�QRW�
SURYLGHG�LI�WKH�UHYHUVDO�RI�WKHVH�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV�FDQ�EH�FRQWUROOHG�E\�WKH�*URXS�DQG�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�UHYHUVDO�ZLOO�QRW�RFFXU�
in the foreseeable future. In addition, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits are assessed for 
recognition as deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in full, with no discounting. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 
LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�GHGXFWLEOH�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV�ZLOO�EH�DEOH�WR�EH�RVHW�DJDLQVW�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�LQFRPH��&XUUHQW�
and deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective period of realisation, 
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

&KDQJHV�LQ�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�D�FRPSRQHQW�RI�WD[�H[SHQVH�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��H[FHSW�ZKHUH�WKH\�UHODWH�WR�
items that are charged or credited directly to equity (in which case, the related deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to equity), 
or where they relate to items of other comprehensive income (in which case, they are recognised in other comprehensive income).

3.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash-in-hand and demand deposits.

3.12 Equity
(TXLW\�FRPSULVHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

• ‘Share capital’ represents the nominal value of equity shares
• ‘Share premium account’ represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares,  

net of expenses of the share issue
• ‘Merger relief reserve’ represents the premium on shares issued to acquire ERCL Limited and Exprodat Consulting Limited
• ‘Capital redemption reserve’ represents the nominal value of equity shares redeemed
• ‘Share option reserve’ represents the fair value of share options in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’
• Ȇ&XUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQ�UHVHUYHȇ�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�YDOXH�RI�H[FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV�LQ�WUDQVODWLQJ�WKH�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH� 

foreign subsidiary
• Ȇ5HWDLQHG�HDUQLQJVȇ�UHSUHVHQWV�UHWDLQHG�SURȴWV

3.13 Dividends
'LYLGHQG�GLVWULEXWLRQV�SD\DEOH�WR�HTXLW\�VKDUHKROGHUV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�Ȇ2WKHU�VKRUW�WHUP�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHVȇ�ZKHQ�GLYLGHQGV�DUH�
approved in general meetings prior to the end of the reporting period.

3.14 Financial Liabilities
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�SD\�FDVK�RU�RWKHU�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�*URXS�EHFRPHV�D�SDUW\�WR�WKH�
FRQWUDFWXDO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW��)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�FDWHJRULVHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQLWLDOO\�DW�
IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�DOO�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��$OO�RWKHU�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQLWLDOO\�DW�IDLU�
value, net of direct issue costs.

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�FDWHJRULVHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�DUH�UH�PHDVXUHG�DW�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��ZLWK�FKDQJHV�
LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�EHLQJ�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��$OO�RWKHU�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�
PHWKRG��ZLWK�LQWHUHVW�UHODWHG�FKDUJHV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�LQ�ȴQDQFH�FRVWV�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��)LQDQFH�FKDUJHV��LQFOXGLQJ�SUHPLXPV�
SD\DEOH�RQ�VHWWOHPHQW�RU�UHGHPSWLRQ�DQG�GLUHFW�LVVXH�FRVWV��DUH�FKDUJHG�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�RQ�DQ�DFFUXDOV�EDVLV�XVLQJ�WKH�HHFWLYH�
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which 
they arise.

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�FDWHJRULVHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�ZKHUH�WKH\�DUH�GHVLJQDWHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU� 
loss on initial recognition. Deferred consideration on acquisitions of assets, which is contingent on subsequent sales of such assets,  
LV�WUHDWHG�DV�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURȴW�RU�ORVV��DQG�WKH�YDOXH�LV�DOORFDWHG�EHWZHHQ�FXUUHQW�DQG�QRQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV� 
in accordance with best estimates of the timing and amounts expected to fall due.

$�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG�RQO\�ZKHQ�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�LV�H[WLQJXLVKHG��WKDW�LV��ZKHQ�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�LV�GLVFKDUJHG�RU�FDQFHOOHG�� 
or it expires.



42 Getech Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cont.
For the year ended 31 December 2018

��6XPPDU\�RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�FRQW�
3.15 Business Combinations
%XVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQV�DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�XVLQJ�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�PHWKRG�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ��7KH�DFTXLUHG�LGHQWLȴDEOH�WDQJLEOH�DQG� 
intangible assets are measured at their fair values at the date of the acquisition. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed under 
administrative expenses.

*RRGZLOO�LV�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�H[FHVV�RI�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�RI�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WUDQVIHUUHG�RYHU�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�LGHQWLȴDEOH�DVVHWV�
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

3.16 Exceptional Items
Items which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are presented within their relevant 
consolidated income statement category, but highlighted through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps 
SURYLGH�D�EHWWHU�SLFWXUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�XQGHUO\LQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH��ΖWHPV�ZKLFK�DUH�LQFOXGHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�H[FHSWLRQDO�FDWHJRU\�LQFOXGH�

• VSHQG�RQ�WKH�LQWHJUDWLRQ�RI�VLJQLȴFDQW�DFTXLVLWLRQV�DQG�RWKHU�PDMRU�UHVWUXFWXULQJ�SURJUDPPHV�
• VLJQLȴFDQW�JRRGZLOO�RU�RWKHU�DVVHW�LPSDLUPHQWV�UHODWLQJ�WR�VSHFLȴF�PDUNHW�HYHQWV��DQG
• RWKHU�SDUWLFXODUO\�VLJQLȴFDQW�RU�XQXVXDO�LWHPV�

�����6LJQLȴFDQW�$UHDV�RI�-XGJHPHQW�DQG�(VWLPDWLRQ�8QFHUWDLQW\
ΖQ�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�DERYH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��PDQDJHPHQW�KDV�PDGH�DSSURSULDWH�HVWLPDWHV�LQ�NH\�DUHDV��DQG�WKH�DFWXDO�RXWFRPHV�PD\�GLHU�
from those calculated. 

6LJQLȴFDQW�DUHDV�RI�MXGJHPHQW
7KH�NH\�VRXUFHV�RI�MXGJHPHQW�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

Recognition of revenue from multiple element contracts
Management use judgement in determining the fair value of multiple element contracts in order to appropriately recognise the revenue 
attributable to each element. The value of revenue recognised in the period is dependent on an assessment of work to completion

Capitalisation of development costs
The capitalisation of development expenditure is dependent on the costs meeting the recognition criteria in accordance with IAS 38 
ȆΖQWDQJLEOH�$VVHWVȇ��ΖQ�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�FULWHULD��PDQDJHPHQW�PDNHV�MXGJHPHQWV�RQ�WKH�OHYHO�RI�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHȴWV�RI�WKH�DVVHW�ȵRZLQJ�
to the Company. Management is assisted in making these judgements through the monitoring both of sales forecasts and of the level of 
IXWXUH�FRVW�EHQHȴWV�DULVLQJ�

Deferred taxation
Management judgement is required in determining provisions for deferred tax liabilities and assets. The process involves estimating the 
DFWXDO�FXUUHQW�WD[�H[SRVXUH�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DVVHVVLQJ�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�WKH�GLHUHQW�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�FHUWDLQ�DVVHWV�DQG�
OLDELOLWLHV�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�WD[�UHWXUQV��0DQDJHPHQW�PXVW�DVVHVV�WKH�SUREDELOLW\�WKDW�WKH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�ZLOO�EH�
recovered from future taxable income.

6LJQLȴFDQW�DUHDV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\
7KH�NH\�VRXUFHV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

Multiple element contracts
Management uses estimates in determining the fair value of individual elements of the multiple element contracts in order to 
appropriately recognise the revenue attributable to each element. A value is assigned to each element of the contract, based on an 
estimate of the value of that element if it were sold individually; the ratio of these values is then used to calculate a fair value for each 
element. The value of revenue recognised during the year is also dependent on estimates of work to completion, as with long-term 
FRQWUDFWV��:HUH�WKH�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�FRPSOHWHG�WR�WRWDO�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�WR�GLHU�E\����IURP�PDQDJHPHQWȇV�HVWLPDWHV��WKH�
DPRXQW�RI�UHYHQXH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZRXOG�LQFUHDVH�GHFUHDVH�E\�e�������

Carrying amount of non-current assets
:KHUH�WKHUH�LV�DQ�LQGLFDWLRQ�RI�LPSDLUPHQW��D�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�RI�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�LV�XQGHUWDNHQ�DV�IROORZV�

• Intangible non-current assets, including goodwill, are estimated on the basis of value in use

7KH�YDOXH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�IURP�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�XQGHU�UHYLHZ��7KH�NH\�HOHPHQWV�
RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�DUH�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV��)RU�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV��IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV�DUH�IRUHFDVW�UHYHQXHV�IURP�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�
FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLW��)XUWKHU�HVWLPDWLRQ�LV�PDGH�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�WKDW�UHȵHFWV�WKH�VSHFLȴF�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�
with the asset or cash-generating unit. See Note 12 for further details of assumptions made and sensitivity testing regarding Goodwill  
and Intangible Assets.
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��6XPPDU\�RI�$FFRXQWLQJ�3ROLFLHV�FRQW�
�����6LJQLȴFDQW�$UHDV�RI�-XGJHPHQW�DQG�(VWLPDWLRQ�8QFHUWDLQW\�FRQW�
Share options
Share-based payments are valued using the Black Scholes valuation model. Estimates are made in expected volatility and the risk-free 
rate. Where appropriate, management uses historical market data as a basis for estimating the fair value of share options on grant. 
Increasing the risk-free rate by 2% and increasing the volatility window in the calculation of volatility from 5 days to 30 days made no 
PDWHULDO�GLHUHQFH�WR�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�LVVXHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�

3.18 Reporting period
The current period covers a 12-month period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The comparative period was 17 months.  
7R�DLG�DQDO\VLV�ZH�LQFOXGH�XQDXGLWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�FRPSDUDWRUV�LQ�WKH�PDLQ�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH����PRQWKV�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�
������7KHVH�FRPSDUDWRUV�ZHUH�GHULYHG�E\�GHGXFWLQJ�WKH�ȴYH�PRQWK�SHULRG�WR����'HFHPEHU������XQDXGLWHG�PDQDJHPHQW�DFFRXQWV�
IURP�WKH�DXGLWHG����PRQWK�SHULRG�WR����'HFHPEHU������Ʌ

4 Segmental Reporting
����3URGXFWV�DQG�6HUYLFHV�IURP�ZKLFK�UHSRUWDEOH�VHJPHQWV�GHULYH�WKHLU�UHYHQXHV
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment 
performance focusses on the types of goods and services delivered or provided. The Directors of the Company have chosen to 
RUJDQLVH�WKH�*URXS�DURXQG�GLHUHQFHV�LQ�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV��2SHUDWLQJ�VHJPHQWV�ZLWK�VLPLODU�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV��DQG�ZKHUH�VHJPHQWV�
are similar in respect of the nature of the products and services, the nature of the production processes, the type of customer and 
where they have similar methods of distribution, have been aggregated into a single operating segment.

6SHFLȴFDOO\��WKH�*URXSȇV�UHSRUWDEOH�VHJPHQWV�XQGHU�Ζ)56���DUH�DV�IROORZV�

• Products (Including Geophysical Data, Globe, Regional Reports and Software revenues)
• Services (Including Government Advisory Services, Geoscience Services and Geospatial Solutions revenues)

The sources of revenue included in ‘all other segments’ are other miscellaneous income.

4.2 Segment Revenues and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment.

12 months ended 
31 Dec 2018 (audited)

17 months ended 
31 Dec 2017 (audited)

12 months ended 
31 Dec 2017 (unaudited)

Revenue
£’000

3URȴW
£’000

Revenue
eȇ���

3URȴW
eȇ���

Revenue
eȇ���

3URȴW
eȇ���

Products 6,434 4,013 7,570 4,921 5,155 3,591
Services 1,585 (225) 3,372 220 2,060 68
Other segments — — 4 4 — —
Exceptional intangible impairments1 — — — (461) — (461)

8,019 3,788 10,946 4,684 7,215 3,198

Central administrative costs (3,341) (4,858) (3,514)
Restructuring costs (197) (487) (113)
1HW�ȴQDQFH�FRVWV (25) (32) (30)

3URȴW�EHIRUH�WD[ 225 (693) (459)

�� 3URȴW�IRU�WKH����PRQWKV�DQG����PRQWKV�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������LQFOXGHV�LPSDLUPHQW�RI�LQWDQJLEOHV�RI�e���������

The segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in 
WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU��������eQLO��
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4 Segmental Reporting cont.
4.2 Segment Revenues and Results cont.
7KH�DQDO\VLV�RI�UHYHQXH�E\�WLPLQJ�RI�UHYHQXH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

Year ended 31 Dec 2018 Products Services Other Consolidated

At a point in time 3,470 — — 3,470
Over time 2,964 1,585 — 4,549

6,434 1,585 — 8,019

17 months ended 31 Dec 2017 Products Services Other Consolidated

At a point in time 3,796 — 4 3,800
Over time 3,774 3,372 — 7,146

7,570 3,372 4 10,946

12 months ended 31 Dec 2017 (Unaudited) Products Services Other Consolidated

At a point in time 2,786 — — 2,786
Over time 2,369 2,060 — 4,429

5,155 2,060 — 7,215

7KH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�RI�WKH�UHSRUWDEOH�VHJPHQWV�DUH�WKH�VDPH�DV�LQ�WKH�*URXSȇV�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�1RWH����6HJPHQW�SURȴW�
UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�HDUQHG�E\�HDFK�VHJPHQW�ZLWKRXW�DOORFDWLRQ�RI�FHQWUDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�FRVWV�DQG�ȴQDQFH�FRVWV��7KLV�LV�WKH�
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Assets and liabilities are not reported to the chief operating decision maker by segment.

����*HRJUDSKLFDO�ΖQIRUPDWLRQ
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its  
non-current assets by location of assets is detailed below.

12 months ended 
31 Dec 2018

17 months ended 
31 Dec 2017

12 months ended 
31 Dec 2017 (unaudited)

Revenue
£’000

Non-current
assets
£’000

Revenue
eȇ���

Non-current
assets
eȇ���

Revenue
eȇ���

Non-current
assets
eȇ���

North America 1,309 261 3,509 267 2,313 267
United Kingdom 992 10,576 2,336 9,694 1,540 9,694
Africa 282 — 668 — 440 —
Rest of Europe 4,122 — 2,095 — 1,381 —
Asia 740 — 1,562 — 1,030 —
Australasia 504 — 219 — 144 —
South and Central America 70 — 557 — 367 —

8,019 10,837 10,946 9,961 7,215 9,961

:LWKLQ�UHYHQXH��WKHUH�DUH�VDOHV�WR�RQH�FXVWRPHU�H[FHHGLQJ�����RI�WXUQRYHU��DPRXQWLQJ�WR�e�����������������QR�VDOHV�WR�FXVWRPHUV�
exceeded 10% of turnover).
Ʌ
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��2SHUDWLQJ�3URȴW��/RVV�
7KH�RSHUDWLQJ�SURȴW��ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�KDV�EHHQ�DUULYHG�DW�DIWHU�FKDUJLQJ��FUHGLWLQJ��

12 months 
ended 31 
Dec 2018

£’000

17 months
ended 31  
Dec 2017  

eȇ���

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 132 235
Amortisation of intangible assets 689 1,072
Exceptional impairment of inventories — 461
Other impairment of intangibles — 239
Exceptional restructure costs 197 487
5HPXQHUDWLRQ�UHFHLYDEOH�E\�WKH�*URXSȇV�DXGLWRU�IRU�VHUYLFHV�
– the auditing of the accounts 43 42
– audit related services 6 12
2SHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV�
– rental costs of land and building 311 418
Foreign exchange movement 39 (77)
Share-based payments charge 19 67
Research and development costs expensed as incurred 597 916

The above charges and credits are included in ‘Cost of sales’ and ‘Administrative costs’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income.

The rental costs of land and buildings relate to leases that expired in the year and were therefore not restated under IFRS 16

6 Directors and Employees
7KH�HPSOR\HH�EHQHȴW�H[SHQVHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHȴWV 3,825 6,421
Social security costs 401 702
Pension costs 222 367
Share-based payment charge 30 68

4,478 7,558

7KH�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�*URXS��LQFOXGLQJ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV��ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

12 months 
ended

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2017
Number

Directors 4 3
Administration 16 18
Technical 59 74

79 95
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6 Directors and Employees cont.
'LUHFWRUVȇ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

12 months ended 31 Dec 2018

)HHV�VDODU\�
£’000

Pension 
contributions 

£’000

%HQHȴWV�
in kind

£’000

7RWDO�EHIRUH
share options

£’000

Share-based
payment

charge
£’000 

Executive
Dr Jonathan Copus 250 11 — 261 15
Chris Jepps1 125 6 — 131 1
Andrew Darbyshire1 83 4 — 87 1
Huw Edwards2 30 — — 30 —
Non-executive
Dr Alison Fielding3 20 — — 20 —
Dr Stuart Paton 40 — — 40 —
Peter Stephens4 20 — — 20 —
Chris Flavell5 20 — — 20 —

588 21 — 609 17

17 months ended 31 Dec 2017

Fees/salary 
eȇ���

Pension
contributions

eȇ���

%HQHȴWV�
in kind 
eȇ���

Total before 
share options

eȇ���

Share-based
payment

charge 
eȇ���

Executive
Dr Jonathan Copus 323 15 — 338 39
Huw Edwards6 196 — 1 197 —
Dr Paul Carey7 54 — — 54 —
Dr Paul Markwick8 119 5 — 124 —
Non-executive
Dr Alison Fielding3 19 — — 19 —
Dr Stuart Paton 55 — — 55 —
Peter Stephens4 19 — — 19 —
Chris Flavell5 19 — — 19 —

804 20 1 825 39

1 Andrew Darbyshire and Chris Jepps were appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018, as such only remuneration from this date is included.
�� +XZ�(GZDUGV�ZRUNHG�D�IRXU�GD\�ZHHN�DQG�OHIW�RɝFH�RQ����)HEUXDU\�������DV�VXFK�RQO\�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�XS�WR�WKLV�GDWH�LV�LQFOXGHG�
3 Director’s fees for Alison Fielding were paid to IP Group plc, a company of which she is an employee.
4 Director’s fees for Peter Stephens were paid to Noon and Co. Limited, a company of which he is a Director.
5 Director’s fees for Chris Flavell were paid to TantlonGeo Limited, a company of which he is a Director.
6 Huw Edwards took a three-month sabbatical in the 17 months to 31 December 2017 and worked a four-day week.
�� 'U�3DXO�&DUH\�OHIW�RɝFH�RQ����'HFHPEHU������
�� 'U�3DXO�0DUNZLFN�OHIW�RɝFH�RQ����-DQXDU\�������LQFOXGHG�LQ������VDODU\�LV�e�������FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�ORVV�RI�RɝFH�

3HQVLRQ�FRQWULEXWLRQV�UHSUHVHQW�SD\PHQWV�PDGH�WR�GHȴQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�VFKHPHV��1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�QRW�HQWLWOHG� 
WR�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHȴWV��5HPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�
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Directors’ Share Options
'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�KHOG�E\�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�

Number of shares

Date granted Exercise period Option price 31 Dec 2017 Granted Lapsed 31 Dec 2018

Dr Jonathan Copus
2 Aug 2016 2 Aug 2017 — 2 Aug 2026 24.50p 500,000 — — 500,000
2 Aug 2016 2 Aug 2018 — 2 Aug 2026 24.50p 500,000 — — 500,000
2 Aug 2016 2 Aug 2019 — 2 Aug 2026 24.50p 400,000 — — 400,000
20 Nov 2018 2 Aug 2019 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 100,000 — 100,000
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2019 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2020 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000

Chris Jepps
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2019 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2020 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000

Andrew Darbyshire
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2019 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000
20 Nov 2018 20 Nov 2020 — 19 Nov 2028 35.00p — 125,000 — 125,000

Dr Stuart Paton
27 Apr 2011 27 Apr 2011—27 Apr 2021 17.50p 300,000 — — 300,000
27 Apr 2011 27 Apr 2012—27 Apr 2021 17.50p 200,000 — — 200,000
27 Apr 2011 27 Apr 2013—27 Apr 2021 17.50p 200,000 — — 200,000
27 Apr 2011 27 Apr 2014—27 Apr 2021 17.50p 200,000 — — 200,000

Peter Stephens
24 Dec 2010 24 Dec 2012—24 Dec 2021 15.00p 41,490 — — 41,490

7KH�PDUNHW�SULFH�RI�WKH�VKDUHV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�\HDU�ZDV������S�DQG�WKH�UDQJH�RI�PDUNHW�SULFHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�EHWZHHQ�
42.00p and 22.50p.

Full share-based payment disclosures are provided in Note 22.
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7 Finance Income

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Interest on bank deposits — 2

8 Finance Costs

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Interest on bank borrowings 25 34

9 Income Tax
7KH�LQFRPH�WD[�FUHGLW�FRPSULVHV�

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Current income tax
Current year (57) (410)
Prior year (80) (159)
Foreign taxation — 36

Total current tax (137) (533)

'HIHUUHG�WD[
Current year (141) (222)
Prior year (5) —
Adjustments for change in tax rate — 102

7RWDO�GHIHUUHG�WD[ (146) (120)

7D[�H[SHQVH��FUHGLW��RQ�SURȴW (283) (653)
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9 Income Tax cont.
)DFWRUV�DHFWLQJ�WKH�WD[�FUHGLW�IRU�WKH�\HDU
7KH�WD[DWLRQ�DVVHVVHG�IRU�WKH�\HDU�GLHUV�IURP�WKH�VWDQGDUG�UDWH�RI�FRUSRUDWLRQ�WD[�LQ�WKH�8.�RI��������������������

7KH�WD[��FUHGLW��H[SHQVH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�FDQ�EH�UHFRQFLOHG�WR�SURȴW�SHU�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DW�WKH�
VWDQGDUG�UDWH�RI�FRUSRUDWLRQ�WD[�LQ�WKH�8.�RI��������������������DV�IROORZV�

12 months  
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

3URȴW���/RVV��RQ�RUGLQDU\�DFWLYLWLHV�EHIRUH�WD[ 225 (693)

7D[�DW�8.�FRUSRUDWLRQ�WD[�UDWH�RI������������������� 43 (135)
(HFWV�RI�
)L[HG�DVVHW�GLHUHQFHV 14 8
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10 13
Income deductible for tax purposes — (37)
Research and development enhanced expenditure (268) (517)
Surrender of tax losses for R&D tax credit refund 74 140
R&D expenditure credits — 11
Movement in deferred tax not recognised (9) —
Share-based payments charge (35) —
Foreign tax credits (4) 36
Adjustment for tax computation in foreign jurisdictions — (19)
2WKHU�GLHUHQFHV (23) 6
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years (85) (159)

7RWDO�WD[�FUHGLW�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH (283) (653)

'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ
7KH�QHW�PRYHPHQW�RQ�WKH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�DQG�GHIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLW\�DFFRXQWV�LV�DV�IROORZV�

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV
Balance brought forward 207 283
Share-based payments — (31)
Intangible assets of foreign subsidiary company 2 23
Tax losses 42 (70)
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHȴWV — 2
Foreign tax jurisdictions 54 —

Balance carried forward 305 207

'HIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWLHV
Balance brought forward (194) (387)
Accelerated capital allowances — 47
Intangible assets of foreign subsidiary company — 70
Intangible assets acquired in business combinations 22 41
Share based payments 35 —
Foreign tax jurisdictions — 35

Balance carried forward (137) (194)
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9 Income Tax cont.
'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ�FRQW�
7KH�GHIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DW�����������������IRU�8.�WD[DWLRQ�DQG�����������������IRU�86$�WD[DWLRQ�� 
LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Share-based payments 36 —
Accelerated capital allowances (91) (86)
Foreign tax jurisdictions (5) (56)
Intangible assets of foreign subsidiary company (28) (22)
Tax losses 360 306
Intangible assets acquired in business combinations (111) (133)
Provisions 3 —
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHȴWV 4 4

1HW�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW��OLDELOLW\� 168 13

7KH�PRVW�DSSURSULDWH�WD[�UDWH�IRU�WKH�*URXS�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH���������������������WKH�VWDQGDUG�DYHUDJH�UDWH�RI�SURȴWV�WD[�LQ�WKH�8.��
ZKLFK�LV�WKH�SULPDU\�VRXUFH�RI�SURȴW�IRU�WKH�*URXS�

7KH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�8.�FRPSDQ\�LV�FDOFXODWHG�DW�����������������LQ�OLJKW�RI�WKH�IXWXUH�WD[�UDWHV�DQQRXQFHG�� 
The deferred tax asset in respect of the intangible assets of the foreign subsidiary company arises as a result of future capital allowances 
available following the part-payment of the deferred consideration for the acquisition of assets from Lisle Gravity Inc. in an earlier period. 
7KHVH�ZLOO�EH�UHOLHYHG�DJDLQVW�SURȴWV�RI�WKH�IRUHLJQ�VXEVLGLDU\�Ʌ

10 Dividends
7KHUH�LV�QR�ȴQDO�GLYLGHQG�SURSRVHG�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018
£’000

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Paid during the year
1R�ȴQDO�GLYLGHQG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������������eQLO�SHU�VKDUH� — —

— —

11 Earnings Per Share
%DVLF�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�WKH�SURȴW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS�E\�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�
the Ordinary Shares in issue in the year.

12 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2018

17 months
ended 

31 Dec 2017 

3URȴW���/RVV��DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS £508,000 e��������
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue 37,563,615 37,562,454
Basic earnings per share 1.35p (0.11)p
Diluted earnings per share 1.33p (0.11)p

'LOXWHG�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�WKH�SURȴW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS�E\�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH� 
number of the Ordinary Shares which would be in issue if all the options granted, other than those which are anti-dilutive, were exercised. 
The addition to the weighted number of the Ordinary Shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended  
���'HFHPEHU������LV��������������������������
Ʌ
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12 Goodwill
7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�JRRGZLOO�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHFRQFLOHG�DV�IROORZV�

Goodwill
£’000

Gross carrying amount
At 1 August 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 3,428

Accumulated impairment
At 1 August 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 —

Carrying amount
At 1 August 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 3,428

For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill and intangibles assets are allocated to the relevant cash generating unit.

7KH�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�FDOFXODWLRQV��FRYHULQJ�D�GHWDLOHG�ȴYH�\HDU�IRUHFDVW��IROORZHG�E\�DQ�
H[WUDSRODWLRQ�RI�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ȵRZV�IRU�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV��7KH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ȵRZV�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�
DSSO\LQJ�D�VXLWDEOH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�UHȵHFWLQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�DVVHVVPHQWV�RI�WKH�WLPH�YDOXH�RI�PRQH\�DQG�ULVNV�VSHFLȴF�WR�WKH�FDVK�
generating unit.

7KH�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW�LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Group’s goodwill and intangible assets 18,399 9,847

18,399 9,847

ΖQ�H[WUDSRODWLQJ�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV��ORQJ�WHUP�LQGXVWU\�JURZWK�KDV�EHHQ�PRGHOOHG�DW�DQ�DQQXDO�UDWH�RI�����WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�D����UDWH�
RI�LQȵDWLRQ�RQ�FRVWV�DQQXDOO\�

6DOHV�YROXPHV�RYHU�WKH�ȴYH�\HDU�SHULRG�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�SDVW�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�PDQDJHPHQWȇV�H[SHFWDWLRQV�RI�D�PDUNHW�UHFRYHU\�
VWDJJHUHG�RYHU�WKDW�SHULRG��UHȵHFWHG�E\�����\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK��7KH�FDVK�ȵRZ�PRGHO�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�UHYHQXHV�IURP�D�VXFFHVVIXO�
licencing round in 2019.

7KH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�DSSOLHG�RI�������WDNHV�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�LQGXVWU\�ZLGH�ULVNV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKRVH�VSHFLȴF�WR�WKH�*URXSȇV�6HUYLFHV�
operating segment.

6HQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV�LV�FDUULHG�RXW�RQ�DOO�EXGJHWV��VWUDWHJLF�SODQV�DQG�GLVFRXQW�UDWHV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQV��7KH�FDVK�ȵRZ�PRGHO�LV�
sensitive to short term market recovery and to the initiation of a successful licencing round. In a scenario whereby revenues increase 
at a lower rate matching the long-term industry growth rate of 3 percent annually and the licencing round is unsuccessful, then this 
ZRXOG�UHVXOW�LQ�DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�WR�JRRGZLOO�DQG�LQWDQJLEOHV�RI�e��������
Ʌ
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13 Intangible Assets
7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�UHFRQFLOHG�DV�IROORZV�

Customer
relationships

eȇ���

Software
development

eȇ���

Development
costs
eȇ���

Reports 
eȇ���

Data 
holdings 

eȇ���

Other 
intangibles

eȇ���
Total
eȇ���

Cost
At 1 August 2016 restated 877 462 1,883 1,067 1,663 2 5,954
Additions — — 1,154 429 — — 1,583
Transferred — — — — — 30 30
Disposals — — — — — (3) (3)
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — — — (29) — (29)

At 31 December 2017 restated 877 462 3,037 1,496 1,634 29 7,535
Additions — — 861 13 — — 874
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — — — 94 — 94

At 31 December 2018 877 462 3,898 1,509 1,728 29 8,503

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 August 2016 restated 355 12 286 — 1,314 2 1,969
Amortisation charge 54 131 494 123 251 19 1,072
Impairment — — — 700 — — 700
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — — — (34) — (34)

At 31 December 2017 restated 409 143 780 823 1,531 21 3,707
Amortisation charge 38 92 503 33 15 8 689
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — — — 89 — 89

At 31 December 2018 447 235 1,283 856 1,635 29 4,485

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 430 227 2,615 653 93 — 4,018

At 31 December 2017 restated 468 319 2,257 672 103 8 3,827

At 1 August 2016 restated 522 450 1,597 1,067 349 — 4,015

Amortisation charges are included in ‘Administrative costs’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with the exception  
of Reports, where amortisation charges are included in ‘Cost of Sales’. 

Included in development costs are completed phases of product development that are being amortised. The total cost of these products 
LV�e����������DQG�FDUU\�D�QHW�ERRN�YDOXH�RI�e����������
Ʌ
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment
7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�
UHFRQFLOHG�DV�IROORZV�

Freehold land 
and buildings 

eȇ���

Right-of-use 
assets 
eȇ���

Plant and 
equipment 

eȇ���
Total 
eȇ���

Cost
At 1 August 2016 2,798 — 1,068 3,866
Additions — — 54 54
Transferred — — (30) (30)
Disposals — — (12) (12)

At 31 December 2017 2,798 — 1,080 3,878
Additions — 641 78 719
Disposals — — (33) (33)
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — 1 1

At 31 December 2018 2,798 641 1,126 4,565

Depreciation
At 1 August 2016 323 — 822 1,145
Charge for the period 51 — 184 235
Disposals — — (1) (1)

At 31 December 2017 374 — 1,005 1,379
Charge for the period 36 34 62 132
Disposals — — (33) (33)
([FKDQJH�GLHUHQFHV — — 1 1

At 31 December 2018 410 34 1,035 1,479

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 2,388 607 91 3,086

At 31 December 2017 2,424 — 75 2,499

At 1 August 2016 2,475 — 246 2,721

7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�IUHHKROG�ODQG�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DPRXQWHG�WR�e�����������������e�����������

As detailed in the strategic report, the Group are exploring the future sale of Kitson House. The requirements of IFRS 5 have been 
reviewed, and based on the expected timeframe for disposal it is considered appropriate to continue to classify the land and buildings 
as a non-current asset rather than an asset held for sale.

Depreciation charges are included in ‘Administrative costs’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

15 Trade and Other Receivables

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Trade receivables 3,523 1,424
Other receivables 88 99
Prepayments 235 228
Accrued income 1,095 370

4,941 2,121

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considered to be reasonable approximations to fair value.

maynard paton


maynard paton
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15 Trade and Other Receivables cont.
7KH�*URXSȇV�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�IRU�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVVHV��3URYLVLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�PDGH�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�e���������������
e����������ΖW�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�WKDW�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVV�IRU�UHFHLYDEOHV�EDODQFHV�OHVV�WKDQ�VL[�PRQWKV�LV�LPPDWHULDO��0RYHPHQW�RQ�SURYLVLRQV�
IRU�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV�RQ�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DUH�DV�IROORZV��

31 Dec 2018
£’000

Loss allowance as at 1 January calculated under IAS 39 249
Loss allowance recognised during the year 34
Loss allowance unused and reversed during the year —

Loss allowance as at 31 December 283

7KH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVV�IRU�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�DV�IROORZV�

31 December 2018 Current
Less than 3 

months
Less than 6 

months
More than 6 

months Total

Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100% —
Gross carrying amount 2,917 275 48 283 3,523
Lifetime expected credit loss — — — 283 283

7KH�DJH�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�SDVW�GXH��EXW�QRW�LPSDLUHG�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������LV�DV�IROORZV�

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Not more than three months 609
More than three months but not more than six months 14
More than six months but not more than one year 10

633

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Cash at bank and in hand 1,400 2,393

17 Borrowings
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��WKH�EDQN�ORDQ�KHOG�DW���-DQXDU\������ZDV�UH�ȴQDQFHG��DV�D�UHVXOW��WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�EDODQFH�RI�e��������ZDV�UHSDLG�GXULQJ�
WKH�\HDU��$�QHZ�ORDQ�IDFLOLW\�IRU�e��������ZDV�GUDZQ�GRZQ��7KH�QHZ�EDQN�ORDQ�FDUULHV�D�YDULDEOH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�RI�������DERYH�EDQN�EDVH�
rate and is repayable in monthly instalments over a 60-month term. The loan is secured by land and buildings owned by the Parent 
&RPSDQ\��ZLWK�D�FXUUHQW�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�e�����������������e�����������

%RUURZLQJV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�DV�e��������GXH�LQ�OHVV�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU��DQG�e��������GXH�LQ�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�
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18 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables due within one year

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Trade payables 1,805 1,072
Social security and other taxes 120 205
Other payables 36 28
Accruals 172 156
Deferred income 701 497
Lease liabilities 72 —

2,906 1,958

All deferred revenue is expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. Revenue recognised in the year that was included  
LQ�RSHQLQJ�GHIHUUHG�LQFRPH�DPRXQWHG�WR�e��������

Trade and other payables due after more than one year

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Lease liabilities 540 —
Dilapidation provisions 25 —

565 —

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be reasonable approximations to fair value.

The lease liabilities relate to long-term property leases.

19 Financial Instruments
7KH�*URXS�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�ȴQDQFLDO�ULVNV��7KH�*URXSȇV�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�FR�RUGLQDWHG�E\�LWV�'LUHFWRUV�ZKR�IRFXV�DFWLYHO\�RQ�VHFXULQJ�
WKH�*URXSȇV�VKRUW�WR�PHGLXP�WHUP�FDVK�ȵRZV�WKURXJK�UHJXODU�UHYLHZV�RI�WKH�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLW\�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�

7KH�*URXS�GRHV�QRW�DFWLYHO\�HQJDJH�LQ�WKH�WUDGLQJ�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�IRU�VSHFXODWLYH�SXUSRVHV��QRU�GRHV�LW�ZULWH�RSWLRQV��7KH�PRVW�
VLJQLȴFDQW�ȴQDQFLDO�ULVNV�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�*URXS�LV�H[SRVHG�DUH�GHVFULEHG�EHORZ�

Foreign currency risk
Exposure to currency exchange rates arises from the Group’s overseas sales and purchases, most of which are denominated in US 
Dollars and some of which are denominated in euros. Assets and liabilities denominated in US Dollars and euros give rise to foreign 
exchange exposures at the end of the reporting period.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, exchange rates are monitored and the timing of settling invoices, where 
sales and purchases are made in currencies other than pound sterling, is matched as far as possible. Furthermore, there is no 
V\VWHPDWLF�H[SRVXUH�WR�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�EHFDXVH�VHOOLQJ�SULFHV�DUH�QRW�ȴ[HG�LQ�FXUUHQFLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�VWHUOLQJ�

The Group has a US-based subsidiary whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. With no matching borrowings 
denominated in US Dollars, it is the Group’s policy not to hedge against this translation exposure.

The Group had short-term exposure to the US Dollar and the euro at 31 December 2018. The following table illustrates the sensitivity 
RI�WKH�QHW�UHVXOW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZLWK�UHJDUG�WR�WKH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��ΖW�DVVXPHV�D��������FKDQJH�RI�WKH�
US Dollar and the euro exchange rates for the period ended 31 December 2018. Sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s foreign 
FXUUHQF\�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�KHOG�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�
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19 Financial Instruments cont.
Foreign currency risk cont.
ΖI�SRXQG�VWHUOLQJ�KDG�VWUHQJWKHQHG�RU�ZHDNHQHG�DJDLQVW�WKH�86�'ROODU�DQG�WKH�HXUR�E\������WKLV�ZRXOG�KDYH�KDG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LPSDFW�

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

+10% 
£’000

-10% 
£’000

+10% 
eȇ���

-10% 
eȇ���

5HSRUWHG�3URȴW��ORVV��EHIRUH�WD[ 225 225 (693) (693)
6HQVLWLYLW\�WR�PRYHPHQW�LQ�FXUUHQF\�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV�
    US Dollar (119) 131 (63) 69
    Euro (12) 13 — 1

�/RVV��3URȴW�EHIRUH�WD[ 94 369 (756) (623)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the value of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis 
above is considered to be representative of Getech’s exposure to currency risk.

7KHUH�LV�QR�HHFW�RQ�HTXLW\�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�FXUUHQF\�H[FKDQJH�UDWH�VHQVLWLYLW\�

7KH�*URXSȇV�DFWXDO�FXUUHQF\�H[SRVXUHV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Denominated in US Dollars
Financial assets 3,513 2,307
Financial liabilities (1,516) (777)

Exposure 1,997 1,530

Denominated in euros 
Financial assets 137 15
Financial liabilities (10) (10)

Exposure 127 5

Credit risk analysis
7KH�*URXSȇV�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�LV�OLPLWHG�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�LWV�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�� 
DV�VXPPDULVHG�EHORZ�

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

&ODVVHV�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�ȃ�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV
Trade and other receivables 4,706 1,891
Cash and cash equivalents 1,400 2,393

6,106 4,284

ΖQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�LPSDLUHG��WKH�*URXS�LV�QRW�H[SRVHG�WR�DQ\�VLJQLȴFDQW�FUHGLW�ULVN�H[SRVXUH�WR�DQ\�
single counterparty or Group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group’s customers are generally major natural resource 
companies with whom the Group has strong trading relationships with no recent history of default. The Group continually monitors its 
trade receivables and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

7UDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DUH�VWDWHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�IDFWRUV�VXFK�DV�KLVWRULFDO�WUHQGV��DJH�RI�GHEWV�DQG�GHEW�VSHFLȴF�LQIRUPDWLRQ��'HWDLOV�RI�
amounts past due but not impaired are set out in Note 15. The credit risk for liquid funds is considered negligible since counterparties  
are reputable banks with high-quality external credit ratings. 

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Interest rate risk
$W����'HFHPEHU������WKH�*URXS�KDG�FDVK�VXEMHFW�WR�YDULDEOH�UDWHV�RI�e���������������e���������DQG�ERUURZLQJV�VXEMHFW�WR�YDULDEOH�UDWHV�
RI�e���������������e����������7KHUH�LV�QR�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN��

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, market rates are monitored.
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19 Financial Instruments cont.
Interest rate risk cont.
7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�LOOXVWUDWHV�WKH�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�WKH�SURȴW�EHIRUH�WD[�IRU�WKH�\HDU�WR�D�UHDVRQDEO\�SRVVLEOH�FKDQJH�LQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�RI�
������ZLWK�HHFW�IURP�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU��7KHVH�FKDQJHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�UHDVRQDEO\�SRVVLEOH�EDVHG�RQ�REVHUYDWLRQ�RI�
FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV��7KH�FDOFXODWLRQV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�KHOG�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG��
All other variables are held constant.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

+1% 
£’000

-1% 
£’000

+1% 
eȇ���

-1% 
eȇ���

5HSRUWHG��/RVV��3URȴW�EHIRUH�WD[ 225 225 (693) (693)
Sensitivity to changes in interest rates 1 (1) 5 (5)

�/RVV��3URȴW�EHIRUH�WD[ 226 224 (688) (698)

Capital and liquidity risk
7KH�*URXS�PDQDJHV�LWV�OLTXLGLW\�QHHGV�E\�FDUHIXOO\�PRQLWRULQJ�VFKHGXOHG�FDVK�RXWȵRZV�DQG�DQWLFLSDWHG�FDVK�LQȵRZV��+DYLQJ�UHJDUG� 
to modest visibility of sales, the cash forecasts are regularly reviewed and cover alternative income scenarios.

7KH�FRQWUDFWXDO�PDWXULW\�RI�WKH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

Within 
one year 

eȇ���

In one 
to two years

eȇ���

In two 
WR�ȴYH�\HDUV

eȇ���
31 Dec 2018

£’000

Trade and other payables — held at amortised cost 2,013 — — 2,013
Borrowings — held at amortised cost 113 113 705 931

2,126 113 705 2,944

Within 
one year 

eȇ���

In one 
to two years

eȇ���

In two 
WR�ȴYH�\HDUV

eȇ���
31 Dec 2017

eȇ���

Trade and other payables — held at amortised cost 1,229 — — 1,229
Borrowings — held at amortised cost 279 355 — 634

1,508 355 — 1,863
Ʌ
6XPPDU\�RI�WKH�*URXSȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�GHȴQHG�LQ�Ζ)56���Ȇ)LQDQFLDO�ΖQVWUXPHQWV��5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�0HDVXUHPHQWȇ

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Current assets — loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables 4,706 1,891
Cash and cash equivalents 1,400 2,393

6,106 4,284

Current liabilities
Borrowings — held at amortised cost (113) (279)
Trade and other payables — held at amortised cost (2,013) (1,229)

(2,126) (1,508)

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — held at amortised cost (819) (355)

(819) (355)

1HW�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV 3,161 2,401

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�FRQVLGHU�WKDW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�HTXDWHV�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�IRU�ERWK������DQG������
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20 Capital Management Policies and Procedures
7KH�*URXSȇV�FDSLWDO�PDQDJHPHQW�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

• To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
• To provide an adequate return to shareholders

These objectives are maintained by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by exercising a policy  
of progressive dividends as appropriate.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face  
RI�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��&DSLWDO�IRU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�XQGHU�UHYLHZ�LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Total equity 12,742 12,179
/HVV��FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV (1,400) (2,393)

11,342 9,786

In order to achieve the Group’s objectives in capital management, the goal is to maintain adequate capital with the minimum amount of 
appropriate borrowing. The Group has met its stated objectives for the year.
Ʌ
21 Share Capital

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

Authorised
�����������2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�e�������HDFK������������������� 225 225

ΖVVXHG��FDOOHG�XS�DQG�IXOO\�SDLG
�����������2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�e�������HDFK������������������� 94 94

31 Dec 2018
Number

31 Dec 2017
Number

6KDUHV�LVVXHG��FDOOHG�XS�DQG�IXOO\�SDLG
Balance brought forward 37,563,615 37,562,415
Acquisition of subsidiary — —
Shares issued under share-based payments — 1,200

%DODQFH�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG 37,563,615 37,563,615

Each share issued has the same right to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represents one vote at the shareholders’ 
meeting of the Group.

22 Share-based Payments
At 31 December 2018, the Group operated an approved Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) share scheme and an Unapproved 
Options scheme. Under the share options plans, the Directors can grant options over shares in the Company to employees, subject  
WR�DSSURYDO�IURP�WKH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH��2SWLRQV�DUH�JUDQWHG�ZLWK�D�ȴ[HG�H[HUFLVH�SULFH�DQG�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�OLIH�RI�DQ�RSWLRQ� 
of 10 years. Options will become exercisable on the second anniversary of the date of grant. Exercise of an option is subject to  
continued employment.
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22 Share-based Payments cont.
$W����'HFHPEHU�������ULJKWV�WR�RSWLRQV�RYHU�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�ZHUH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DV�IROORZV��

EMI share scheme

Number of shares

Exercise period 31 Dec 2017 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2018

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
24 December 2012–24 December 2020 27,549 — — — 27,549

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
13 December 2014–12 December 2022 200,000 — — — 200,000

*UDQWHG����-XO\�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
22 July 2016–21 July 2024 280,000 — — — 280,000

*UDQWHG���$XJXVW�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
2 August 2017–1 August 2026 500,000 — — — 500,000
2 August 2018–1 August 2026 500,000 — — — 500,000

1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000

*UDQWHG����1RYHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
20 November 2019–19 November 2028 — 500,000 — — 500,000
20 November 2020–19 November 2028 — 500,000 — — 500,000

— 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000

Total EMI share scheme options 1,507,549 1,000,000 — — 2,507,549

Unapproved options scheme

Number of shares

Exercise period 31 Dec 2017 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2018

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
24 December 2012–24 December 2020 41,490 — — — 41,490

*UDQWHG����$SULO�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH — — —
27 April 2011–27 April 2021 300,000 — — — 300,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000

900,000 — — — 900,000

*UDQWHG���$XJXVW�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
2 August 2019–1 August 2026 400,000 — — — 400,000

*UDQWHG����1RYHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH�� 
35.0p per share
2 August 2019–19 November 2028 — 100,000 — — 100,000
20 November 2019–19 November 2028 — 125,000 — — 125,000
20 November 2020–19 November 2028 — 125,000 — — 125,000

— 350,000 — — 350,000

Total unapproved options 1,341,490 350,000 — — 1,691,490

Total EMI share scheme and unapproved options 2,849,039 350,000 — — 4,199,039
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22 Share-based Payments cont.

Weighted
average

exercise price Number

Options outstanding at 31 December 2018 24.1p 2,449,039
Options exercisable at 31 December 2018 32.6p 1,750,000

4,199,039

$W����'HFHPEHU�������ULJKWV�WR�RSWLRQV�RYHU�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�ZHUH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DV�IROORZV��

EMI share scheme

Number of shares

Exercise period 31 Jul 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2017

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
24 December 2012–24 December 2020 28,749 — (1,200) — 27,549

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
13 December 2014–12 December 2022 600,000 — — (400,000) 200,000

*UDQWHG����-XO\�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
22 July 2016–21 July 2024 680,000 — — (400,000) 280,000

*UDQWHG���$XJXVW�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
2 August 2017–1 August 2026 — 500,000 — — 500,000
2 August 2018–1 August 2026 — 500,000 — — 500,000

— 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000

Total EMI share scheme options 1,308,749 1,000,000 (1,200) (800,000) 1,507,549

Unapproved options scheme

Number of shares

Exercise period 31 Jul 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2017

*UDQWHG����'HFHPEHU�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
24 December 2012–24 December 2020 41,490 — — — 41,490

*UDQWHG����$SULO�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
27 April 2011–27 April 2021 300,000 — — — 300,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000
27 April 2012–27 April 2021 200,000 — — — 200,000

900,000 — — — 900,000

*UDQWHG���$XJXVW�������H[HUFLVH�SULFH������S�SHU�VKDUH
2 August 2019–1 August 2026 — 400,000 — — 400,000

Total unapproved options 941,490 400,000 — — 1,341,490

Total EMI share scheme and unapproved options 2,250,239 1,400,000 (1,200) (800,000) 2,849,039



61Getech Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
Strategic Report

G
overnance

Financial Statem
ents

22 Share-based Payments cont
Weighted

average
exercise price Number

Options outstanding at 31 December 2017 24.5p 900,000
Options exercisable at 31 December 2017 24.7p 1,949,039

2,849,039

No share options were exercised during the year.

23 Financial Commitments
Capital commitments
7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�FDSLWDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�DW����'HFHPEHU�������������eQLO��

Guarantees
No guarantees have been given, or have been received, by the Group.
Ʌ
24 Related Party Transactions
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��PHPEHUV�RI�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�DV�GHȴQHG�E\�Ζ$6����Ȇ5HODWHG�3DUW\�'LVFORVXUHV��UHYLVHG������ȇ�LQFOXGHG�QRQ�'LUHFWRUV�
DQG�WKHLU�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

31 Dec 2018
£’000

31 Dec 2017
eȇ���

6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHȴWV 830 1,270
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHȴWV 44 62
Share-based payments 39 39

913 1,371

The remuneration of the Directors, who are all Directors of the Parent Company, is set out in Note 6.

The Directors did not receive dividends during the year.

'XULQJ�WKH�SHULRG�*HWHFK�PDGH�SD\PHQWV�WR�=LQF�&RQVXOWDQWV�/LPLWHG�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�eQLO��������e��������IRU�UHFUXLWPHQW�VHUYLFHV�� 
a company of which Chris Flavell is a Director. All transactions were conducted under standard commercial terms. 

25 Pensions
7KH�*URXS�FXUUHQWO\�RSHUDWHV�D�*URXS�SHUVRQDO�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�IRU�WKH�EHQHȴW�RI�HPSOR\HHV��7KH�DPRXQW�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH� 
LV�e���������������e���������
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���3ULRU�\HDU�DGMXVWPHQW
The prior period has been adjusted to reclassify Reports generated internally from Inventories to Intangible Assets. The nature of the 
underlying Reports and their longer-term value means they meet the criteria for recording as Intangible Assets. The adjustment has 
UHVXOWHG�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHYLVLRQV�WR�OLQH�LWHPV�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�ΖQFRPH
No amendments have been made to the prior period Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ

31 December 2017

8QDGMXVWHG�
balance

£’000
Adjustment

eȇ���

Adjusted 
balance
eȇ���

Intangible assets 3,155 672 3,827
Inventories 672 (672) —

7KH�RSHQLQJ�EDODQFH�DGMXVWPHQW�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�HQGLQJ����'HFHPEHU������ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

1 August 2016

8QDGMXVWHG�
balance

£’000
Adjustment

eȇ���

Adjusted 
balance
eȇ���

Intangible assets 2,948 1,067 4,015
Inventories 1,067 (1,067) —

6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV

17 months to 31 December 2017

8QDGMXVWHG�
balance

£’000
Adjustment

eȇ���

Adjusted 
balance
eȇ���

Depreciation and amortisation charges 1,184 123 1,307
Impairment of intangible assets — 700 700

Decrease in inventories 395 (395) —

Capitalised cost of Reports — (429) (429)

There was no impact to Earnings per Share.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cont.
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Parent Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2018 &RPSDQ\�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�QXPEHU����������

Note
31 Dec 2018 

£’000

31 Dec 2017
(Restated)

eȇ���

31 July 2016
(Restated)

eȇ���

Non-current assets 
Intangible assets 4 2,879 2,640 2,082
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,032 2,475 2,643
Investments 6 6,519 7,228 7,228
Deferred tax assets 7 — — 24

12,430 12,343 11,977

Current assets 
Trade and other receivables 8 3,910 1,262 1,325
Current tax assets 46 358 226
Cash and cash equivalents 9 606 1,032 1,626

4,562 2,652 3,177

Total assets 16,992 14,995 15,154

Current liabilities 

Borrowings 10 113 279 133
Trade and other payables 11 2,707 1,676 2,502

2,820 1,955 2,635

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 10 819 355 767
Trade and other payables 11 565 — —
Deferred tax liabilities 7 25 60 109

1,409 415 876

Total liabilities 4,229 2,370 3,511

Net assets 12,763 12,625 11,643

(TXLW\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RZQHUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\
Share capital 12 94 94 94
Share premium account 3,053 3,053 3,053
Merger relief reserve 2,407 2,407 2,407
Share option reserve 183 164 173
Retained earnings 7,026 6,907 5,916

Total equity 12,763 12,625 11,643

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related 
QRWHV��7KH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�SURȴW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�e��������������UHVWDWHG��e���������

7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����ZHUH�DSSURYHG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RQ���0D\�������

Dr Stuart Paton
Non-executive Chairman

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�1RWHV�RQ�SDJHV����WR����IRUP�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share 
capital 
eȇ����

Share 
premium 

account 
eȇ����

Merger 
relief 

reserve 
eȇ���

Share 
option 

reserve 
eȇ����

Retained 
earnings 

eȇ����
Total 
eȇ����

At 1 August 2016 94 3,053 2,407 173 5,916 11,643

Transfer of reserves — — — (77) 77 —
Share-based payment charge — — — 68 — 68

Transactions with owners — — — (9) 77 68

3URȴW�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�UHVWDWHG — — — — 914 914

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�UHVWDWHG — — — — 914 914

At 31 December 2017 restated 94 3,053 2,407 164 6,907 12,625

Share-based payment charge — — — 19 — 19

Transactions with owners —  — — 19 — 19

3URȴW�IRU�WKH�\HDU — — — — 119 119

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU — — — — 119 119

At 31 December 2018 94 3,053 2,407 183 7,026 12,763
Ʌ
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

��&RPSDQ\�ΖQIRUPDWLRQ
7KH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ZHUH�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�
on 3 May 2019, and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board’s behalf by Dr Stuart M Paton.

The principal activity of Getech is to provide geoscience and geospatial products and services that companies and governments use  
to de-risk their exploration programmes and improve their management of natural resources. 

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�DQG�GRPLFLOHG�LQ�(QJODQG�DQG�:DOHV�DQG�LWV�UHJLVWHUHG�RɝFH�DGGUHVV�LV�.LWVRQ�+RXVH��(OPHWH�+DOO��
Elmete Lane, Leeds, LS8 2LJ.

7KH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�SRXQG�VWHUOLQJ�DQG�DOO�YDOXHV�DUH�URXQGHG�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW�WKRXVDQG�SRXQGV�
�eȇ�����H[FHSW�ZKHQ�RWKHUZLVH�LQGLFDWHG�

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company, judgements and key areas of estimation uncertainty are set out in Notes 
2.2 and 2.11.

2 Accounting Policies
����6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSOLDQFH
7KH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�D�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�EDVLV��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�
and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 — ‘The Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101). The principal accounting 
SROLFLHV�DGRSWHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��7KHVH�SROLFLHV�KDYH�DOO�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�FRQVLVWHQWO\�
throughout the year unless otherwise stated.

Disclosure Exemptions
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�WDNHQ�DGYDQWDJH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�GLVFORVXUH�H[HPSWLRQV�XQGHU�)56�����

• $�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ȵRZV�DQG�UHODWHG�QRWHV�
• The requirement to produce a balance sheet at the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
• The requirements of IAS 24 related party disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more 

members of the Group as they are wholly owned within the Group 
• Presentation of comparative reconciliations for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
• Disclosure of key management personnel compensation 
• Capital management disclosures 
• Presentation of comparative reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period 
• 7KH�HHFW�RI�IXWXUH�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�QRW�DGRSWHG�
• Disclosures in relation to impairment of assets 
• 'LVFORVXUHV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�GLVFORVXUHV�UHTXLUHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�UHFRUGLQJ�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 

at fair value)
• )DLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�GLVFORVXUHV��RWKHU�WKDQ�GLVFORVXUHV�UHTXLUHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�UHFRUGLQJ�ȴQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�

2.2 Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation
)RU�DOO�WDQJLEOH�ȴ[HG�DVVHWV��GHSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�FDOFXODWHG�WR�ZULWH�GRZQ�WKHLU�FRVW�WR�HVWLPDWHG�UHVLGXDO�YDOXH�E\�HTXDO�LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU�
WKHLU�HVWLPDWHG�HFRQRPLF�OLYHV�DW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UDWHV�

Freehold property – 2% per annum on cost
Plant and equipment – 33.3% and 25% per annum on cost

Material residual value and useful life estimates are updated as required but at least annually. Freehold land is carried at acquisition 
FRVW��$V�QR�ȴQLWH�XVHIXO�OLIH�IRU�ODQG�FDQ�EH�GHWHUPLQHG��UHODWHG�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�DUH�QRW�GHSUHFLDWHG�

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

2.3 Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provisions for diminution in value.

2.4 Intangible Assets and Amortisation
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process meets the recognition criteria for development 
expenditure. The expenditure capitalised includes all directly attributable costs, from the date that the intangible asset meets 
the recognition criteria necessary to create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 
$PRUWLVDWLRQ�LV�FDOFXODWHG�WR�ZULWH�GRZQ�WKHLU�FRVW�E\�HTXDO�LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU�WKHLU�HVWLPDWHG�HFRQRPLF�OLYHV�DW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UDWH�

&DSLWDOLVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�FRVWV� Ȃ�ȴYH�WR�WHQ�\HDUV�RQ�D�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�
Reports – ten years on a straight-line basis
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2 Accounting Policies cont.
2.5 Revenue
The Company has adopted IFRS 15 and its principles. Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received  
or receivable by the Company for products and services provided, excluding VAT and comparable overseas taxes. Typical invoice  
payment terms are 30 days for all categories of revenue.

5HYHQXH�IURP�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�IDOOV�LQWR�WKH�WKUHH�FDWHJRULHV�EHORZ�

Consultancy services
The Company provides various consulting services to its customers. Revenue from these services is recognised on a time-and-materials 
basis plus a margin as the services are provided. Customers are invoiced monthly as work progresses.

7KH�&RPSDQ\�DOVR�SURYLGHV�RXWVRXUFLQJ�VHUYLFHV�IRU�D�ȴ[HG�IHH�IRU�DQ�DJUHHG�SHULRG��$V�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�ZRUN�UHTXLUHG�WR�SHUIRUP�WKHVH�
VHUYLFHV�GRHV�QRW�YDU\�VLJQLȴFDQWO\�IURP�PRQWK�WR�PRQWK��UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQ�D�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�RYHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�

This revenue accounting policy is applicable to revenues from Geoscience Services. 

Multiclient products
)RU�VDOHV�RI�GDWD�DQG�FRPSOHWHG�SURGXFWV��UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�GLVSDWFK�
unless otherwise agreed.

This revenue accounting policy is applicable for revenues from Geophysical Data, Globe and Regional Reports.

Multiple element contracts
:KHUH�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�PXOWLSOH�HOHPHQW�SURGXFWV�ZLWK�VWDJHG�GHOLYHUDEOHV�LQYROYH�GHOLYHU\�RI�VHYHUDO�GLHUHQW�HOHPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�IXOO\�
delivered or performed by the year end, revenue is recognised based on the proportion of the fair value of the elements delivered to 
the fair value of the respective overall contracts. Where the outcome of contracts that are long-term in nature and contracts for ongoing 
deliverables cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

5HYHQXH�IURP�PXOWLSOH�HOHPHQW�FRQWUDFWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DIWHU�VHSDUDWLQJ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQFRPH�DV�IROORZV�

• &RPSOHWHG�SURMHFW�HOHPHQWV�DQG�VSHFLȴF�UHSRUWV�WKDW�DUH�LPPHGLDWHO\�GHOLYHUDEOH�ȃ�UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�
REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�GLVSDWFK�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�DJUHHG

• Service elements of the contract — revenue is recognised in line with the accounting treatment for consultancy services
• Project elements that are to be delivered from development work that is yet to be completed — revenue is recognised when the 

SHUIRUPDQFH�REOLJDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVȴHG��ZKLFK�LV�RQ�GLVSDWFK�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�DJUHHG

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation
Where supplies are obtained, or sales made on terms denominated in foreign currency, such transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated  
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains or losses arising  
RQ�WKH�VHWWOHPHQW�RU�WUDQVODWLRQ�RI�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�

2.7 Equity
(TXLW\�FRPSULVHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�

• ‘Share capital’ represents the nominal value of equity shares
• ‘Share premium account’ represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares,  

net of expenses of the share issue
• ‘Merger relief reserve’ represents the premium on shares issued to acquire ERCL and Exprodat Consulting Limited
• ‘Share option reserve’ represents the fair value of share options in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’
• Ȇ5HWDLQHG�HDUQLQJVȇ�UHSUHVHQWV�UHWDLQHG�SURȴWV
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2 Accounting Policies cont.
2.8 Share Options
:KHQ�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�DUH�JUDQWHG��D�FKDUJH�LV�PDGH�WR�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\ȇV�SURȴW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�DQG�D�UHVHUYH�LV�FUHDWHG�WR�UHFRUG�
WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�DZDUGV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Ζ)56���Ȇ6KDUH�EDVHG�SD\PHQWȇ��$�FKDUJH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURȴW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW�LQ�
relation to share options granted based on the fair value (the economic value) of the grant, measured at the grant date. The charge is 
spread over the vesting period. The valuation methodology takes into account assumptions and estimates of share price volatility, the 
future risk-free interest rate and exercise behaviour, and is based on the Black Scholes method. When share options are exercised, 
there is a transfer from the share option reserve to retained earnings.

At each balance sheet date, the Parent Company revises its estimate of the number of share options that are expected to vest, taking 
into account those that have lapsed or been cancelled. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the 
SURȴW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW��ZLWK�D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�VKDUH�RSWLRQ�UHVHUYH��ΖI�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�DUH�
PRGLȴHG�EHIRUH�WKH\�YHVW��WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�VKDUH�RSWLRQV��PHDVXUHG�LPPHGLDWHO\�EHIRUH�DQG�DIWHU�WKH�PRGLȴFDWLRQ��
LV�DOVR�FKDUJHG�WR�SURȴW�RU�ORVV�RYHU�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�YHVWLQJ�SHULRG�

2.9 Taxation
Current UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

'HIHUUHG�WD[�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�DOO�WLPLQJ�GLHUHQFHV�WKDW�KDYH�RULJLQDWHG�EXW�QRW�UHYHUVHG�DW�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH�ZKHUH�
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred 
DW�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��7LPLQJ�GLHUHQFHV�DUH�GLHUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�WD[DEOH�SURȴWV�DQG�LWV�UHVXOWV�DV�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DULVH�IURP�WKH�LQFOXVLRQ�RI�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�LQ�WD[�DVVHVVPHQWV�LQ�SHULRGV�GLHUHQW�IURP�WKRVH�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�
DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and it is therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available 
HYLGHQFH��LW�FDQ�EH�UHJDUGHG�DV�PRUH�OLNHO\�WKDQ�QRW�WKDW�WKHUH�ZLOO�EH�VXLWDEOH�WD[DEOH�SURȴWV�IURP�ZKLFK�WKH�IXWXUH�UHYHUVDO�RI�WKH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�WLPLQJ�GLHUHQFHV�FDQ�EH�GHGXFWHG�

'HIHUUHG�WD[�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�DYHUDJH�WD[�UDWHV�WKDW�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�DSSO\�LQ�WKH�SHULRGV�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�WLPLQJ�GLHUHQFHV�DUH�
expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred 
tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

�����6LJQLȴFDQW�$UHDV�RI�-XGJHPHQW�DQG�(VWLPDWLRQ�8QFHUWDLQW\
In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate estimates in key areas, and the actual outcomes may 
GLHU�IURP�WKRVH�FDOFXODWHG��

6LJQLȴFDQW�DUHDV�RI�MXGJHPHQW
7KH�NH\�VRXUFHV�RI�MXGJHPHQW�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

Recognition of revenue from multiple element contracts
Management use judgement in determining the fair value of multiple element contracts in order to appropriately recognise the 
revenue attributable to each element. The value of revenue recognised in the period is dependent on an assessment of work to 
completion.

Capitalisation of development costs
The capitalisation of development expenditure is dependent on the costs meeting the recognition criteria in accordance with IAS 38 
ȆΖQWDQJLEOH�$VVHWVȇ��ΖQ�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�FULWHULD��PDQDJHPHQW�PDNHV�MXGJHPHQWV�RQ�WKH�OHYHO�RI�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHȴWV�RI�WKH�DVVHW�
ȵRZLQJ�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��0DQDJHPHQW�LV�DVVLVWHG�LQ�PDNLQJ�WKHVH�MXGJHPHQWV�WKURXJK�WKH�PRQLWRULQJ�ERWK�RI�VDOHV�IRUHFDVWV�DQG� 
RI�WKH�OHYHO�RI�IXWXUH�FRVW�EHQHȴWV�DULVLQJ�

Deferred taxation
Management judgement is required in determining provisions for deferred tax liabilities and assets. The process involves estimating 
WKH�DFWXDO�FXUUHQW�WD[�H[SRVXUH�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DVVHVVLQJ�WHPSRUDU\�GLHUHQFHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�WKH�GLHUHQW�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�FHUWDLQ�DVVHWV�
DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�WD[�UHWXUQV��0DQDJHPHQW�PXVW�DVVHVV�WKH�SUREDELOLW\�WKDW�WKH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV�ZLOO�
be recovered from future taxable income.
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2 Accounting Policies cont.
�����6LJQLȴFDQW�$UHDV�RI�-XGJHPHQW�DQG�(VWLPDWLRQ�8QFHUWDLQW\�FRQW�
6LJQLȴFDQW�DUHDV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\
7KH�NH\�VRXUFHV�RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

Multiple element contracts
Management uses estimates in determining the fair value of individual elements of the multiple element contracts in order to appropriately 
recognise the revenue attributable to each element. A value is assigned to each element of the contract, based on an estimate of the  
value of that element if it were sold individually; the ratio of these values is then used to calculate a fair value for each element.  
The value of revenue recognised during the year is also dependent on estimates of work to completion, as with long-term contracts.  
:HUH�WKH�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�FRPSOHWHG�WR�WRWDO�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�WR�GLHU�E\����IURP�PDQDJHPHQWȇV�HVWLPDWHV��WKH�DPRXQW�RI�
UHYHQXH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZRXOG�LQFUHDVH�GHFUHDVH�E\�e�������

Carrying amount of non-current assets
:KHUH�WKHUH�LV�DQ�LQGLFDWLRQ�RI�LPSDLUPHQW��D�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�RI�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�LV�XQGHUWDNHQ�DV�IROORZV�

• Intangible non-current assets and investments are estimated on the basis of value in use

7KH�YDOXH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�IURP�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�XQGHU�UHYLHZ��7KH�NH\�HOHPHQWV�
RI�HVWLPDWLRQ�DUH�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV��)RU�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�DQG�LQYHVWPHQWV��IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV�DUH�IRUHFDVW�UHYHQXHV�IURP�
WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�DVVHW�RU�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLW��)XUWKHU�HVWLPDWLRQ�LV�PDGH�LQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�WKDW�UHȵHFWV�WKH�
VSHFLȴF�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�DVVHW�RU�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLW��6HH�1RWH���IRU�IXUWKHU�GHWDLOV�RI�DVVXPSWLRQV�PDGH�DQG�VHQVLWLYLW\�WHVWLQJ�
regarding Investments.

Share options
Share-based payments are valued using the Black Scholes valuation model. Estimates are made in expected volatility and the risk-free rate. 
Where appropriate, management uses historical market data as a basis for estimating the fair value of share options on grant. Increasing 
the risk-free rate by two percent and increasing the volatility window in the calculation of volatility from 5 days to 30 days made no material 
GLHUHQFH�WR�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�VKDUH�RSWLRQV�LVVXHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��

3 Employees
7KH�HPSOR\HH�EHQHȴW�H[SHQVHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

12 months 
ended  

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

17 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHȴWV 2,384 3,490
Social security costs 256 353
Pension costs 136 197
Share-based payment charge 30 68

2,806 4,108

7KH�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LQFOXGLQJ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV��ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

12 months  
ended  

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

17 months 
ended 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Directors 3 2
Administration 13 12
Technical 39 46

55 60
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4 Intangible Assets
Development 

costs 
eȇ���

Reports
eȇ���

Total 
£’000

Cost
At 1 January 2018 restated 3,037 399 3,436
Additions 766 — 766

At 31 December 2018 3,803 399 4,202

Depreciation
At 1 January 2018 restated 780 16 796
Charge for the period 501 26 527

At 31 December 2018 1,281 42 1,323

Net book value

At 31 December 2018 2,522 357 2,879

At 1 January 2018 restated 2,257 383 2,640

5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold 
property 

eȇ���

Plant and 
equipment 

eȇ���

Right-of-use 
assets 
eȇ���

Total 
£’000

Cost
At 1 January 2018 2,798 986 — 3,784
Additions — 20 641 661

At 31 December 2018 2,798 1,006 641 4,445

Depreciation
At 1 January 2018 373 936 — 1,309
Charge for the period 36 34 34 104

At 31 December 2018 409 970 34 1,413

Net book value

At 31 December 2018 2,389 36 607 3,032

At 1 January 2018 2,425 50 — 2,475

7KH�QHW�ERRN�YDOXH�RI�IUHHKROG�ODQG�LQ�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\��QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��DPRXQWHG�WR�e�����������������e�����������

6 Investments

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Gross carrying value — —

At 1 January 2018 7,228 7,228

Additions — —

At 31 December 2018 7,228 7,228

Accumulated impairment

At 1 January 2018 — —

Charge for the period 709 —

At 31 December 2018 709 —

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2018 6,519 7,228
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6 Investments cont.
The Parent Company owns 100% equity interest in Geophysical Exploration Technology Inc., a company incorporated in the USA.  
The principal activity of Geophysical Exploration Technology Inc. is the marketing of Gravity & Magnetics data, services and geological 
HYDOXDWLRQV��7KH�FRVW�RI�86����FDSLWDO�VWRFN�ZDV�e��DQG�WKLV�KDV�EHHQ�ZULWWHQ�R�LQ�DQ�HDUOLHU�SHULRG��7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�*HRSK\VLFDO�
([SORUDWLRQ�7HFKQRORJ\�ΖQF��DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴJXUHV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�

The Parent Company owns 100% of the Ordinary Share capital in ERCL, a company incorporated in England and Wales. The principal 
activity of ERCL is specialist international upstream oil & gas consultancy.

The Parent Company owns 100% of the Ordinary Share capital in Exprodat Consulting Limited, a company incorporated in England 
and Wales. The principal activity of Exprodat Consulting Limited is providing Geospatial and information management solutions to the 
upstream oil & gas industry.

The investment in subsidiary undertakings has been tested for impairment and the Company has impaired the carrying value of its 
LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�(5&/�/LPLWHG�E\�e���������ΖQ�WKH�RSLQLRQ�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV��WKH�DJJUHJDWH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�VXEVLGLDU\�
undertakings is not less than the amount included in the balance sheet.

7KH�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�YDOXH�LQ�XVH�FDOFXODWLRQV��FRYHULQJ�D�GHWDLOHG�ȴYH�\HDU�IRUHFDVW��IROORZHG�E\�DQ�
H[WUDSRODWLRQ�RI�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ȵRZV�IRU�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV��7KH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ȵRZV�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�DSSO\LQJ�
D�VXLWDEOH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�UHȵHFWLQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�DVVHVVPHQWV�RI�WKH�WLPH�YDOXH�RI�PRQH\�DQG�ULVNV�VSHFLȴF�WR�WKH�VHJPHQW�

ΖQ�H[WUDSRODWLQJ�IXWXUH�FDVK�ȵRZV��ORQJ�WHUP�LQGXVWU\�JURZWK�KDV�EHHQ�PRGHOOHG�DW�DQ�DQQXDO�UDWH�RI�����WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�D����UDWH� 
RI�LQȵDWLRQ�RQ�FRVWV�DQQXDOO\�

6DOHV�YROXPHV�RYHU�WKH�ȴYH�\HDU�SHULRG�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�SDVW�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�PDQDJHPHQWȇV�H[SHFWDWLRQV�RI�D�PDUNHW�UHFRYHU\�VWDJJHUHG�
RYHU�D�ȴYH�\HDU�SHULRG��UHȵHFWHG�E\�����\HDU�RQ�\HDU�JURZWK��7KH�FDVK�ȵRZ�PRGHO�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�UHYHQXHV�IURP�D�VXFFHVVIXO�OLFHQFLQJ�
round in 2019.

7KH�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�DSSOLHG�RI�������WDNHV�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�LQGXVWU\�ZLGH�ULVNV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKRVH�VSHFLȴF�WR�WKH�*URXSȇV�6HUYLFHV�
operating segment.

6HQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV�LV�FDUULHG�RXW�RQ�DOO�EXGJHWV��VWUDWHJLF�SODQV�DQG�GLVFRXQW�UDWHV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQV��7KH�FDVK�ȵRZ�PRGHO�LV�VHQVLWLYH�
to short term market recovery and to the initiation of a successful licencing round. In a scenario whereby revenues increase at a lower rate 
matching the long-term industry growth rate of 3 percent annually and the licencing round is unsuccessful, then this would result in an 
LPSDLUPHQW�WR�LQYHVWPHQWV�RI�e��������Ʌ

��'HIHUUHG�7D[

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

'HIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHWV
Balance brought forward — 24
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHȴWV — 2
Movement from asset to liability — (25)
Tax losses — (1)

Balance carried forward — —

'HIHUUHG�WD[�OLDELOLWLHV
Balance brought forward (60) (109)
Movement from asset to liability — 25
Share based payments 35 —
Accelerated capital allowances 24

Balance carried forward (25) (60)
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��'HIHUUHG�7D[�FRQW�
7KH�GHIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DW�����������������IRU�8.�WD[DWLRQ�LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Accelerated capital allowances (85) (85)
Tax losses 21 21
Share options 35 —
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHȴWV 4 4

Net deferred tax asset/(liability) (25) (60)

7KH�PRVW�DSSURSULDWH�WD[�UDWH�IRU�*HWHFK�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH���������������������WKH�VWDQGDUG�UDWH�RI�SURȴWV�WD[�LQ�WKH�8.��ZKLFK� 
LV�WKH�SULPDU\�VRXUFH�RI�SURȴW�IRU�*HWHFK�

7KH�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�8.�&RPSDQ\�LV�FDOFXODWHG�DW�����������������LQ�OLJKW�RI�WKH�IXWXUH�WD[�UDWHV�DQQRXQFHG�

8 Trade and Other Receivables

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Trade receivables 2,856 912
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 26 120
Social security and other taxes — —
Other receivables 28 66
Prepayments and accrued income 1,000 164

3,910 1,262

All amounts are short-term. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considered to be reasonable approximations  
to fair value.

All of the Company’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for expected credit loss. Any credit loss against receivables  
were found to be immaterial. In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date. The age  
RI�ȴQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�SDVW�GXH�EXW�QRW�LPSDLUHG�LV�DV�IROORZV�

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Not more than three months 162 500
More than three months but not more than six months 25 —
More than six months but not more than one year — —

187 500

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Cash at bank and in hand 606 1,032

10 Borrowings
The bank loan carries a variable interest rate of 2.75% above bank base rate and is repayable in equal monthly instalments. The loan  
LV�VHFXUHG�E\�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�RZQHG�E\�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\��ZLWK�D�FXUUHQW�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�e�����������������e�����������

Within 
one year 

eȇ���

In one 
to two years 

eȇ���

In two 
WR�ȴYH�\HDUV�

eȇ���
31 Dec 2018 

£’000

Borrowings — held at amortised cost 113 113 706 932
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11 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables due within one year

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Trade payables 1,780 995
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 425 359
Social security and other taxes 81 150
Other payables 34 26
Lease liabilities 72 —
Accruals and deferred income 315 146

2,707 1,676

7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�GXH�DIWHU�RQH�\HDU

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Lease liabilities 540 —
Dilapidation provisions 25 —

565 —

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be reasonable approximations to fair value. The lease liabilities relate 
to long-term property leases.

12 Share Capital

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Authorised
�����������2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�����S�HDFK������������������� 225 225

ΖVVXHG��FDOOHG�XS�DQG�IXOO\�SDLG
�����������2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�RI�����S�HDFK������������������� 94 94

31 Dec 2018
Number

31 Dec 2017
Number

6KDUHV�LVVXHG��FDOOHG�XS�DQG�IXOO\�SDLG
Balance brought forward 37,563,615 37,562,415
Shares issued under share-based payments — 1,200

Balance carried forward 37,563,615 37,563,615

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements cont.
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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13 Related Party Transactions
7KH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�3DUHQW�&RPSDQ\�LV�VHW�RXW�LQ�1RWH���WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Transactions with Directors of the Parent Company during the period and outstanding amounts at the balance sheet date  
ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

Dividends 
paid 
eȇ���

Amounts 
charged to 
the Group 

eȇ���

Amounts 
payable at 

31 Dec 2018 
£’000

Other related parties
Noon and Co. Limited — 20 3
TantlonGeo Limited — 20 5

)RU�WKH����PRQWK�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

Dividends 
paid 
eȇ���

Amounts 
charged to 
the Group 

eȇ���

Amounts 
payable at 

31 Dec 2017 
eȇ���

Other related parties
IP Group Limited — 19 7
Noon and Co. Limited — 19 4
TantlonGeo Limited — 19 5
=LQF�&RQVXOWDQWV�/LPLWHG — 59 —

14 Ultimate Controlling Party
The Directors consider that there is no ultimate controlling party.

15 Subsidiaries
'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�VXEVLGLDULHV�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������DUH�DV�IROORZV�

Name of undertaking and country  
of incorporation or residency Nature of business

Class of 
shareholding

% held
directly

% held 
indirectly

Exprodat Consulting Limited 1 England & Wales Consultancy Ordinary 100 —
ERCL Limited 2 England & Wales Consultancy Ordinary 100 —
Geophysical Exploration  
Technology Inc 3 United States of America Sales & Marketing agency Ordinary 100 —

7KH�UHJLVWHUHG�RɝFHV�RI�WKH�VXEVLGLDULHV�OLVWHG�DERYH�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

1 As the Company.
2 As the Company.
3 3000 Wilcrest Drive, Suite 155, Houston, TX 77042, USA.

$PRXQWV�FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�*URXS�E\�=LQF�&RQVXOWDQWV�/LPLWHG�IRU�UHFUXLWPHQW�VHUYLFHV��D�FRPSDQ\�RI�ZKLFK�&KULV�)ODYHOO�LV�D�'LUHFWRU��$OO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZHUH� 
on standard commercial terms.
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���3ULRU�\HDU�DGMXVWPHQW

The prior period has been adjusted to reclassify Reports generated internally from Inventories to Intangible Assets as, on consideration, 
the nature of the underlying Reports and their longer-term value means they meet the criteria for recording as Intangible Assets.  
7KH�DGMXVWPHQW�KDV�UHVXOWHG�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHYLVLRQV�WR�OLQH�LWHPV�LQ�WKH�ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ

31 December 2017

Unadjusted 
balance
eȇ���

Adjustment
eȇ���

$GMXVWHG�
balance

£’000

Intangible assets 2,257 383 2,640
Inventories 399 (399) —
Retained earnings 6,923 (16) 6,907

7KH�RSHQLQJ�EDODQFH�DGMXVWPHQW�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�HQGLQJ����'HFHPEHU������ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

1 August 2016

Unadjusted 
balance
eȇ���

Adjustment
eȇ���

$GMXVWHG�
balance

£’000

Intangible assets 1,597 485 2,082
Inventories 485 (485) —

3URȴW�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������ZDV�UHGXFHG�E\�e�������WR�e��������

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements cont.
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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1RWLFH�LV�JLYHQ�WKDW�WKH�WZHQW\�ȴIWK�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ�RI�*HWHFK�*URXS�SOF��KHUHDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV�WKH�&RPSDQ\��ZLOO�EH� 
KHOG�DW�.LWVRQ�+RXVH��(OPHWH�+DOO��(OPHWH�/DQH��/HHGV�/6���/-�RQ����-XQH������DW�������QRRQ�WR�FRQVLGHU�DQG��LI�WKRXJKW�ȴW��SDVV� 
the resolutions below. Resolutions 8 and 9 will be proposed as special resolutions; all other resolutions will be proposed as  
ordinary resolutions.

Ordinary Business
7R�FRQVLGHU�DQG��LI�WKRXJKW�ȴW��SDVV�UHVROXWLRQV���WR���DV�RUGLQDU\�UHVROXWLRQV�

1. To receive the Report of the Directors, the Strategic Report and the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended  
31 December 2018.

2. To re-elect Peter Stephens as a Director of the Company, in accordance with article 35 of the Company’s Articles of Association,  
ZKR�RHUV�KLPVHOI�IRU�UH�HOHFWLRQ�DV�D�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

3. To re-elect Jonathan Copus as a Director of the Company, in accordance with article 35 of the Company’s Articles of Association,  
ZKR�RHUV�KLPVHOI�IRU�UH�HOHFWLRQ�DV�D�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

4. To re-elect Alison Fielding as a Director of the Company, in accordance with article 35 of the Company’s Articles of Association,  
ZKR�RHUV�KHUVHOI�IRU�UH�HOHFWLRQ�DV�D�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

��� 7R�UH�DSSRLQW�*UDQW�7KRUQWRQ�8.�//3�DV�DXGLWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�KROG�RɝFH�XQWLO�WKH�FRQFOXVLRQ�RI�WKH�QH[W�JHQHUDO�PHHWLQJ� 
at which accounts are laid before the Company.

6. To authorise the Directors to determine the auditor’s remuneration.

Special Business
7R�FRQVLGHU�DQG��LI�WKRXJKW�ȴW��SDVV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHVROXWLRQV�ZKLFK�LQ�WKH�FDVH�RI�UHVROXWLRQ���ZLOO�EH�SURSRVHG�DV�DQ�RUGLQDU\�
resolution and in the case of resolutions 8 and 9 will be proposed as special resolutions.

ΖQ�WKH�VXEVHTXHQW�UHVROXWLRQV��WKH�IROORZLQJ�ZRUGV�DQG�H[SUHVVLRQV�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PHDQLQJV�

‘Act’ – the Companies Act 2006 (as amended)
‘Latest Practicable Date’  – close of business on 3 May 2019
‘Ordinary Shares’ – Ordinary Shares of 0.25p each in the capital of the Company
‘Rights’ – rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Company

7. To authorise the Board generally and unconditionally pursuant to Section 551 of the Act to exercise all powers of the Company  
WR�DOORW�VKDUHV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WR�JUDQW�5LJKWV�

�����XS�WR�DQ�DJJUHJDWH�QRPLQDO�DPRXQW�RI�e�����������EHLQJ�RQH�WKLUG�RI�WKH�LVVXHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DV�DW�WKH�/DWHVW�
Practicable Date); and

�����FRPSULVLQJ�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV��ZLWKLQ�WKH�PHDQLQJ�RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW��XS�WR�DQ�DJJUHJDWH�QRPLQDO�DPRXQW�RI�e���������� 
(after deducting from such amount any shares allotted under the authority conferred by virtue of resolution 7.1) in connection  
ZLWK�RU�SXUVXDQW�WR�D�5LJKWV�ΖVVXH��DV�GHȴQHG�EHORZ���SURYLGHG�WKDW�

a) such authorities shall expire on the earlier of either midnight on 25 September 20201 or the date of the next annual  
general meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution unless varied, revoked or renewed by the Company  
in a general meeting (save that the Board may, before the expiry of the authorities granted by this resolution, make  
D�IXUWKHU�RHU�RU�DJUHHPHQW�WKDW�ZRXOG�RU�PLJKW�UHTXLUH�VKDUHV�WR�EH�DOORWWHG�RU�5LJKWV�WR�EH�JUDQWHG�DIWHU�VXFK�H[SLU\� 
DQG�WKH�%RDUG�PD\�DOORW�VKDUHV�DQG�JUDQW�5LJKWV�LQ�SXUVXDQFH�RI�VXFK�DQ�RHU�RU�DJUHHPHQW�DV�LI�WKH�DXWKRULWLHV�FRQIHUUHG� 
by this resolution had not expired); and

b) the authorities granted by this resolution are in substitution for all previous authorities granted to the Directors to allot 
shares and grant Rights which (to the extent that they remain in force and unexercised) are revoked but without prejudice 
to any allotment or grant of Rights made or entered into prior to the date of resolution 7.

� )RU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�UHVROXWLRQ����Ȇ5LJKWV�ΖVVXHȇ�PHDQV�DQ�RHU�RU�LQYLWDWLRQ�WR��L��KROGHUV�RI�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�LQ�SURSRUWLRQ��DV�QHDUO\�
as may be practicable) to the respective numbers of Ordinary Shares held by them on the record date for such allotment, and 
ii) holders of other classes of equity securities if this is required by the rights of such securities (if any) or, if the Directors of the 
Company consider necessary, as permitted by the rights of those securities, to subscribe for further securities, but subject in both 
cases to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to 
IUDFWLRQDO�HQWLWOHPHQWV��WUHDVXU\�VKDUHV��UHFRUG�GDWHV�RU�OHJDO��UHJXODWRU\�RU�SUDFWLFDO�GLɝFXOWLHV�WKDW�PD\�DULVH�XQGHU�WKH�ODZV�RI�� 
or the requirements of, any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory or any other matter whatever.

 1 15 months from date of AGM.



76 Getech Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notice of Annual General Meeting cont.

Special Resolutions

8. To empower the Board (subject to the passing of resolution 7) pursuant to Sections 570 and 573 of the Act to allot equity securities 
(within the meaning of Section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred upon them by resolution 7 or where the 
allotment constitutes an allotment of equity securities by virtue of Section 560(3) of the Act as if Section 561(1) and sub-sections  
���ȃ����RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�$FW�GLG�QRW�DSSO\�WR�DQ\�VXFK�DOORWPHQW��SURYLGHG�WKDW�WKLV�SRZHU�VKDOO�EH�OLPLWHG�WR�

�����WKH�DOORWPHQW�RI�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�RU�SXUVXDQW�WR�D�5LJKWV�ΖVVXH��DV�GHȴQHG�LQ�UHVROXWLRQ�����DQG

8.2. the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph 8.1 above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal value  
RI�e�����������EHLQJ�����RI�WKH�LVVXHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DV�DW�WKH�/DWHVW�3UDFWLFDEOH�'DWH���DQG�

 the authorities given by resolution 8 shall expire on the earlier of either midnight on 25 September 2020 or the date of the next annual 
general meeting after the passing of this resolution, unless renewed or extended prior to such expiry, save that the Company may, 
EHIRUH�WKH�H[SLU\�RI�DQ\�SRZHU�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKLV�UHVROXWLRQ��PDNH�D�IXUWKHU�RHU�RU�DJUHHPHQW�WKDW�ZRXOG�RU�PLJKW�UHTXLUH�HTXLW\�
VHFXULWLHV�WR�EH�DOORWWHG�DIWHU�VXFK�H[SLU\�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�PD\�DOORW�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�LQ�SXUVXDQFH�RI�VXFK�RHU�RU�DJUHHPHQW�DV�LI�WKH�
powers conferred by this resolution had not expired.

9. To authorise the Company generally and unconditionally for the purpose of Section 701 of the Act to make one or more market 
SXUFKDVHV��ZLWKLQ�WKH�PHDQLQJ�RI�6HFWLRQ��������RI�WKH�$FW��RI�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�SURYLGHG�WKDW�

9.1. the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares authorised by this resolution to be purchased is 3,756,361 (representing 
approximately 10% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the Latest Practicable Date);

9.2. the minimum price that may be paid for such Ordinary Shares is 0.25p per share (exclusive of expenses);

9.3. the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) that may be paid for an Ordinary Share is the higher of a) 5% above the average of the 
PLGGOH�PDUNHW�TXRWDWLRQV�IRU�DQ�2UGLQDU\�6KDUH�DV�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�/RQGRQ�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�'DLO\�2ɝFLDO�/LVW�IRU�WKH�ȴYH�EXVLQHVV�
days immediately preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share is purchased and b) the higher of the price quoted for i) the last 
independent trade of or ii) the highest current independent bid for any number of Ordinary Shares on the trading venue where the 
purchase is carried out; and

9.4. unless previously revoked or varied, the authority conferred by this resolution shall expire on the earlier of either midnight on  
25 September 2020 or the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution, save that 
the Company may, before such expiry, make a contract or contracts to purchase Ordinary Shares after such expiry as if the power 
conferred by this resolution had not expired.

By order of the Board

Andrew Darbyshire
Company Secretary

3 May 2019

Ʌ
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The following notes explain your general rights as a shareholder and your right to attend and vote at this Meeting or to appoint 
someone else to vote on your behalf.

1. To be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the number of 
votes they may cast), shareholders must be registered in the Register of Members of the Company at close of trading on 21 June. 
Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to 
attend and vote at the Meeting. 

2. Shareholders, or their proxies, intending to attend the Meeting in person are requested, if possible, to arrive at the Meeting venue 
at least 20 minutes prior to the commencement of the Meeting so that their shareholding may be checked against the Company’s 
Register of Members and attendances recorded.

3. Shareholders are entitled to appoint another person as a proxy to exercise all or part of their rights to attend and to speak and 
vote on their behalf at the Meeting. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the Meeting provided that each 
SUR[\�LV�DSSRLQWHG�WR�H[HUFLVH�WKH�ULJKWV�DWWDFKHG�WR�D�GLHUHQW�2UGLQDU\�6KDUH�RU�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�KHOG�E\�WKDW�VKDUHKROGHU�� 
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. 

4. In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted 
by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in 
WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�5HJLVWHU�RI�0HPEHUV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�MRLQW�KROGLQJ��WKH�ȴUVW�QDPHG�EHLQJ�WKH�PRVW�VHQLRU��

5. A vote withheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the 
resolution. If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote  
�RU�DEVWDLQ�IURP�YRWLQJ��DV�KH�RU�VKH�WKLQNV�ȴW�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�DQ\�RWKHU�PDWWHU�ZKLFK�LV�SXW�EHIRUH�WKH�0HHWLQJ�

��� <RX�FDQ�YRWH�

• by logging on to www.signalshares.com and following the instructions;
• by requesting a hard copy form of proxy directly from the registrars, Link Asset Services (previously called Capita), on  

7HO�����������������&DOOV�FRVW���S�SHU�PLQXWH�SOXV�\RXU�SKRQH�FRPSDQ\ȇV�DFFHVV�FKDUJH��ΖI�\RX�DUH�RXWVLGH�WKH�8QLWHG�
Kingdom, please call +44 371 664 0300. Calls outside the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate. 
/LQHV�DUH�RSHQ�EHWZHHQ��������������0RQGD\�WR�)ULGD\�H[FOXGLQJ�SXEOLF�KROLGD\V�LQ�(QJODQG�DQG�:DOHV��RU

• in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures 
set out below.

 In order for a proxy appointment to be valid a completed form of proxy must be received by Link Asset Services at 34 Beckenham 
5RDG��%HFNHQKDP��.HQW��%5���=)�E\����QRRQ�RQ����-XQH�������WRJHWKHU�ZLWK��LQ�WKH�FDVH�RI�D�KDUG�FRS\�IRUP�RI�SUR[\��WKH�RULJLQDO� 
RU�D�FHUWLȴHG�FRS\�RI�DQ\�SRZHU�RI�DWWRUQH\�RU�RWKHU�DXWKRULW\�SXUVXDQW�WR�ZKLFK�VXFK�IRUP�RI�SUR[\�KDV�EHHQ�VLJQHG��

7. If you return more than one proxy appointment, either by paper or electronic communication, the appointment received  
last by the Registrar before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence. You are advised to read the terms  
and conditions of use carefully. Electronic communication facilities are open to all shareholders and those who use them  
will not be disadvantaged.

��� 7KH�UHWXUQ�RI�D�FRPSOHWHG�IRUP�RI�SUR[\��HOHFWURQLF�ȴOLQJ�RU�DQ\�&5(67�3UR[\�ΖQVWUXFWLRQ��DV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�1RWH����EHORZ��ZLOO�QRW�
prevent a shareholder from attending the Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so.

9. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so  
for the Meeting (and any adjournment of the Meeting) by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual (available from  
www.euroclear.com/site/public/EUI). CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members 
who have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take 
the appropriate action on their behalf.

10. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a ‘CREST 
3UR[\�ΖQVWUXFWLRQȇ��PXVW�EH�SURSHUO\�DXWKHQWLFDWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�(XURFOHDU�8.�	�ΖUHODQG�/LPLWHGȇV�VSHFLȴFDWLRQV�DQG�PXVW�
contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message must be transmitted so  
as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by 12 noon on 21 June 2019. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken  
to mean the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST application host) from which the issuer’s 
agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time, any change of 
instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

http://www.signalshares.com
http://www.euroclear.com/site/public/EUI
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11. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland 
Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and limitations  
will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned  
to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider(s), 
to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 
is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their 
CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical 
limitations of the CREST system and timings. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set  
RXW�LQ�5HJXODWLRQ�������D��RI�WKH�8QFHUWLȴFDWHG�6HFXULWLHV�5HJXODWLRQV������

12. Any corporation which is a shareholder can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf  
all of its powers as a shareholder provided that no more than one corporate representative exercises powers in relation to the  
same shares.

13. As at 3 May 2019 (being the latest practicable business day prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company’s ordinary issued 
share capital consists of 37,563,615 Ordinary Shares, carrying one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company as  
at 3 May 2019 are 37,563,615.

14. Under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, shareholders meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have  
WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHTXLUH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�SXEOLVK�RQ�D�ZHEVLWH�D�VWDWHPHQW�VHWWLQJ�RXW�DQ\�PDWWHU�UHODWLQJ�WR���L��WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�
ȴQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�$XGLWRUȇV�5HSRUW�DQG�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�WKH�DXGLW��WKDW�DUH�WR�EH�ODLG�EHIRUH�WKH�0HHWLQJ��RU��LL��DQ\�
FLUFXPVWDQFHV�FRQQHFWHG�ZLWK�DQ�DXGLWRU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�FHDVLQJ�WR�KROG�RɝFH�VLQFH�WKH�SUHYLRXV�PHHWLQJ�DW�ZKLFK�DQQXDO�ȴQDQFLDO�
statements and reports were laid in accordance with Section 437 of the Companies Act 2006 (in each case) that the shareholders 
propose to raise at the relevant meeting. The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any such website publication 
to pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where the Company is required to place a 
statement on a website under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not 
later than the time when it makes the statement available on the website. The business which may be dealt with at the Meeting for the 
UHOHYDQW�ȴQDQFLDO�\HDU�LQFOXGHV�DQ\�VWDWHPHQW�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW������WR�
publish on a website.

15. Any shareholder attending the Meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must cause to be answered any such question 
UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�EXVLQHVV�EHLQJ�GHDOW�ZLWK�DW�WKH�0HHWLQJ�EXW�QR�VXFK�DQVZHU�QHHG�EH�JLYHQ�LI���D��WR�GR�VR�ZRXOG�LQWHUIHUH�XQGXO\�ZLWK�
WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�0HHWLQJ�RU�LQYROYH�WKH�GLVFORVXUH�RI�FRQȴGHQWLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ���E��WKH�DQVZHU�KDV�DOUHDG\�EHHQ�JLYHQ�RQ�D�
website in the form of an answer to a question; or (c) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the Meeting 
that the question be answered.

16. Copies of the Directors’ letters of appointment or service contracts are available for inspection during normal business hours  
DW�WKH�UHJLVWHUHG�RɝFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ�DQ\�EXVLQHVV�GD\�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�1RWLFH�XQWLO�WKH�WLPH�RI�WKH�0HHWLQJ�DQG�PD\� 
DOVR�EH�LQVSHFWHG�DW�WKH�0HHWLQJ�YHQXH��DV�VSHFLȴHG�LQ�WKLV�1RWLFH��IURP�������DP�RQ�WKH�GD\�RI�WKH�0HHWLQJ�XQWLO�WKH�FRQFOXVLRQ� 
of the Meeting.

17. You may not use any electronic address (within the meaning of Section 333(4) of the Companies Act 2006) provided in either this 
Notice or any related documents (including the form of proxy) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those 
expressly stated.

18. All references to times in this Notice are to UK time.

A copy of this Notice, and other information required by Section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found on the Company’s website 
at www.getech.com 

Ʌ

Notice of Annual General Meeting cont.
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([SODQDWLRQ�RI�5HVROXWLRQV�
Resolution number 1 — accounts
The Directors of the Company are obliged to present to shareholders the report of the Directors and the accounts for the Company 
for the year ended 31 December 2018. That report and those accounts, and the report of the Company’s auditor on those accounts, 
are set out on pages 20 to 74 of this document.

5HVROXWLRQ�QXPEHUV������DQG���ȃ�UH�HOHFWLRQ�RI�'LUHFWRUV
At each general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (other than those appointed since the latest annual general 
meeting) are required to retire. If the number of relevant Directors is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than 
RQH�WKLUG�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VKRXOG�EH�REOLJHG�WR�UHWLUH��'LUHFWRUV�GXH�WR�UHWLUH�E\�URWDWLRQ�DUH�WKRVH�ZKR�KDYH�EHHQ�ORQJHVW�LQ�RɝFH�
since their last re-election and as between persons who become or were last re-elected on the same day, those due to retire shall 
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election. Peter Stephens, 
-RQDWKDQ�&RSXV�DQG�$OLVRQ�)LHOGLQJ�UHWLUH�E\�URWDWLRQ�DQG�DUH�RHULQJ�WKHPVHOYHV�IRU�UH�HOHFWLRQ��

5HVROXWLRQ�QXPEHU���ȃ�UH�DSSRLQWPHQW�RI�DXGLWRU�DQG�DSSURYLQJ�LWV�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�
$W�HDFK�JHQHUDO�PHHWLQJ�DW�ZKLFK�DFFRXQWV�DUH�ODLG��WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�DSSRLQW�DQ�DXGLWRU�WR�KROG�RɝFH�XQWLO�WKH�QH[W� 
JHQHUDO�PHHWLQJ��7KH�SUHVHQW�DXGLWRU��*UDQW�7KRUQWRQ�8.�//3��LV�ZLOOLQJ�WR�FRQWLQXH�LQ�RɝFH�IRU�D�IXUWKHU�\HDU��DQG�WKLV�UHVROXWLRQ�
proposes its re-appointment.

Resolution number 6 — authority to determine auditor’s remuneration
In accordance with standard practice, this resolution will authorise the Directors to determine the level of the auditor’s remuneration.

Resolution number 7 — authority to allot shares
7KH�UHVROXWLRQ�JUDQWV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DXWKRULW\�WR�DOORW�UHOHYDQW�VHFXULWLHV�XS�WR�DQ�DJJUHJDWH�QRPLQDO�DPRXQW�RI�e�����������EHLQJ� 
one-third of the Company’s Ordinary Share capital in issue at 3 May 2019.

In line with guidance issued by the Association of British Insurers, resolution 7 also grants the Directors of the Company authority to 
allot unissued share capital in connection with a Rights Issue in favour of ordinary shareholders up to an aggregate nominal amount 
RI�e�����������UHSUHVHQWLQJ�WZR�WKLUGV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�2UGLQDU\�6KDUH�FDSLWDO�LQ�LVVXH�DW���0D\�������DV�UHGXFHG�E\�WKH�QRPLQDO�
amount of any shares issued under resolution 7.1.

It is not the Directors’ current intention to allot relevant securities pursuant to this resolution. This authority replaces the existing 
DXWKRULW\�WR�DOORW�UHOHYDQW�VHFXULWLHV�EXW�GRHV�QRW�DHFW�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�DOORW�VKDUHV�XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�VKDUH�RSWLRQ�VFKHPHV�

5HVROXWLRQ�QXPEHU���ȃ�GLVDSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�VWDWXWRU\�SUH�HPSWLRQ�ULJKWV
This resolution disapplies the statutory pre-emption rights that would otherwise apply on an issue of shares for cash and is limited to 
DOORWPHQWV�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�5LJKWV�ΖVVXHV�RU�RWKHU�SUH�HPSWLYH�RHUV�DQG��RWKHUZLVH��DXWKRULVHV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�DOORW�VHFXULWLHV�RQ� 
D�QRQ�SUH�HPSWLYH�EDVLV�IRU�FDVK�XS�WR�D�QRPLQDO�YDOXH�RI�e�����������EHLQJ�����RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�2UGLQDU\�6KDUH�FDSLWDO�LQ�LVVXH�DW� 
3 May 2019. This replaces the existing authority to disapply pre-emption rights and expires at the conclusion of the next annual 
general meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution or 15 months after the date of the annual general meeting, 
whichever is the earlier.

5HVROXWLRQ�QXPEHU���ȃ�SXUFKDVH�RI�RZQ�VKDUHV
In certain circumstances, it may be advantageous for the Company to purchase its own shares, and this resolution seeks authority  
to do this. The Directors would only consider making purchases if they believed that such purchases would be in the best interests  
RI�VKDUHKROGHUV�JHQHUDOO\��KDYLQJ�UHJDUG�WR�WKH�HHFW�RQ�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�DQG�WKH�&RPSDQ\ȇV�RYHUDOO�ȴQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�

The resolution gives general authority for the Company to make purchases of up to 3,756,361 Ordinary Shares (being approximately 
10% of the Company’s Ordinary Share capital in issue at 3 May 2019) at a minimum price of 0.25p and a maximum price being the 
higher of a) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for Ordinary Shares for the 5 business days prior to the purchase 
or b) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading venue where the 
purchase is carried out.

Companies are permitted to retain any of their own shares that they have purchased as treasury stock with a view to possible re-issue 
at a future date, rather than cancelling them. The Company will consider holding any of its own shares that it purchases pursuant to 
the authority conferred by this resolution as treasury stock. This would give the Company the ability to re-issue treasury shares quickly 
DQG�FRVW�HHFWLYHO\�DQG�ZRXOG�SURYLGH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLWK�DGGLWLRQDO�ȵH[LELOLW\�LQ�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�LWV�FDSLWDO�EDVH�
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